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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of the directors (the “Directors”)
of Speedy Global Holdings Limited (the “Company”), I am pleased
to present the audited consolidated results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group” or “Speedy Global”)
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

In 2020, the ongoing outbreak of the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (the
“COVID-19 Outbreak”) around the world delivered a serious blow to
the global economy and market demands, causing significant impacts
on the demands for the Apparel Supply Chain Servicing Business.
For the year 2020, the Group's revenue decreased to approximately
HK$685.7 million, representing an decrease of approximately 38.6%
in comparison to that of the year 2019, while loss for the year
attributable to equity holders decreased to approximately HK$148.8
million, representing an decrease of approximately 659.4% as
compared to that of the year 2019.

Apparel Supply Chain Servicing Business

The apparel supply chain servicing business which offers a wide
range of woven wear, cut-and-sewn knitwear and sweater knitwear
products to a number of owners or agents of global reputable brands
(the "Apparel Supply Chain Servicing Business”) continued to be the
core business of the Group. For the year 2020, revenue under Apparel
Supply Chain Servicing Business was approximately HK$685.7 million
(2019: HK$1,117.0 million) and segment loss (before other gains —
net, finance costs — net and income tax credit) attributable to Apparel
Supply Chain Servicing Business was approximately HK$147.7 million
(2019: segmental profit HK$43.2 million). Being in line with our strategy
to focus on our strengths in product design and development, as well
as quality control and production management, we design, develop
and produce men’s and women'’s woven wear, cut-and-sewn knitwear
and sweater knitwear products to respond to constantly evolving
consumer preferences. A decrease in revenue for the year 2020
primarily owing to the worldwide COVID-19 Outbreak which affected
the macro economy, leading to a weak market sentiment, a delay in
shipment and cancellation of orders.
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Apparel Retail Business

The Group also principally engaged in the apparel retail business
operating under the in-house brand of Unisex and under the
distribution right of Promod brand in the PRC (the “Apparel Retail
Business”) while their operations ceased by the end of May 2015.
Therefore, there was neither revenue, gross profit nor expenses from
our Apparel Retail Business during the year 2020.

Property Investment and Development Business

The Group also engaged in the property development and investment
(the “Property Investment and Development Business”). There
was neither revenue, gross profit nor expenses from our Property
Investment and Development Business during the year 2020 as the
subsidiaries which were engaged in the property development and
investment for the land at Xinmi City were fully disposed of in 2016.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Looking ahead to 2021, the global economic landscape will still be
dominated by the COVID-19 Outbreak. With cumulative COVID-19
vaccination, we expected that it is able to get out of the current
predicament and see the light in future. However, global economy will
continue to be volatile subject to various factors such as the COVID-19
Outbreak and China-US trade war. It will bring a series of uncertainties
across the globe. The Group will continue to pay close attention to the
development of the domestic and international epidemic and changes
in the markets to agilely respond and take appropriate actions. In order
to explore for more new opportunities with the existing and potential
customers, the Group will enhance product innovation and creativity
continuously. For production management, the Group will continue
to enhance the operating efficiency by simplifying the production
processes which results in a shorter product delivery time. In addition,
the Group will work closely with our customers to consolidate the
fabrication in order to obtain better material prices with mass volume
which will enhance our cost competitiveness. Moreover, we will try
to simplify the Group’s organisation structure with each operating
process in order to save costs.

We keep looking for other retail business opportunity with a better
profitability for the Group’s Apparel Retail Business.
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We are still closely monitoring the property market to determine the
appropriate investment strategy for the Group’s Property Investment
and Development Business. We will seek any appropriate property
investment and development project if we believe that it can magnify
the Group's shareholders’ return.

APPRECIATION

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to extend my
sincere gratitude to all fellow directors, management and our staff
for their unwavering dedication and contribution to our Group's
development. | would also like to thank all of our shareholders, for
their trust and continuous support over a challenging year 2020.

Speedy Global Holdings Limited
Huang Chih Shen
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

BE+t-A=1t—HILEE
For the year ended
31 December

—EB-EF —T-NEF
2020 2019
BEBTT AEBTT
Results HK$ million HKS$ million
Wres Revenue 685.7 1,117.0 -38.6
E7 Gross profit 60.0 144.9 -58.6
BrFTiSEi AT (E518) & A (Loss)/profit before income tax (153.0) 33.8 -552.7
KRBT A (Loss)/profit for the year attributable to
FEEE R (E18), 8 F  equity holders of the Company (148.8) 26.6 -659.4
FRARQTREZEZEA A Basic and diluted (losses)/earnings
FE(h (E518) @ 7 per share for (l0ss)/profit
BRERNEE attributable to equity holders of
(E518) /&F| the Company for the year
(AZRAETYIR) (expressed in HK$ per share) 0.2481 0.0444
R+t=—BA=+—8
As at 31 December
—E-EF —T—hF
2020 2019
BEBT BEBTT
Financial Position HK$ million HK$ million
MBNEEFE Net current assets 75.0 99.5 -24.6
BEBTE Total assets 497.2 700.3 -29.0
BE Borrowings 126.6 915 384
BEAR Total liabilities 346.8 387.7 -10.5
KRNRERFAA Equity attributable to equity holders of
FE(L R the Company 150.3 312.6 -51.9
R+t=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-%F —F-NF
Financial Statistics 2020 2019
BN & Current ratio’ 1.2 1.3
& FE B 52 Return on assets? -24.9% 4.1%
e &NEEY Return on equity? -64.3% 8.8%
BER R Gearing ratio? TEA n/a TEA n/a
FERAEEE(A)° Inventory turnover days (days)® 42 33
FEWRRFAE RS (B ) Trade receivable turnover days (days)¢ 79 43
ENERRENEE Trade and bills payable turnover days (days)’
AEAE(R) 115 77

1.

08

FEBHRBERRBEER RS AR
BEBRBSNAQAREREZEAREFER (EHEB)
BB A E RS R IA100%
BARRIBERARD AR EAREER (BE)
/i Rk 1 oS 4858 - BB AR BA100%
BEEBHRBSAEEAERAEAERESR
ReESEYBRERARE  BIRA100%

FERAS RSN ERNFHET SRR ESMRA
BRUZFREGTE

FEURR R B8 B SRS N AT R R R IS
BRAZEREGTE
BENEREENZEEAS B SESNERNTHEMN
ERREMEZEREERD BRUKEREHE

N

Current ratio = current assets/current liabilities

Return on assets = (loss)/profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the
Company/average total assets x 100%

Return on equity = (loss)/profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the
Company/average total equity x 100%

Gearing ratio = total borrowings and lease liabilities net of cash and cash
equivalents/total equity x 100%

Inventory turnover days = average inventory balance/cost of sales for the year x
number of days for the year

Trade receivable turnover days = average trade receivable/revenue for the year x
number of days for the year

Trade and bills payable turnover days = average trade and bills payable/cost of
sales for the year x number of days for the year
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BZ+-A=1+—-RHILEE
Year ended 31 December

THET ZE-NE ZE-N\F ZE—+tF

in HK$'000 2019 2018 2017

E RESULTS

Yz Revenue 685,688 1,117,035 858,343 1,178,540 1,088,201
E7 Gross profit 59,982 144,858 97,141 129,917 114,036

HERLERE  (Loss)/profit before income tax from
B FR1EBAT the continuing operations
(E58) /& F (153,025) 33,810 28,001 47,064 40,559

FiigsEe,/ Income tax credit/(expense)
(F%) 4,176 (7,167) (5,779) (12,958) (8,830)

BEQBEREN  (Loss)/profit for the year from
EN(FEE),/  the continuing operations

4 A (148,849) 26,649 22,222 34,106 31,729
BRIFEEER  Loss for the year from
B FAER discontinued operations - - - - (1,696)

ERN(EE),/  (Loss)/profit for the year

gl (148,849) 26,649 22,222 34,106 30,033

R+t=—A=+-—-H
At 31 December

TAET 2% “E-NE ZE-N\F —TiF

in HK$'000 2019 2018 2017

EEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EEBE Total assets 497,153 700,330 611,178 708,038 633,404

BERH Total liabilities 346,822 387,702 318,641 433,980 397,670

BESE Net assets 150,331 312,628 292,537 274,058 235,734
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Group focuses on providing one stop solution to our customers
by the provision of apparel supply chain services including product
design and development, fashion trend ascertaining and sampling,
raw material sourcing, production order and merchandise sourcing
management, quality control, packaging, inventory management and
logistics management.

Furthermore, the Group also engaged in the Apparel Retail Business.
Due to the unsatisfactory sales performance of the Unisex and
Promod brands, their operations ceased by the end of May 2015 and
the subsidiaries involved in the Apparel Retail Business were fully
disposed of by the end of February 2017. The Group is still closely
monitoring the apparel retail market to determine the appropriate
investment strategy for the Group’s Apparel Retail Business.

The Group also engaged in the Property Investment and Development
Business to develop the relevant market. The subsidiaries involved
in the Property Investment and Development Business were fully
disposed of in early September 2016. The Group is still closely
monitoring the property market to determine the appropriate
investment strategy for the Group's Property Investment and
Development Business.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

BE+t-A=1t—-RLEE
Year ended 31 December

—EEF —E-NEF
2020 2019
BEEATR BHEABT
HK$ million HK$ million
Wz Revenue 685.7 1,117.0
—RERERIRTE X — Apparel Supply Chain Servicing Business 685.7 1,117.0
—REEEXH - Apparel Retail Business = =
—YEREREREZF - Property Investment and Development
Business - -
EH Gross profit 60.0 144.9
— R B ERRIRB R — Apparel Supply Chain Servicing Business 60.0 144.9
—REFEXH — Apparel Retail Business = =
—YRKERFREFS — Property Investment and Development
Business - -
RATIERTEEA (Loss)/profit for the year attributable to
EIEFER (BER) EF equity holders of the Company (148.8) 26.6
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Apparel Supply Chain Servicing Business

Being in line with our strategy to focus on our strengths in product
design and development, as well as quality control and production
management, we design, develop and produce men’s and women'’s
woven wear, cut-and-sewn knitwear and sweater knitwear products
to respond to constantly evolving consumer preferences. In 2020, the
ongoing COVID-19 Outbreak around the world delivered a serious
blow to the global economy and market demands, causing significant
impacts on the demands for the Apparel Supply Chain Servicing
Business.

Gross profit and gross profit margin under our Apparel Supply Chain
Servicing Business decreased by 58.6% to approximately HK$60.0
million (2019: HK$144.9 million) and decreased to approximately 8.8%
(2019: 13.0%) respectively, mainly due to the decrease in revenue
and in gross profit margin. The gross profit margin decreased mainly
because certain of the Group's cost of sales were fixed costs, such as
depreciation of property, plant and equipment, labour cost and lease
expenses, which resulted in the decrease of gross profit margin.

During the year 2020, we recorded a segmental loss before other
gains — net, finance costs — net and income tax credit of approximately
HK$147.7 million (2019: segmental profit HK$43.2 million).

Apparel Retail Business

There was neither revenue, gross profit nor expenses from our Apparel
Retail Business during the year 2020 as the subsidiaries which were
engaged in the Apparel Retail Business were fully disposed of in 2017.

Property Investment and Development Business

There was neither revenue, gross profit nor expenses from our
Property Investment and Development Business during the year 2020
as the subsidiaries which were engaged in the property development
and investment for the land at Xinmi City were fully disposed of in
2016.

DISTRIBUTION COSTS

Distribution costs mainly represented employees’ wages for salesmen,
commission expenses and freight charges related to sales of goods
incurred during the year 2020. Distribution costs decreased mainly
due to decrease in Sales Commission and the freight charges.

¥ o ANNUAL REPORT 2020 11
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses mainly represented the provision for
impairment of goodwill, employee benefit expenses for our
management, finance and administrative personnel, entertainment
expenses, rental expenses for our office premises, depreciation and
travelling expenses. Increase in the administrative expenses was
mainly due to the provision for impairment of goodwill. Due to the
weak performance of Splendid Gains International Limited, and its
subsidiaries (the “Splendid Gains Group”) engaged in the business
of manufacturing and trading of sweater knitwear products resulting
from the COVID-19 Outbreak, based on HKAS 36 requirements, the
Group made a provision for impairment of goodwill of approximately
HK$122.6 million during the year 2020 (2019: Nil). The impairment
provision will reduce the net carrying amount of the goodwill.
However, the provision for impairment of goodwill is a non-cash item
and has no impact on the Group's cash flow, operations or liquidity
position. For details, please refer to the paragraph headed “Goodwill”
below.

NET IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON FINANCIAL AND
CONTRACT ASSETS

Due to the COVID-19 Outbreak, one of the US customers faces
significant financial difficulties. The Group had engaged a debt
collecting agent to deal with that debtor. Since the ageing was past
due over 180 days, the Group made an allowance for doubtful debts
of approximately HK$11.7 million during the year 2020 (2019: HK$7.3
million).

OTHER GAINS - NET

Other gains — net of approximately HK$0.9 million during the year
2020 mainly represented claims from customers for order cancellation
of approximately HK$0.6 million and net foreign exchange gains of
approximately HK$0.3 million.

Other gains — net of approximately HK$0.2 million during the year
2019 mainly represented claims from customer for order cancellation
of approximately HK$0.9 million, partially offset by the net losses on
disposal of the property, plant and equipment of approximately HK$0.6
million.

FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

Finance income decreased by 50.0% to approximately HK$0.6 million
for the year of 2020 (2019: HK$1.2 million) primarily due to decrease in
the deposit amount during the year 2020.
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Finance cost decreased by 36.4% to approximately HK$6.8 million
for the year 2020 (2019: HK$10.7 million). Finance costs for the year
2020 mainly represented interest expense on bank borrowings of
approximately HK$6.7 million, interest and finance charges of lease
liabilities of approximately HK$0.7 million and net exchange gains
of approximately HK$0.5 million while finance costs for the year
2019 mainly represented interest expenses on bank borrowings
of approximately HK$9.3 million and net exchange losses of
approximately HK$0.3 million. Decreased in the interest expense on
bank borrowings was primarily due to decrease of import trade loan
amount during the year 2020.

INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE)

Income tax expense mainly represented amounts of current income
tax paid or payable at the applicable tax rates in accordance with
the relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC. During
the year 2020, income tax credit was approximately HK$4.2 million
because the operation result was in loss position (2019: income tax
expense HK$7.2 million).

GOODWILL

Oon 1 April 2019, the Company acquired 100% interest in Splendid
Gains Group from Splendid Gains Holdings Limited for a cash
consideration of HK$180.0 million (the “Acquisition”). A goodwill
of approximately HK$134.0 million was recognised based on the
difference between the purchase consideration and the fair values of
the total identifiable net assets of Splendid Gains Group at the date of
the Acquisition.

The performance of Splendid Gains Group has been severely affected
due to the COVID-19 Outbreak. Since April 2020, the Splendid Gains
Group has experienced loss in key overseas customers, cancellation
or reduction of orders or requests for delayed delivery by overseas
customers, and resulted in a significant decline of revenue in 2020 as
compared to last year. Management of the Company does not expect
this situation to easily be resumed to normal having considered
the impacts of COVID-19 Outbreak and the current deteriorating
political and economic relationships between China and overseas
countries which significantly affects the apparel industry and business.
Accordingly, the Company has recalculated the recoverable amount
of the Splendid Gains Group as at 31 December 2020 resulted in an
impairment loss of approximately HK$122.6 million being recognised
which has reduced the carrying value of the goodwill to approximately
HK$11.4 million. For details, please refer to note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements in this report.
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INVENTORIES

Inventories balance increased from approximately HK$71.9 million
as at 31 December 2019 to approximately HK$72.4 million as at
31 December 2020 due to delay in shipment resulting from the
COVID-19 Outbreak which resulted in an increase in the inventory
turnover days (2020: 42 days; 2019: 33 days).

TRADE RECEIVABLE

Trade receivable decreased (31 December 2020: HK$119.1 million;
31 December 2019: HK$176.9 million) which in line with the decrease
in revenue during the year 2020.

We generally grant customers of our Apparel Supply Chain Servicing
Business a credit period of 30 to 90 days and they are generally
required to settle their trade balances with us by bank transfer or by
cheque.

Our trade receivable turnover days for the year 2020 were 79 days
(2019: 43 days) which increased due to the delay in payment by our
customers.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLE

Trade and bills payable decreased (31 December 2020: HK$178.5
million; 31 December 2019: HK$216.5 million) because less purchases
were made before the current year end.

We generally enjoy a credit term of up to 90 days to settle payment.
Our trade and bills payable turnover days for the year 2020 were 115
days (2019: 77 days). Increased in turnover days was because delay of
settlements to the suppliers were noted during the year 2020.

BORROWINGS

The Group had bank borrowings as at 31 December 2020 in the sum
of approximately HK$126.6 million which are denominated in HKS.
All bank borrowings were made from banks in Hong Kong at floating
interest rates. As at 31 December 2020, all bank borrowings were
repayable within five years of which approximately HK$115.2 million
was repayable within one year, approximately HK$7.2 million was
repayable between one to two years and approximately HK$4.2 million
was repayable between two to five years and all subject to repayable
on demand clauses. No financial instruments were used for hedging
purposes, nor were there any foreign currency net investments
hedged by current borrowings and/or other hedging instruments.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the year 2020, the Group maintained a healthy liquidity
position, with working capital financed by both internal resources and
bank borrowings. As at 31 December 2020, cash and cash equivalents
amounted to approximately HK$179.8 million, of which approximately
HK$118.6 million denominated in HKS, approximately HK$46.2 million
in Renminbi, approximately HK$14.5 million in United States dollar and
approximately HK$0.5 million in other currencies. As at 31 December
2020, the current ratio of the Group was 1.2 (31 December 2019:
1.3). The Group was in a strong net cash position as at 31 December
2020. The Group has sufficient and readily available finance resources
for general working capital requirement and foreseeable capital
expenditure.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the period under review. The Group strives
to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit
assessments and evaluations of the financial status of its customers.
To manage liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the Group's
liquidity position to ensure that sufficient financial resources are
available in order to meet its funding requirements and commitment
timely.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations.

Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial transactions
or recognised assets or liabilities are denominated in a currency that
is not the entity’s functional currency. For group companies with
Renminbi or US dollars as their functional currency, foreign exchange
risk arises primarily from translation of amounts denominated in
foreign currencies. The Group manages its foreign exchange risk by
closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates.

The Group has investments in the PRC, whose net assets are exposed
to foreign currency translation risk. Currency exposure arising from
the net assets of the Group's investments in the PRC can be managed
through dividends paid outside the PRC.

During the year 2020, the Group did not commit to any financial
instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign currency risk.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There has been no material change in the capital structure of the
Company during the year 2020. The capital of the Company comprises
ordinary shares and other reserves.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any significant
capital commitments (31 December 2019: Nil).

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

To determine the eligibility of the shareholders of the Company to
attend the annual general meeting to be held on Thursday, 27 May
2021 (the "AGM"), the register of members will be closed from
Monday, 24 May 2021 to Thursday, 27 May 2021, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order
to be entitled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting, all
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’'s Hong Kong Branch share registrar, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, 21 May 2021.

INFORMATION ON EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 1,179 employees,
including the executive Directors. Total staff costs (including
Directors’ emoluments) for the year ended 31 December 2020
were approximately HK$74.8 million, as compared to approximately
HK$86.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2019. Remuneration
is determined with reference to market norms as well as individual
employees’ performance, qualification and experience.
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On top of basic salaries, bonuses may be paid with reference to the
Group's performance as well as individual’s performance. Other staff
benefits include contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefits scheme in Hong Kong and the provision of pension funds,
medical insurance, unemployment insurance and other relevant
insurance for employees who are employed by our Group pursuant
to the PRC and Cambodia rules and regulations and the prevailing
regulatory requirements.

The salaries and benefits of the Group’'s employees are kept
at a competitive level and employees are rewarded on a
performance-related basis within the general framework of the
Group’s salary and bonus system, which is reviewed annually. The
Group also operates a share option scheme adopted by the Company
on 24 December 2012 (“Share Option Scheme”) where options to
subscribe for shares may be granted to the Directors and employees
of the Group.

The Company did not grant any share option under the Share Option
Scheme during the current and prior years. Details of the Share Option
Scheme are disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
on pages 69 to 71 of this annual report.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set
out in Notes 34 and 24 to the consolidated financial statements in this
report, respectively.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group did not hold any
significant investment in equity interest in any other company.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have plan for material
investments and capital assets.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, the Group did not
have any material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures during the year 2020.

CHARGE OF ASSETS

There was no charge on the Group’s assets as at 31 December 2020
(31 December 2019: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2020 (31 December 2019: Nil).

NEW BUSINESS OPPORTUNITY

There was no New Business Opportunity (as defined in the
Company’s prospectus dated 31 December 2012 (the “Prospectus”)
headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders — New Business
Opportunity”) referred by the controlling shareholders of the
Company (the “Controlling Shareholders”) as provided under the
non-competition undertaking.

IMPORTANT EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there is no important event
affecting the Company and its subsidiaries which has occurred after
the reporting period.
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EZCAENTEEERELER - TRHEH  ourBoard is responsible and has general powers for the management

%

BEEeRENAEEREEAFRHAEMHE  and conduct of the business. The following table sets forth information

regarding members of the Board during the year and up to the date of
this annual report:

ZEHH

Appointment Date

BITES Executive Directors
BmERKEE Mr. Huang Chih Shen —E——FNAA=+NA

28 September 2011 50
=EEEX T Ms. Huang Li Hun, Serlina —E-EF - A+ MWH

14 February 2020 52
PR AL R S A+ Mr. Chan Hung Kwong, Patrick* —E——F+=-HA=+mWm™A

24 December 2012 56
BYEHTES Independent

Non-executive Directors

EE®HEE Mr. Wong Ting Kon —E——#+-RA=+mWmA

24 December 2012 50
T + Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina —E——H+-HZ=+mWEH

24 December 2012 48
SRIEE S A Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence ~ —ZT——fF+_- A —+WH

24 December 2012 73
PRIRM 1B 4 Dr. Chan Chung Bun, Bunny —ET——F+-A=+MH

24 December 2012 63

e R_T_TF-A+MBET

* Resigned on 14 February 2020
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CHAIRMAN, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER & EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

Mr. Huang Chih Shen (E&R), aged 50, is the chairman, chief
executive officer and an executive Director of the Company, and one
of the founders of the Group. He was appointed as the Director with
effect from 28 September 2011. Mr. Huang is primarily responsible for
the overall management, operations and the charting and reviewing
of corporate directions and strategies of the Group. Mr. Huang has
approximately 25 years of experience in the business of the garment
industry. Prior to establishing the Group in 2003, he has been a
director of Shing Fun Knitting & Garment Limited, a related company,
since March 1994. Mr. Huang is one of the founders and has been
the director of Speedy Garment Manufacturing (Hong Kong) Company
Limited (“Speedy Garment”), an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, since its incorporation in 2004. Furthermore, he
has been the director of most of the Group’s subsidiaries, including
Jointex Garment Manufacturing Limited ("Jointex Garment”),
Dongguan Speedy Garment Manufacturing Company Limited (“Speedy
Dongguan”), Pageant Enterprise (Hong Kong) Limited (“Pageant”) and
Well Faith Enterprise Limited (“Well Faith”). Mr. Huang was appointed
as a Honorary President of the Hong Kong Association of Youth
Development since November 2017. Mr. Huang was a director of
2010/2011 the 43rd, an advisor of 2011/2012 the 44th, 2012/2013 the
45th, 2013/2014 the 46th, 2014/2015 the 47th and 2015/2016 the 48th
of Yan Chai Hospital Board Office. Mr. Huang received his secondary
school education in Hong Kong until March 1986. As at 31 December
2020, Mr. Huang held 100% interest in Sky Halo Holdings Limited (“Sky
Halo"), our corporate Controlling Shareholder.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Huang Li Hun, Serlina (EE1), aged 52, is appointed as
our executive Director on 14 February 2020. She has over 26 years
of experience in the textile industry and the garment field in Hong
Kong, the PRC, Europe and the United States of America. Ms. Huang
graduated from the Lingnan University in Hong Kong in 1993 with a
Higher Diploma in Banking & Finance and subsequently obtained a
bachelor’s degree in Business Administration in 1996. She joined Well
Faith, a subsidiary of the Company, in April 2016 and is currently the
managing director of Well Faith. She is responsible for managing Well
Faith’s business, including sales and marketing. Ms. Huang is the sister
of Mr. Huang Chih Shen, an executive Director and the controlling
shareholder of the Company. As at 31 December 2020, Ms. Huang held
approximately 0.02% interest in the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Ting Kon (EE#), aged 50, is an independent
non-executive Director. He joined the Group on 24 December 2012
when he was appointed as an independent non-executive Director. He
holds a bachelor’'s degree in commerce from University of Windsor,
Canada. Mr. Wong is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) of
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. Wong is currently a partner of Chan Wong & Company C.PA.
Mr. Wong has been serving as an independent non-executive director
of Bortex Global Limited (stock code: 08118) since October 2017 and
he was an independent non-executive director of Inno Tech Holdings
Limited (stock code: 08202) from February 2018 to August 2018.

Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina (Z B M), aged 48, is an
independent non-executive Director. She joined the Group on
24 December 2012 when she was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director. She obtained a bachelor degree in Laws from
City University of Hong Kong in 1995 and a master degree of Laws in
International & Commercial Law from University of Sheffield in 1996.
Ms. Pang was admitted as a solicitor in 1999 and is currently a solicitor
and work in private practice.
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Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence (R &%), aged 73, is
an independent non-executive Director. He joined the Group on
24 December 2012 when he was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director. Mr. Chang obtained a bachelor’'s degree in
arts from the University of Hong Kong in November 1970, a diploma
in education from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in December
1976 and a master’s degree in education from Harvard University in
June 1981. Mr. Chang was the principal of Jockey Club Ti-I College
from January 1989 to August 2000. Mr. Chang was the headmaster
of Diocesan Boys' School from September 2000 to August 2012.
Mr. Chang has been serving as an independent non-executive director
of Dragon King Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 08493) since
January 2018. Mr. Chang is also at present a freelance writer for
SingTao Newspaper and Headline Daily.

Dr. Chan Chung Bun, Bunny (BR#x#2) , aged 63, is an independent
non-executive Director. He joined the Group on 24 December 2012
when he was appointed as an independent non-executive Director.
Dr. Chan has been serving as independent non-executive director
of Great Harvest Maeta Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 3683)
since September 2010, Li Ning Company Limited (stock code: 2331)
since June 2004, Glorious Sun Enterprises Limited (stock code: 393)
since June 2019, and MTR Corporation Limited (Stock code: 66) since
May 2020. Dr. Chan has over 30 years of experience in the garment
industry and is currently the chairman of Prospectful Holdings Limited.
Dr. Chan is active in community affairs in Hong Kong. He is a member
of the Court of the Open University of Hong Kong from 2012. Dr. Chan
was appointed Justice of the Peace in 2002 and awarded the Bronze
Bauhinia Star medal in 2004, Silver Bauhinia Star medal in 2009 and
Gold Bauhinia Star medal in 2014 by the Government of Hong Kong.
Dr. Chan was conferred Doctor of Business Administration, honoris
causa by the Open University of Hong Kong in December 2013.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yu Ka Gung (:REB) , aged 34, the company secretary and the
chief financial officer of the Company, is in charge of planning and
management of accounting, finance related matters and corporate
reporting of the Group. Mr. Yu joined the Group in October 2017 as
the financial controller of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Yu had worked as financial controller in a listed
company in Hong Kong. He has more than 10 years of experience
working in accounting, financial management and auditing. Mr. Yu
obtained a bachelor’'s degree in Accounting from Edinburgh Napier
University and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Adapting and adhering to recognised standards of corporate
governance principles and practices has always been one of the top
priorities of the Company. The Board believes that good corporate
governance is one of the key areas that lead to the success of the
Company and in balancing the interests of shareholders, customers
and employees, and the Board is devoted to ongoing enhancements
of the efficiency and effectiveness of such principles and practices.

During the year 2020, the Company had complied with the code
provisions (the “Code Provisions”) set out in the Corporate Governance
Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), except for the
following deviation:

()  Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The roles of the chairman
and the chief executive officer of the Company are not separate
and both are performed by Mr. Huang Chih Shen. Since the
Directors meet regularly to consider major matters affecting
the operations of the Company, the Directors consider that this
structure will not impair the balance of power and authority
between the Directors and the management of the Company
and believe that this structure will enable the Company to make
and implement decisions promptly and efficiently. The Company
understands the importance to comply with the Code Provision
A.2.1 and will continue to consider the feasibility of appointing a
separate chief executive officer.

(i)  Under Code Provision A.6.7, independent non-executive
Directors should attend general meetings and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. Dr. Chan
Chung Bun, Bunny, an independent non-executive Director of
the Company, did not attend the Company’s 2019 annual general
meeting due to his other business commitments. Dr. Chan
often provides valuable advice to the Company with his skills,
experience and expertise and he will strive to attend future
general meeting(s) of the Company so as to keep a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders of the Company.
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CODE OF CONDUCT FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for
securities transactions. All Directors confirmed that, after specific
enquiries were made by the Company, they have complied with the
required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code throughout
the period from 1 January 2020 to the date of the Board meeting
approving the annual results announcement for the year 2020.

The Company has also adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by relevant employees on terms no less exacting than
the required standard set out in the Model Code. All the relevant
employees who, because of their office or employment, are likely to
be in possession of inside information in relation to the Company’s
securities has been requested to follow such code when dealing in
the securities of the Company.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Board currently comprises six Directors, of which two are
executive Directors, and four are independent non-executive Directors.
The composition of the Board and the biographical details of each
Director are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management Profile” on pages 19 to 23 of this annual report.

During the year 2020, save for the appointment of Ms. Huang Li Hun,
Serlina as an executive Director with effect from 14 February 2020
and the resignation of Mr. Chan Hung Kwong, Patrick as an executive
Director with effect from 14 February 2020, there was no change in
the composition of the Board.
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BOARD MEETINGS

The Board discusses the overall strategy as well as the operational
and financial performance of the Company. Other Board meetings
will be held when necessary. Such Board meetings involve the active
participation, either in person or through other electronic means of
communication, of a majority of Directors. The table below sets out
the attendance of all members of the Board at the meetings held
during the year 2020:

EEHER
Directors’

Attendance
P
Board Meeting

Executive Directors:
Mr. Huang Chih Shen (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) 5/5
Ms. Huang Li Hun, Serlina (appointed on 14 February 2020)

:H+EEIZ§§1E) 5/5
Btk EE (RZE_TF Mr. Chan Hung Kwong, Patrick

ZRATMHARE) (resigned on 14 February 2020) 11
BYFHTES: Independent Non executive Directors:
BEEBRKLE Mr. Wong Ting Kon 5/5
B0k g Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina 5/5
RIS Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence 5/5
BRI B+ Dr. Chan Chung Bun, Bunny 5/5
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There are currently four independent non-executive Directors who
represent over one half of the Board and Mr. Wong Ting Kon has the
appropriate professional qualifications as required by the Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules.

Appropriate notices are given to all Directors in advance for attending
regular and other Board meetings. Meeting agendas and other
relevant information are provided to the Directors in advance of Board
meetings. All Directors are consulted to include additional matters in
the agenda for Board meetings.
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Directors have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary with a view to ensuring that Board procedures, and all
applicable rules and regulations, are followed.

Both draft and final versions of the minutes are sent to all Directors
for their comment and records. Minutes of Board meetings are kept by
the company secretary and such minutes are open for inspection at
any reasonable time on reasonable prior notice by any Director.

GENERAL MEETING

All Directors, except for Dr. Chan Chung Bun, Bunny, attended the
annual general meeting of the Company on 25 May 2020.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and managing the
Company's affairs, including the responsibilities for the adoption
of long term strategies and appointing and supervising senior
management to ensure that the operation of the Group is conducted
in accordance with the objective of the Group. The Board is also
responsible for determining the Company’s corporate governance
policies which include: (i) development and review of the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance; (ii) review and
monitoring of the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management; (iii) review and monitor the
issuer’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; (iv) develop, review and monitoring of the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and (v) review of the Company’s disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

While at all times the Board retains full responsibility for guiding
and monitoring the Company in discharging its duties, certain
responsibilities are delegated to various Board committees which
have been established by the Board to deal with different aspects of
the Company’s affairs. Unless otherwise specified in their respective
written terms of reference as approved by the Board, these Board
committees are governed by the Company's articles of association
as well as the Board's policies and practices (in so far as the same
are not in conflict with the provisions contained in the articles of
association). With the new composition of members of the nomination
committee, remuneration committee, audit committee and conflicts
committee, the independent non-executive Directors will be able to
effectively devote their time to perform the duties required by the
respective Board committees.
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The Board has also delegated the responsibility of implementing
its strategies and the day-to-day operation to the management of
the Company under the leadership of the executive Directors. Clear
guidance has been made as to the matters that should be reserved to
the Board for its decision which include matters on, inter alia, capital,
finance and financial reporting, internal controls, communication
with shareholders, Board membership, delegation of authority and
corporate governance.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation of the
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group. The financial statements set out on pages 88 to
176 were prepared on the basis set out in Note 2.1 to the financial
statements. Financial results of the Group are announced in a timely
manner in accordance with statutory and/or regulatory requirements.
The declaration of reporting responsibility issued by the external
auditors of the Company on the Company's financial statements is
set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 76 to 87 of this
annual report.

Throughout the year 2020, the Company complied with Rules
3.10(1), (2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. Except as disclosed in the
section “Directors and Senior Management Profile” above, there is
no financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship
among members of the Board.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent in accordance with the guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed Director receives relevant guideline materials
and attends a training regarding the duties and responsibilities of
being a Director, the relevant laws and regulations applicable to the
Directors, duty of disclosure of interest of the Group. Continuing
briefings and professional development to Directors will be arranged
whenever necessary.

During the year 2020, the Directors have attended external training
and/or seminars and have read materials covering topics such as
business and performance of the Company and accounting issues.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL

All independent non-executive Directors have entered into letters of
appointment with the Company for a specific term of three years,
subject to re-election.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, at each
annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for the time being
shall retire from office by rotation. However, if the number of Directors
is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than
one third shall be the retiring Directors. The Directors who shall retire
in each year will be those who have been the longest in the office
since their last re-election or appointment, but as for persons who
became or were last re-elected as Directors on the same day, those
who should retire will (unless they otherwise agree among themselves)
be determined by lot. Such retiring Directors may, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting. All Directors
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until
the first general meeting of shareholders after their appointment and
be subject to re-election at such meeting and all Directors appointed
by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee on 24 December
2012 with written terms of reference in compliance with Code
Provisions A.5.2. Its terms of reference are available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the nomination committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board on a regular basis; to
identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members;
to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors; and to make recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors.
The nomination committee comprises 3 independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence (Chairman),
Mr. Wong Ting Kon and Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina.
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During the year 2020, one meeting of the nomination committee was
held and the attendance records of individual committee members are
as follows:

HE
ETERRE

Number of
Meetings
Attended/Held

RIS A Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence 1/1

EE®RLE Mr. Wong Ting Kon 11

i 2+ Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina 11
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When identifying suitable candidates for directorship, the nomination
committee will carry out the selection process by making reference
to the skills, experience, education background, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, and also the Company’s needs and other relevant
statutory requirements and regulations required for the positions.
All candidates must be able to meet the standards as set forth in
Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to be
appointed as an independent non-executive Director should also meet
the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Qualified candidates will then be recommended to the Board for
approval.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy in September
2013 and amended the policy in December 2018. Pursuant to the
board diversity policy, the nomination committee will carry out
the selection process by making reference to a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
background and ethnicity, in addition to educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. If it
involves the appointment of an independent non-executive director
of the Board, the Nomination Committee shall also consider the
perspectives, skills and experience that the person can bring to the
Board, and how the person would contribute to the diversity of the
Board. The Company shall take into account its own business model
and specific needs, and disclose the rationale for the factors it uses
for this purpose. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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The following is a chart showing the diversity profile of the Board as at
the date of this annual report:

Chinese
EIN

Ethnicity Age Group Directorship with
503 FHRER the Company
(Number of years)
EEARRAT
E (F8)

For the purpose of implementation of the board diversity policy, the
following measurable objectives were adopted and achieved:

—
—

) at least one third of the members of the Board shall be
independent non-executive directors;

(2) at least one of the members of the Board shall have obtained
accounting or other professional qualifications,

(3) at least 40% of the members of the Board shall have more than
20 years of experience in the garment industry and shall have

China-related work experience; and

(4) at least one of the members of the Board shall have property
investment and development experience.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee on 24 December
2012 with written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 3.25
and 3.26 of the Listing Rules. The written terms of reference of the
remuneration committee was adopted in compliance with Code
Provisions B.1.2. Its terms of reference are available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee are to make
recommendation to the Board on the overall remuneration policy
and structure relating to all Directors and senior management of
the Group and to ensure none of the Directors determine their own
remuneration. The emoluments of executive Directors are determined
based on the skills, knowledge, individual performance as well as
contributions, the scope of responsibility and accountability of such
Directors, taking into consideration the Company’s performance
and prevailing market conditions. The remuneration policy of
independent non-executive Directors is to ensure that they are
adequately compensated for their efforts and time dedicated to the
Company's affairs including their participation in respective Board
committees. The emoluments of independent non-executive Directors
are determined with reference to their skills, experience, knowledge,
duties and market trends. The remuneration committee consists of
3 independent non-executive Directors namely Ms. Pang Yuen Shan,
Christina (Chairlady), Mr. Wong Ting Kon and Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung,
Terence.

Details of remuneration of Directors are set out in Note 34 to the
financial statements.

During the year 2020, one meeting of the remuneration committee
was held to, amongst others, assess performance of executive
directors, approve terms of the executive directors’ service contracts,
and review and approve the remuneration packages of the Directors
and senior management of the Company. The attendance records of
individual committee members are as follows:

HE
ETEERE

Number of
Meetings
Attended/Held

EZ05] Ee G Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina 11
EE®HEE Mr. Wong Ting Kon 11
SRIVEE SR A Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence 11
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on 24 December 2012
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 and Rule
3.22 of the Listing Rules. The written terms of reference of the audit
committee was adopted in compliance with Code Provisions C.3.3
to C.3.7. Its terms of reference are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the audit committee, among other things,
are to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditors, review the financial
statements and provide material advice in respect of financial
reporting, and oversee risk management and internal control
procedures of the Company at least annually. The audit committee
consists of 3 independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong
Ting Kon (Chairman), Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina and Mr. Chang
Cheuk Cheung, Terence.

The audit committee reports to the Board and has held
regular meetings since its establishment to review and make
recommendations to improve the Group's financial reporting process
and internal controls.

During the year 2020, two audit committee meetings were held to
review and discuss with the management of the Company and the
external auditors the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group, as well as internal controls and other financial reporting
matters. The attendance records of individual committee members are
set out below:

HE
ETERRE

Number of
Meetings
Attended/Held

EEBRLE Mr. Wong Ting Kon 2/2
EZ05] EeGan Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina 2/2
SR M HE SE A Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence 2/2

R-E-TF EFRHBREEGRHE.
e T TEN T pepbig ENCL)
o

During the year 2020, the Board has not taken a different view from
the audit committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of external auditors.
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CONFLICTS COMMITTEE

The Company established a conflicts committee on 24 December
2012. The primary duties of the conflicts committee are to monitor
and identify actual or potential issues of conflict of interests among
the Company’s Controlling Shareholders, and to ensure that the
Controlling Shareholders involving such conflicting interests would
take appropriate precautions and abstain from making decisions in
connection with such issues. The conflicts committee consists of four
independent non-executive Directors and one independent external
expert, Mr. Yip Yam Kuen.

During the year 2020, one meeting of the conflicts committee
were held to, amongst others, review the deed of non-competition
undertakings in respect of the Controlling Shareholders entered into
on 24 December 2012 to ensure ongoing compliance with the same
by the Controlling Shareholders. The attendance records of individual
committee members are as follows:

HE
HITERNRE

Number of
Meetings
Attended/Held

PRI 8 4 Dr. Chan Chung Bun, Bunny 1/1

EEBRLE Mr. Wong Ting Kon 11

EZG5 Ee e Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina 11

SR S A Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence 11

HERELE Mr. Yip Yam Kuen 11
B ET & AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

N2 HE-E-TFT-A=+—
B 1L BLEE AU B B AT B A AR AT IR 6
EERBEINZERMT

A& BEZRH

Audit services for the Group

During the year 2020, the fees in respect of audit services provided by
PricewaterhouseCoopers for the year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out as follows:

Bt ENHER
Fee paid/

payable
(F#xT)
(HK$'000)

1,520
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheung Kai Yiu has resigned as the company secretary on
31 March 2020. Following the resignation of Mr. Cheung Kai Yiu, Mr. Yu
Ka Gung was appointed as the company secretary on 31 March 2020.
Mr. Yu Ka Gung, being our company secretary, is primarily responsible
for the company secretarial work of the Group. Mr. Yu Ka Gung is also
the Company’s chief financial officer. The Company confirms that
Mr. Yu Ka Gung, for the year of 2020, attended no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Group establishes and
maintains appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems in order to safeguard the interests of the shareholders
and the assets of the Company against unauthorised use or
disposition, ensuring maintenance of proper books and records for the
provision of reliable financial information, and ensuring compliance
with the relevant rules and regulations. The Board is also responsible
for overseeing the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis, and for reviewing its effectiveness. The
established systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

The Group adopts a complete process style of risk management in a
functional bottom up manner, including risk identification, assessment,
evaluation and treatment. The functional areas across the Group
provide input of risks with treatments, which are appraised and
maintained. The risk management system, as well as the internal
control system, are continuous, proactive and systematic processes.

With the implementation of internal audit function, the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems is reviewed by
conducting internal audit assignments. Recommendations for major
observations of control weaknesses from the audits will be provided,
SO as to resolve material internal control defects.
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The Audit Committee, which was delegated by the Board, has
conducted a review, via an appointed Certified Public Accountant
firm to perform internal audit function, on the effectiveness of
the Group's risk management and internal control system put in
place by management covering all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls of the Company and
its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2020. The Audit
Committee considered that the risk management and internal control
system of the Group are effective and adequate.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The following procedures for shareholders of the Company to convene
an extraordinary general meeting ("EGM") of the Company are
prepared in accordance with the Articles of Association as follows:

(1) Two or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company;, shall have the right, by written notice, to require
an EGM to be called by the Directors of the Company for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

(2)  Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company at the following:

Principal office of the Company in Hong Kong

Address: 19/F, Perfect Industrial Building
31 Tai Yau Street, San Po Kong, Kowloon
Hong Kong

Email: info@speedy-global.com

(3) If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board does not proceed
duly to convene the meeting to be held within a further 21 days,
the requisitionists themselves or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them may do
so in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
meetings may be convened by the Board, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.
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For matters in relation to the Board, the shareholders can contact the
Company at the following:

Address:  19/F, Perfect Industrial Building,
31 Tai Yau Street, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Email: info@speedy-global.com
Tel: (852) 3583 1111
Fax: (852) 3583 1118

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company, a
shareholder should lodge a written notice of his or her proposal
(“Proposal”) with his or her detailed contact information at the
Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the Board will be asked to include the Proposal in the
agenda for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the shareholders for consideration
of the Proposal raised by the shareholder concerned at the general
meeting varies according to the nature of the Proposal as follows:

—

(1) At least 14 days' notice in writing if the Proposal requires

approval by way of ordinary resolution of the Company.

(2) At least 21 days’ notice in writing if the Proposal requires
approval by way of a special resolution of the Company in an
EGM of the Company or an ordinary resolution of the Company
in an annual general meeting of the Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION

The Board recognises the importance of good communications with
all shareholders. The Company believes that maintaining a high level
of transparency is a key to enhance investor relations. The Company
is committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure of corporate
information to its shareholders and public investors.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its corporate
publications including annual reports and public announcements.
Extensive information about the Company's activities for the year
ended 31 December 2020 has been provided in this annual report.
While the AGM provides a valuable forum that facilitates direct
communications between the Board and its shareholders, the
Company also maintains its website www.speedy-global.com to
provide an alternative communication channel for the public and
its shareholders. All corporate communication and Company’s
latest updates are available on the Company's website for public’'s
information.

During the year 2020, there has been no significant change in the
Company'’s constitutional documents.

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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ABOUT SPEEDY GLOBAL

Speedy Global Holdings Limited (referred below as the “Group”)
is primarily engaged in the apparel supply chain servicing
business in the year of 2020. The Group specialises on
product design and development, fashion trend ascertaining
and sampling, raw material sourcing, production order and
merchandise sourcing management, quality control, packaging,
inventory management and logistics management. As a leading
supply chain service provider, the Group sources and delivers
high quality products, such as woven wear, cut-and-sewn
knitwear and sweater knitwear, to a number of owners or agents
of global reputable brands across continents.

The Group appointed Allied Sustainability and Environmental
Consultants Group Limited (stock code: 8320) as an independent
consultant to prepare the Report and to conduct materiality
assessment on the Group's sustainable development.

ABOUT THE REPORT

2.1. Introduction

This is the fifth Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG”) Report (the “Report”) published by the Group.
With a vision of “Weaving a Value-added Garment Supply
Chain”, the Group would like to share its efforts in retaining
competitiveness in the garment market, preserving a close-
knit team and community and moving toward sustainability
in this Report.

2.2. Reporting Standards

The Report was prepared in accordance with the ESG
Reporting Guide set out in the Appendix 27 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). In preparation of the Report, the Group strictly
adhered to the principles of Materiality, Quantitative,
Balance and Consistency to disclose the ESG-related
measures and performances.

The corporate governance of the Group was prepared in
accordance with all applicable code provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code under Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange. Information regarding
the Group's corporate governance was set out separately
in the “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report.
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2.3. Reporting Scope

The Report summarised the ESG performances of the
Group during the 2020 financial year from 1 January 2020
to 31 December 2020 (the “Reporting Period”).

The Report covered the operations of the apparel supply
chain services. The reporting scope included the following
major business units of the Group:

o Speedy Garment Manufacturing (Hong Kong)
Company Limited,;

° Jointex Garment Manufactory Limited;

° Dongguan Speedy Garment Manufacturing Company
Limited;

° Koyip Garment (Huizhou) Manufactory Limited;
° Pageant Enterprise (Hong Kong) Limited,
° Well Faith Enterprise Limited; and

° Agile Sweater (Cambodia) Company Limited

Part of the Group’s manufacturing process was outsourced
to independent contractors, therefore, the relevant
disclosure was excluded from the Report.

The Group’s businesses in apparel retail and property
investment were also excluded from the Report as no
transaction was recorded during the Reporting Period.
Likewise, the Report excluded the Group’s remaining
subsidiaries because of the insignificant level of impact of
their operations on the Group's environmental and social
aspects. However, the Group shall consider any ESG-related
impacts due to any major future change in the business
scope of these subsidiaries.
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2.4. Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality

2.5.

Assessment

The Group believed that the perspective of stakeholders
could provide guidance on its long-term business
development. In this connection, the Group is dedicating to
promoting active stakeholder engagement via establishing
effective communication channels and collecting their
feedback.

With the assistance of the external consultant, the Group
has identified the following material issues:

HEEERE
Social Material Issues

o BT B R
Compliances with relevant social laws
o EmkikEEE
Product and service quality
e [EEEHIAER
Employment and labour standards
. BEEREEL D
Occupational health and safety

By carrying out a materiality assessment, the Group was
able to grasp a profound understanding of stakeholders’
perspectives and insights. The Board shall take the
identified material issues into consideration in terms of the
Group's ESG approaches and measures. The Group would
continue to review the material issues and report on its
ESG performances in a transparent manner.

Contact Information

For any comments or recommendations on the Report,
please contact the Group through the contacts details set
out below:

19/F, Perfect Industrial Building,
31 Tai Yau Street,

San Po Kong,

Hong Kong

Tel:  (852) 3583 1111
Fax: (852) 3583 1118
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One of the core objectives of the Group was to build its
brand with advanced service and quality products in the
garment apparel industry. Accordingly, the Group has been
dedicated to upholding its standards in light of delivering
premium products and services to tailor customers’
preferences.

As one of the leading providers in the garment apparel
industry, the Group constantly sought improvements on
the design and quality of all of the Group’s products.
In addition, the Group regularly reviewed and adjusted
the cost, production, quality, technology and design in
accordance with market demands and trends in order to
satisfy its niche market.

To provide innovative and customised designs, the Group
has set up the Research and Development Centres (the
“Centres”) with showrooms. On one hand, the Centres
ensured that all products and designs met customers’
requirements and expectations. On the other hand, the
Centres constantly drove improvements and innovation
in products and services by providing tailored designs.
With the establishment of the Centres, the Group was able
to leverage its extensive knowledge of market trends to
create advanced products.

% RE R Prototypes created for customers’ approval

Product Design W E|% S R s aTEs

and Development grgers with designs received from customers

$

= ps || [3 [t
R #F #‘—lﬁtlﬁ Sgﬁgjgﬁeﬁoﬁ;s% Eastgon?efo{n t%é% of fabric
Rowstateridl gy gp o) AR IR AT RIS

Select and recommend quality raw material suppliers

¥

somm  BEREESBAMESHUEEAER

Production RIETEHETTERRD B L =
Management Retain and manage a diversified list of third-party manufacturers and

$

allocate production according to requirements of different sales orders

P Bt FEEHRAEERERZEERNER

Distribution

Warehousing, inventory control and delivery of products to designated
warehouses and retail outlets
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3.2. Supply Chain Management

The Group recognised the suppliers and contractors as
a crucial part of ensuring product quality and delivery.
Thus, the Group’s operational model and policy focused
on enhancing the management of suppliers/contractors’
quality. To diversify the supply chain, the Group anticipated
to expand the geographic spread of suppliers through
engaging suppliers located in Southeast Asia, including
Cambodia.

Under the operational model, the Group forced
implementations to oversee its suppliers/contractors and
conducted assessment on them. By this means, the Group
shall exclude all suppliers/contractors that did not pass or
undergo the assessment.

The Group has set up a monitoring system to manage the
procurement practices. For instance, the system kept track
of the purchasing price of raw materials for the Group's
long-term evaluation. The Group also reviewed the system
records periodically to identify any abnormal fluctuation in
terms of prices and supplies. Besides, all the procurement
procedures were standardised to ensure that suppliers
were in compliance with all relevant laws and regulations.

The breakdown of suppliers by geographic location were
listed as below:

EBEES
5
BAH
R P
B

PANN i
A/

TEHE
R
HE
=
st

HEREHE
Breakdown by Number of
Geographic Location suppliers
Cambodia 26
Hong Kong 97
Italy 4
Macau 1
PRC 508
Taiwan 1
Turkey 1
UK 1
Vietnam 3
Germany 1
Total 643
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3.3. Product Quality and Safety

To further enhance competitiveness, the Group has placed
a high emphasis on the policies of quality assurance and
product responsibility. In this instance, the Group invited
the National Product Quality Supervision and Inspection
Centre for Apparel and Garment Products of Textile
Industry to conduct checks on the quality of fabrics and
garments.

In recognition of the Group’s ongoing effort, the Business
Social Compliance Initiative, a recognised initiative aiming
at improving social performance in the increasingly
complex global supply chains, awarded the Group with
the quality management certification. This certification
demonstrated the Group’s dedication to deliver quality
products and build customers’ satisfaction. In pursuance
of additional global accreditation, the Group is committed
to further providing tailored and high-quality products and
services for customers.

Throughout the value chain, starting from product design
to delivery, the Group has fully complied with all standard
requirements and relevant laws and regulations. As a
result of the Group's effort in upholding product and
service quality, there was no material complaint or product
recall over the Reporting Period. However, in case of any
future complaint, the Group shall respond in a timely and
professional manner to address the issues and develop
measures to prevent recurrence of similar situations.

Product Quality

In the Cambodia factory, the Group recognised quality
control as one of its key priorities. In this regard, the
Quality Assurance (“QA") department took samples of
incoming materials through various tests to ensure the
durability and pigmentation fulfilled customers’ preference.
Clear operation guidelines and stringent standards were
posted in the work stations for employees to follow. The
Inspection department also performed quality checks at
different production stages to test the products prior to
packaging.
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Product Safety

Delivering safe products was another priority in the factory
from souring, manufacturing to packaging. The Group
established rigorous procedures and standards to inspect
the fabric materials and products. For instance, the Group
required every finished product to pass through metal
detector before shipping to prevent the attachment of
needle on the sweaters.

Intellectual Property and Data Protection

Upholding a responsible and ethical business image also
helped to enhance competitiveness; therefore, the Group
has stipulated policies to protect intellectual property
rights and the private data of all consumers, suppliers and
contractors.

In respect of suppliers’ intellectual property rights and
confidentiality, the Group safeguarded them by restricting
the use of their trademarks in any unauthorised events.
In addition, the Group has a well-established recording
system and deterioration procedures for the data collection
and handling. As outline in the Group’s internal rules, all
employees were required to adhere to the system. Besides,
the Information Technology Department strictly prohibited
unauthorised employees to access any party’s private data
through electronic devices or relevant systems.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

4.1. Cohesive Team

Devoted employees were the cornerstones of the Group’s
business success as they supported daily operation and
drove long-term development. Therefore, the Group is
devoted to creating an inclusive workplace for employees
to dedicate themselves and achieve continuous growth
with and within the Group. To build such working
environment, the Group strived to manage its human
resources in a respectful and fair manner.
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Employment and Labour Standards

The Group adopted a non-discrimination and open
recruitment approach, and selected suitable talents based
on their skills and qualifications. During the recruitment
process, candidates were required to provide proof of
qualification, identification verification documents and
working permits to eliminate the risks of hiring child and
forced labour. If any forced or child labour was discovered,
the Group would immediately intervene the violation and
offer reasonable compensation based on the SA8000
standard developed by Social Accountability International.

The Group highly concerns the employment relationship
with our employees and strictly prohibit unreasonable
dismissal of staff. The period of notice of termination is
clearly stated in the employment contract in accordance
with the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong, while there
is appropriate communication with employees.

In effort to uphold a cohesive and harmonious working
culture, the Group has established an anti-discrimination
policy in accordance with the local laws. The policy
safeguarded employees’ equal opportunities and
prohibited all kinds of discrimination regarding gender,
race, age, religion and disability in the workplace. To
enhance employees’ relationships and sense of belonging,
the Group also organised staff activities and festive
celebrations. In the purpose of protecting employees’
health, the Group did not organise any staff activities amid
the pandemic outbreak in the Reporting Period.

To attract and retain talents, the Group offered competitive
remuneration packages, additional paid leaves, reasonable
working hours and rest periods. On top of that, the
Group also provided rewards and bonus to outstanding
employees as an incentive to praise and encourage
their continuous hard work. In the Reporting Period, the
Group complied with all relevant laws and regulations on
employment and labour practices.
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As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Group had a
total of 1,179 employees. The employment breakdown by
different categories is listed as below:

BEAR

Number of

Breakdown Employees

Total Number of Employees 1,179
By Gender

Male 372
Female 807

By Geographical Location

PRC 204
Hong Kong 38
Cambodia 937

Safe and Healthy Workplace

The Group endeavoured to provide a safe and healthy
workplace for employees through risk identification
and prevention. Therefore, the Group conducted risk
assessment to identify the underlying industrial risks as
a way to initiate safety preventive measures. Moreover,
the Group carried out safety audits on site to further
analyse the relevant measures, review the efficiency of the
implemented safety measures and develop improvement
plans. On top of that, the Group provided the employees
with necessary safety equipment in the workshops to
reduce the risk and impact of industrial accidents.

The Cambodia factory implemented a number of measures
to oversee and maintain on-site safety. A Safety Committee
was established to constantly review and update safety-
related practices in the Cambodia factory. In addition to
posting safety warnings and operational guidelines, fire
safety training and urgent evacuation were conducted
regularly to enhance staff’s capacity to react and escape in
case of emergency. The Group also set up on-site medical
facilities to provide medical support for staff at all time.

As a result of the sound safety measures, the Group
complied with all applicable laws and regulations in regard
to occupational health and safety with no report of work-
related fatality in the Reporting Period.

R o ANNUAL REPORT 2020 47



IRIF B NEBIEHRS

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

48

4.2.

15 5l 52 5 fE
REERREKNN TIEBBR R E R
EHELRETNER YL NE
EEWMENER - BMAIHRETL
REABEI (EFSEEASEY
BRI EREE TE T e
BEHE AEERESRERHTH
I PINAEERER LR
R

REF
RTHREBERNEANBERA
R £2 B Il TE P BRI e AR PR AR A
IS RER LR MFHR-
BFREBREE ST R -AKED
PERBERRNRE B TAl SR
EAERALETR SREEE
BEAERMGLRIE —FRET
o

REEHRE ARBE W RERER
EREREMWBRARETEARER
BT

HESH
ER—RBEEINEERAR ALK
BEH IR AEREMENTRER
THFE - SEEEMmEE K&
ERREHERZEAES (0T
RERAG HREELEEETSH
RABCEBR BEERESR
SERARMREMEMEEERS
E28)1BE#659,0008 T A&
BB ET2EET )RS YA
EEIRGEE-

4.2

Training and Development

The Group recognised a strong workforce as the key to
maintain efficiency of its business operation, and strived to
support employees’ capacity building. Induction trainings
were provided to factory staff as a way to convey the
Group's expectations and enhance their capability to
conduct duty. In the Reporting Period, the Group has
provided employees with different training programmes,
covering topics such as production techniques and safety
standards.

Anti-corruption

To uphold an ethical and transparent business principle, the
Group has established internal policies and corresponding
standards to guide employees on preventing corruption
behaviours, including bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering. The Group has set up whistleblowing policy
and channels for employees to report on any suspected
misconduct. The senior management was responsible for
investigating the cases and taking further follow-up actions.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has not noticed any
material non-compliance with local laws and regulations
relating to anti-corruption.

Communities Engagement

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group is committed
to bringing positive impacts in the community in which
it operates. As a way to contribute back to the local
community, the Group has donated approximately
HK$659,000 to various organisations such as, World Vision,
Yau Tsim Mong Love & Care Charity Foundation Limited,
Yan Chai Hospital, Hong Kong Shine Tak Foundation
Association Limited and Humen Huaide Foundation of
Dongguan City during the Reporting Period. The Group
also encouraged employees to participate in volunteering
activities and has formed a volunteering service team.
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5. ENVIRONMENTAL CONSCIOUSNESS

5.1.

5.2.

Environmental Management

With a focus on production management, the Group always
paid close attention to the implications and importance of
environmental protection in its operations. Thus, the Group
strived to bring in sustainable values into its daily business
activities through a series of environmental control
measures.

The Group established a set of environmental management
policies in accordance with the Environmental
Management System Standards, ISO 14001, of the
International Organisation for Standardisation. In addition
to adopting the international standards, the internal
policy also followed the 12 principles of the World Wide
Responsible Apparel Production. Under such policy, the
Group prevented any non-compliance on the local relevant
environmental laws and regulations.

As a global provider outsourcing the manufacturing of
products, the Group realised its responsibility in ensuring
the environmental stewardship of its suppliers and
contractors. Thus, the Group stipulated an environmental
manual to oversee their impacts and compliance. Under
the manual, the Group required them to implement
environmental management thoroughly and comply with
all relevant environmental laws and regulations in where it
operates.

In the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with all
applicable laws and regulations in relation to environmental
protection, emissions, resource consumption and waste
management.

Energy Use and Emissions

On top of managing the performance of the contractors,
the Group also placed an emphasis on reducing its
environmental footprint. In this regard, the Group
implemented measures to periodically monitor and
progressively reduce both energy consumption and
emissions.
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Energy Consumption

The Group consumed electricity at offices, factory
buildings, showrooms, canteen, dormitory and other
common areas under its operational control; petrol fuel
for vehicular transportation; and wood fuel for generating
hot water. To conserve energy, the Group required
employees to turn off all lighting, electrical appliances and
equipment in the premises when not in use. In addition,
environmentally friendly operating guidelines are posted in
the factory buildings for staff to follow.

In support of energy conservation, 80% of the existing
lighting fixtures have been replaced by electricity-
saving devices in the Dongguan premise. Meanwhile, the
Cambodia factory integrates passive building designs to
bring in more natural lighting for electricity reduction.
Environmental audit is also conducted annually to evaluate
the feasibility of installing energy-efficient appliances.

The Group has also set up a monitoring system to evaluate
and regulate energy consumption. The system also
collected relevant energy usage data in order to initiate
future reduction plans and observe any abnormal trends.
Electricity meters were installed in the factory to monitor
consumption and perform risk assessment.

AE

Overview of Electricity Consumption
EBRE N By
Business Units Unit
BB N E KRR EHE KRB 143.0 200.6
Hong Kong Office and Showroom Mo MWwh
RERBERIRB K AR D G JKFLBF 563.9 3,227.1
Dongguan Speedy Garment Manufacturing MWh

Company Limited Note2

RERK (EM) AR QR KRB 132.0 210.3
Koyip Garment (Huizhou) Manufactory Limited N2 MWh
Agile Sweater (Cambodia) Company Limited "3 JK ELBF 2,864.7 2,478.5
Agile Sweater (Cambodia) Company Limited Nete3 MWh
BREEE JK LB 3,703.6 6,116.5
Total consumption MWh
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Fuel Type

il
Petrol Note 1
%/EE B 31

Diesel| Note 1

AR A2
Wood Fuel Note2
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Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

The decrease of electricity consumption of the Hong Kong Office
and Showroom, mainly due to reduce the use of air-conditioning.

The decrease of electricity consumption in Dongguan Speedy
Garment Manufacturing Company Limited and Koyip Garment
(Huizhou) Manufactory Limited were mainly due to less production
in the beginning stage of the COVID-19.

The increase of electricity consumption of Agile Sweater
(Cambodia) Company Limited is because the comparative figures
in 2019 were counted 9 months only from April to December.

MREREHE
Overview of Fuel Consumption

Note 1:

Note 2:

B
Unit

91,860 101,080

7,000 19,200
L
N
Tonnes

1,183 1,820

The decrease of petrol and diesel consumption was due to reduce
the use of motor vehicle and transportation.

The decrease of wood fuel consumption was due to the halted
production for a short periods in Cambodia Factory. The relevant
consumption data of wood fuel was estimated based on the
average weight of procured products.
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EBR
Indicator

HE— HEBERE PR
Scope 1: Direct GHG Emission Note2

HE = MEAE R
Scope 2: Indirect GHG Emission Note3
BRERBHNE

Total GHG emissions
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EECHAEEARE-

Greenhouse Gas and Air Emissions

As a result of the consumption of electricity, fuel and wood
combustion, direct and indirect greenhouse gases (“GHG")
and air emissions, such as particulate matter, sulphur
dioxide and nitrogen oxides were generated. Through
the monitoring system, the Group has also audited GHG
emissions as a way to review its environmental footprint
and help develop reduction plans.

B E R BB R
Ooverview of GHG Emissions Nete 1
By
Unit

M-S biE = 2,627.0 3,954.0
Tonnes of CO,
equivalent (tCOe-)

M_ftiRE = 2,727.6 3,431.6
tCO.e-

M-S iRE = 5,354.6 7,385.6
tCO.e-

Note 1:  Other air emissions (e.g. PM, sulphur oxide and nitrogen oxide)
were insignificant and not material to the Group’s operation;
therefore, the relevant data were not disclosed.

Note 2: The decrease of Scope 1 direct GHG emission was due to the drop
of fuel consumption in the Reporting period. For more details,
please refer to the Overview of Fuel Consumption table.

Note 3: The decrease of Scope 2 indirect GHG emission was due to drop
of the electricity consumption in the Reporting period. For more
details, please refer to the Overview of Electricity Consumption
table.
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As the Group recognised waste as the direct reflection of
its environmental footprints, it has taken various measures
to reduce and manage the production and manage the
handling of waste.

To decrease the production of waste, the Group constantly
encouraged employees to optimise resources where
possible. For non-disclosure of general waste and intensity,
the relevant waste data was not available because
the Group did not have an established mechanism for
collecting the relevant waste data in the factory, dormitory
and offices. However, the Group has developed plans to
gather the statistics in the future.

The Group took environmentally friendly criteria into
consideration when procuring production supplies. For
example, the Group is progressively switching into using
durable and reusable trays, hangers and cutting boards to
eliminate single-use items.

In the course of design and development, the Group used
a wide variety of fabrics for sampling and testing in the
showrooms. In order to enhance resource efficiency, the
Group required employees in the workshops and factory,
as well as the outsourced contractors, to recycle and reuse
the leftover scraps of fabric materials whenever possible.
During production, staff were instructed to collect fabric
scraps and threads for donation.

The Group did not generate a significant amount of waste
due to the nature of its operations. Thus, the relevant waste
figures and intensity were not disclosed. Regardless of the
insignificant generation of waste, the Group was dedicated
to handling and disposing such waste in accordance with
applicable laws and regulations. In addition, the Group
appointed qualified contractors to collect different types of
waste.
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AEEFZERBEIREABDE The Group mainly used packaging materials in the
ME A BRI RS) =& Cambodia factory, whereas the showrooms in Hong Kong
BEEFRAMNBEME -BREBER or PRC did not have any direct use of packaging material.
FPlRIFEZBREMBIN REETS In addition to selecting packaging materials based on
BEABREANBHBES I customers’ preference, the Group also prioritised the
EM R} selection of sustainable materials such as recyclable

plastic packaging.

BEMEEERE
Overview of Packaging Material Consumption

g By —E-EF —ZE-NE

Indicator Note 1 Unit 2020 2019

B R i 2,488 2,509

Packaging material Nt tonnes
Mzl FEBENEEMBBREASER Note 1: The disclosed figures of packaging materials represented carton

MEHANEEORME RS- boxes and plastic bags procured by the Group in the Reporting
period.
5.4. AKE®E 5.4. Water Management

AEBRNAKBREES HKFH- The Group's water consumption included the usage in
WAERTHAK BEARNEBRE the dormitory, toilets, offices and factory. Although the
SKEUKIR £ EE BT RE B Group did not encounter any issues in sourcing water,
MAGREHFHAK SHIESH it still sought ways to increase water efficiency through
IR E R T R RIBEIK - K advocating water conservation. In the Cambodia factory,
S B 3R R A IR IS R KU the Group sourced water from the nearby river and from
B KO EUK o AN SR B 72 5 A3 K 2 Al the on-site retention pond that collected storm-water. The
GEITEIE RAR o AN ARE Group treated and tested the water prior to using. Besides,
BEIRGRAKE  WEERR the Group installed on-site water meters to monitor and
EIHFEEL - review the consumption pattern.
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EBEHE
Business Units

AkEHE
Overview of Water Consumption

BEMRERRIE S K 140 115
Hong Kong Office and Showroom m?3
RSB IRIRE KA R A 7 7K 4,755 164,753
Dongguan Speedy Garment Manufacturing m?
Company Limited Mot
BERX (BEM)GRAQFMD 3K 2,718 2,917
Koyip Garment (Huizhou) Manufactory Limited Note? m?
Agile Sweater (Cambodia) Company Limited™it2 oK 79,415 89,176
Agile Sweater (Cambodia) Company Limited Nete2 m?
BAKE SJTK 87,028 256,961
Total consumption m?

M RERERPARERARRSERK (B
M) ER AR AKER D EERHN2019
BRE SRR EERD AR

Mis2: THMBKRKEBRARBELE -RERE
BEKEEIE R BRI A S I TR IR
BB SR -2 MIE A HEESKETT
B BREBRTEEERE
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Note 1: The decrease of water consumption in Dongguan Speedy Garment
Manufacturing Company Limited and Koyip Garment (Huizhou)
Manufactory Limited were mainly due to less production in beginning of
stage of COVID-19.

Note 2: In the factory, wastewater was generated from the washing machines. A
wastewater treatment system is set up on-site to treat the effluent before
discharge. The local government took sample of treat effluent every one
to two months to ensure the discharge would not bring harm to the
environment.

LOOKING FORWARD

In the bid to explore new opportunities and drive business
continuity, the Group is committed to bringing in values
of innovation, creativity and sustainability. In pursuance of
this commitment, the Group looks to promote operating
efficiency, environmental stewardship and relationship with key
stakeholders through technological advancement and active
stakeholder engagement.
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PERFORMANCE TABLE

56

BER

Indicator

HEHERBE

Energy Consumption and Intensity
T HE

Electricity Nete?

sl

Petrol M2

sz

Diesel Note 2

RS

Wood Fuel Nete3

HBEERES

Total Energy Consumption

Total Energy Intensity

BERBHEREENS

Greenhouse Gas Consumption and Intensity Note4
EE— : HEPE S

Scope 1: Direct Emission Netes

& B — - B PR e

Scope 2: Indirect Emission Note¢

BERBBYEN

Total GHG Emissions

RERBAERE
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Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

Note 6:

Note 7:

The decrease of electricity and water consumption in Dongguan Speedy
Garment Manufacturing Company Limited and Koyip Garment (Huizhou)
Manufactory Limited were mainly due to less production in beginning
stage of COVID-19.

The decrease of fuel use such as petrol and diesel was due to reduce the
use of motor vehicle and transportation.

The decrease of wood fuel consumption was due to the halted production
for one to two months in Cambodia factory.

Air emissions (e.g. PM, sulphur oxide and nitrogen oxide) were insignificant
and not material to the Group’s operation; therefore, the relevant data

were not disclosed.

The decrease of scope 1 direct GHG emission was due to drop of fuel
consumption in the Reporting period.

The decrease of scope 2 indirect GHG emission was due to drop of the
electricity consumption in the Reporting period.

Packaging materials include cardboard and plastic bags.
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The Directors are pleased to present the annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Financial Statements”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and those
of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note 29 to
the Financial Statements.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group’s principal activities
as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group and an indication of likely future development in
the Group's business, can be found in the Management Discussion
and Analysis set out on pages 10 to 18 of this annual report. This
discussion forms part of this director’s report.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group continues to update the requirements of the relevant
environmental laws and regulations applicable to it to ensure
compliance. The Group strive to minimise environmental impact by
saving electricity and encouraging recycle of office supplies and other
materials. We also require the manufacturers and the constructor
to operate in strict compliance with the relevant environmental
regulations and rules.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group continues to update the requirement of the relevant
laws and regulations in various countries and regions, particularly
in the Hong Kong, the PRC and Cambodia, applicable to it to ensure
compliance. Substantially majority of the Group’s assets are located
and the Group’s revenue is mainly derived from operations in these
areas. The Group was listed on the Stock Exchange on 15 January
2013. During the year 2020 under review, the Group complied with the
relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong, the PRC and Cambodia in
all material respects.

Key Relationships

(i) Employees
The Group offers competitive remuneration packages to attract,
retain and motivate employees. Key personnel have been part
of the management team since the inception of business.
During the year 2020 under review, the Group considered the
relationship with employees was well and the turnover rate is
acceptable and normal.
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(ii) Suppliers

The Group has developed long standing relationships with a
number of our vendors and take great care to ensure they share
our commitment to quality and ethics. The Group selects its
manufacturers and constructors carefully and requires them to
satisfy certain assessment criteria including experience, financial
strength, reputation, ability to produce high quality products and
quality control effectiveness.

(iii) Customers
The Group is committed to offer a broad and diverse range
of inspiring, value-for money, good-quality fashion to our
customers. We also stay connected with our customers in order
to meet their need. We have ongoing communications with them
through various channels like telephone, email and marketing
materials.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 and
the Group's financial position as at 31 December 2020 are set out in
the Financial Statements on pages 88 to 176 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: HK$0.03 per ordinary share).

DIVIDEND POLICY

According to the Company’s existing dividend policy, the Board shall
consider the following factors before declaring or recommending
dividends:

° the Company's actual and expected financial performance;

° retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and
each of the subsidiaries of the Group;

° the Group’s working capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements and future expansion plans;

o the Group’s liquidity position;

° general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the business, financial results and position of the
Company; and

o other factors that the Board deems to be relevant.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the
applicable laws and the Company’s Articles of Association.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 9 of this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the Financial Statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in Note 15 to the Financial Statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company had share premium, other
reserves and retained earnings in the amount of approximately
HK$99,293,000 (31 December 2019: HK$119,544,000) which is available
for distribution to the shareholders subject to conditions of the Articles
of Association.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year 2020, the Group made charitable contribution totalling
approximately of HK$659,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group's largest and five largest customers accounted
for approximately 38.8% and 77.8% of the total revenue for the year
2020. Purchases from the Group's largest and five largest suppliers,
which comprise raw material suppliers and third party manufacturers,
accounted for approximately 20.6% and 42.5% of the total purchases
for the year 2020.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, neither the Directors, their
associates, nor any shareholders who owned more than 5% of the
number of issued shares of the Company, had any beneficial interest
in any of the Group's five largest customers or suppliers during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note
29 to the Financial Statements.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company who hold office during the year and up
to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Huang Chih Shen (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Huang Li Hun, Serlina
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Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Ting Kon

Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina

Mr. Cheung Cheuk Cheung, Terence

Dr. Chan Chung Bun, Bunny

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years either from the
Listing Date or 14 February 2020 and shall continue thereafter until
terminated by, not less than three months' notice in writing served by
either party on the other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years from
15 January 2019, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
annual general meeting and until terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.

No Director is bound by any service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within 1 year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received annual confirmation on independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and all of them are considered to be
independent.

In accordance with the Company'’s Articles of Association, Ms. Pang
Yuen Shan, Christina and Mr. Cheung Cheuk Cheung, Terence are
subject to retirement by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS AND PERMITTED
INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director or other officer
of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets
of the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained
by him as a Director or other officer of the Company in defending any
proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given in
his favour, or in which he is acquitted.

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Company during the year 2020. The permitted indemnity provision is
in force for the benefit of the Directors as required by section 470 of
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong) when
the Report of the Board of the Directors prepared by the Directors
is approved in accordance with section 391(1)@) of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong).
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company or its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company or an entity connected with a Director of the
Company is or was materially interested, either directly or indirectly,
subsisting at the end of the year 2020 or at any time during the year
2020.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Group are disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management Profile” on pages 19 to 23 of this annual report.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Group fell within the following bands:

BE+-A=1t—HLFE
Year ended 31 December

—ECEF —E-NF
2020 2019
AE A
Number Number
28 Bl Emolument bands

= 500,000/ 7T Nil = HK$500,000 4 4
1,000,0017 7t 2=1,500,0007% 7T HK$1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 3 2
1,500,001/ 7T £2,000,0007% 7T HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1 -
3,000,001/% 7T 23,500,000/ 7T HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 - 1
4,000,001/% 7T 24,500,000/ 7T HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 1 -

5,500,0017% 7T £ 6,000,000/ 7T HK$5,500,001 — HK$6,000,000 -

REBEETHRAMEI6ZREMATHRENE
EFMR R HEEE—FFEIIE
RIS ERK M E34 K224 »

Further particulars regarding Director's remuneration and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in Notes 34 and 24 to the
Financial Statements, respectively.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no contract of
significance for provision of services to which the Company or its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
any controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries had a material
interest subsisting at the end of the year 2020 or at any time during
the year 2020.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on 15 January 2013
and the deed of non-competition undertakings in respect of the
Controlling Shareholders was entered into on 24 December 2012
(the "Deed of Non-Competition”). The Controlling Shareholders have
confirmed to the Company of his/its compliance with the Deed of
Non-Competition provided to the Company during the year 2020.

The conflicts committee of the Company and the independent
non-executive Directors had reviewed the status of compliance and
also the confirmations by the Controlling Shareholders and, on the
basis of such confirmations, are of the view that the Controlling
Shareholders has complied with the Deed of Non-Competition which
has been enforced by the Company in accordance with its terms.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has made an annual declaration
in respect of their compliance with the terms of non-competition
undertaking as provided in their service agreements.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the status
of compliance as well as confirmation by each executive Director of
the Company and, on the basis of such confirmation, are of the view
that such executive Directors of the Company have complied with
the non-competition undertakings under their service agreements
and these non-competition undertakings have been enforced by the
Company in accordance with its terms.

NEW BUSINESS OPPORTUNITY

There was no New Business Opportunity (as defined in the Prospectus
headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders — New Business
Opportunity”) referred by the Controlling Shareholder as provided
under the Deed of Non-Competition.

3 o ANNUAL REPORT 2020 63



EESHE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

HEXS

BRAFHABEEIN AEEERZZRE
TRAUNAARAEEALHALITLZER
ZoREBELTRA ZEXHRE/TERE
R 5 ABIR LR AR E Sl PR AT
MR RGN AEFRERE - BE_T_TFE -
SEWEXHHBAOT

ENHENEEMAX:

BEEREXERAR

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group had entered into
a number of transactions with parties which are connected persons
of the Company under the Listing Rules. These transactions are
considered to be continuing connected transactions under the Listing
Rules, which need to be disclosed herein in compliance with the
requirements under the Listing Rules or the conditions of waivers
previously granted by the Stock Exchange. Details of the continuing
connected transactions for the year 2020 are as follows:

—T—nF
2019

TET
HK$'000

Rental expenses payable or paid to:

Shing Fun International Industrial Limited

DR ("Shing Fun International”)? 1 - 794
SLRX(BM)ABRAA Jinfeng Garment (Huizhou) Company
([&g=mIM])® Limited (“linfeng Huizhou") 2 694 702
B AER X (EM)ABMR AT Yicheng Weaving Garment (Huizhou)
([MEg M) © Company Limited (“Yicheng Huizhou”)c 3 231 234
REMERK AR AT Dongguan Zhirong Garment Company
([ER3EME]) Limited ("“Dongguan Zhirong") 4 = 6,941
925 8,671

64
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100%HEs e EER (FE)ERATNHERR
5 A B X 0 6 50%HE 1 HOAA L 5% B B 45 7 6 100% 48

Ko

EHEMBERAER (EB)BRATDEDRESR
100%# 28 - M EMIER (B8 BRARAIBESR
5 HE B A B 50%HE 7 /O A8 Bk 5 B F 55 7 5 100% 4

%o

REMEHEEYXAR QA E % % HF100%%
5 i 45 BV A R 2 7 Bl fABest Connect Global
Limited# # # /5 100%# # - fBest Connect Global
Limited g5 t 72 12 iR 5 PR 2 7 B 25 18 5 100%42 2% o
RIERERARHEERCEE R BEA0%E S

a. Shing Fun International is beneficially owned as to 100% by Peakwin Group Limited
("Peakwin Group”), a company owned as to 50% by Mr. Huang Chih Shen ultimately.

b. linfeng Huizhou is beneficially owned as to 100% by Jin Feng Holdings (H.K.)
Limited, which in turn is beneficially owned as to 100% by Peakwin Group, a
company owned as to 50% by Mr. Huang Chih Shen ultimately.

C. Yicheng Huizhou is beneficially owned as to 100% by Yi Cheng Holdings (H.K.)
Limited, which in turn is beneficially owned as to 100% by Peakwin Group, a
company owned as to 50% by Mr. Huang Chih Shen ultimately.

d. Dongguan zhirong is beneficially owned as to 100% by Master Trend Garments
Limited, which in turn is beneficially owned as to 100% by Best Connect Global
Limited, which in turn is beneficially owned as to 100% by Century Grand Holdings
Limited. Century Grand Holdings Limited in turn is beneficially owned as to 50% by
Mr. Huang Chih Shen.
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Notes:

Shing Fun International as landlord and Speedy Garment, a subsidiary of the Group,
as tenant, entered into a renewed tenancy agreement dated 12 December 2017,
pursuant to which Shing Fun International agreed to lease to Speedy Garment,
Workshops A and B on 13th Floor, Wing Chai Industrial Building, Nos. 222-224 Choi
Hung Road, Nos. 27-29 Ng Fong Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong, for a term of three
years commencing on 1 January 2018 and ending on 31 December 2020 for office
use.

Another renewed tenancy agreement dated 12 December 2017 was entered into
between Shing Fun International, as landlord, and Jointex Garment, as tenant, under
which Shing Fun International agreed to lease to Jointex Garment, Workshops C and
D on 13th Floor, Wing Chai Industrial Building, Nos. 222-224 Choi Hung Road, Nos.
27-29 Ng Fong Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong, for a term of three years commencing
on 1 January 2018 and ending on 31 December 2020 for office use. Both tenancy
agreements are collectively known as “Hong Kong Office Tenancy Agreements”.

Pursuant to the Hong Kong Office Tenancy Agreements, Speedy Garment and
Jointex Garment would pay Shing Fun International monthly rentals of HK$132,330
in total.

The annual cap for the rental payable by Speedy Garment and Jointex Garment
to Shing Fun International under the Hong Kong Office Tenancy Agreements, for
each of the two years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019 and the year ending
31 December 2020, is HK$1,587,960.

The Group has moved out from the above premises on 28 June 2019 and no further
rental expense will be incurred under the Hong Kong Office Tenancy Agreements
since 28 June 2019.

Jinfeng Huizhou as landlord and Koyip Garment (Huizhou) Manufactory Ltd. (“Koyip
Huizhou"), a subsidiary of the Group, as tenant, entered into a renewed tenancy
agreement dated 12 December 2017, pursuant to which Jinfeng Huizhou agreed
to lease to Koyip Huizhou, Shenfeng Industrial Park, Julong Village, Yuanzhou Town,
Boluo County, Huizhou, the PRC, with a gross floor area of approximately 6,000
square metres, for a term of three years commencing on 1 January 2018 and
ending on 31 December 2020 for office and sample room use.

Pursuant to the tenancy agreement, Koyip Huizhou would pay Jinfeng Huizhou
annual rental of RMB648,000.

The annual cap for the rental payable by Koyip Huizhou to Jinfeng Huizhou under
the tenancy agreement, for each of the two years ended 31 December 2018 and
2019 and the year ending 31 December 2020, is RMB648,000.

The Company renewed the tenancy agreement between linfeng Huizhou and
Koyip Huizhou on 28 December 2020 for a term commencing from 1 January
2021 and ending on 31 December 2021, and set the annual cap for rental payable,
contemplated thereunder to be RMB37,200 for the year ending 31 December 2021.
For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 28 December
2020.
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Yicheng Huizhou and Koyip Huizhou entered into a renewed tenancy agreement
dated 12 December 2017, pursuant to which Yicheng Huizhou agreed to lease
to Koyip Huizhou, Shenfeng Industrial Park, Julong Village, Yuanzhou Town, Boluo
County, Huizhou, the PRC with a gross floor area of approximately 2,000 square
metres, for a term of three years commencing on 1 January 2018 and ending on
31 December 2020 for residential use.

Pursuant to the said tenancy agreement, Koyip Huizhou would paid Yicheng
Huizhou annual rental of RMB216,000.

The annual cap for the rental payable by Koyip Huizhou to Yicheng Huizhou under
the said tenancy agreement, for each of the two years ended 31 December 2018
and 2019 and the year ending 31 December 2020, is RMB216,000.

The Company renewed the tenancy agreement between Yicheng Huizhou and
Koyip Huizhou on 28 December 2020 for a term commencing from 1 January
2021 and ending on 31 December 2021, and set the annual cap for rental payable,
contemplated thereunder to be RMB16,800 for the year ending 31 December 2021.
For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 28 December
2020.

Dongguan Zhirong and Speedy Dongguan, a subsidiary of the Group, entered into a
tenancy agreement dated 12 December 2017. Pursuant to the tenancy agreement,
Dongguan Zhirong agreed to lease to Speedy Dongguan, No. 52 Fuhai Road, with a
gross floor area of approximately 36,567 square metres for factory and dormitory
uses with a monthly rental of RMB694,773 for a term of three years commencing
on 1 January 2018 and ending on 31 December 2020.

The annual cap for the rental payable by Speedy Dongguan to the Dongguan
Zhirong under the said tenancy agreement, for each of the two years ended
31 December 2018 and 2019 and the year ending 31 December 2020, is
RMB8,337,276.

The Group has moved out from the above premises on 8 October 2019 and no
further rental expense will be incurred under the above tenancy agreement since
8 October 2019.
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The continuing connected transactions mentioned above have been
reviewed by the independent non-executive Directors of the Company
who have confirmed that the transactions have entered into: (a) in
the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (b) either on
normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient comparable
transactions to judge whether they are on normal commercial terms,
on terms no less favourable to the Company than terms available to
or from (as appropriate) independent third parties; (c) in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing such transactions on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of shareholders of
the Company as a whole; and (d) within the caps or the aggregate
transaction values set out in the Company’s announcements dated
12 December 2017 and 8 October 2019.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing their findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Company in this annual report in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Reference is made to the Company’'s announcement dated 1 April
2019, Shing Fun International as landlord and Pageant, a subsidiary
of the Group, as tenant, entered into a tenancy agreement dated
1 April 2019, pursuant to which Shing Fun International agreed to
lease to Pageant, 19/F, Perfect Industrial Building, 31 Tai Yau Street,
San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong for a term commencing on 1 April
2019 and ending on 31 December 2020 for office use. Pursuant to
the tenancy agreement, Pageant would pay Shing Fun International a
monthly rental of HK$170,000. Shing Fun International is beneficially
owned as to 100% by Peakwin Group, a company owned as to 50%
by Mr. Huang Chih Shen ultimately. It was disclosed that, the entering
into of the lease and the transaction contemplated thereunder (the
“Transaction”) constituted a continuing connected transaction of the
Company. During annual audit, the Board reclassified the Transaction
as a connected transaction of the Company pursuant to the new Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards No. 16 “Leases” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accounts.
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Furthermore, reference is made to the Company’'s announcement
dated 8 October 2019, Dongguan Hongyue Garment Company Limited
("Dongguan Hongyue") as landlord and Speedy Dongguan, a subsidiary
of the Group, as tenant, entered into a tenancy agreement dated
8 October 2019, pursuant to which Dongguan Hongyue agreed to
lease to Speedy Dongguan, No.27 Huailin Road, Huaide Village, Humen
Town, Dongguan City, PRC, with a gross floor area of approximately
8,649 square feet for a term commencing on 8 October 2019 and
ending on 31 December 2020 for office and dormitory uses. Pursuant
to the tenancy agreement, Speedy Dongguan would pay Dongguan
Hongyue a monthly rental of RMB210,093 (excluding value-added
tax). As further disclosed in the announcement, the entering into of
the lease and the transaction contemplated thereunder constitute
a connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. Dongguan Hongyue is owned as to 50% by Mr. Huang
Chih Shen ultimately.

Moreover, on 6 December 2018, the Company and Splendid Gains
Holdings entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant
to which the Company conditionally agreed to acquire, and the
Splendid Gains Holdings conditionally agreed to sell the shares,
representing 100% of the issued share capital of Splendid Gains for
a cash consideration of HK$180,000,000. The Acquisition has been
completed on 1 April 2019. Upon completion of the Acquisition,
Splendid Gains Group become the wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company. Splendid Gains Group is principally engaged in
the business of manufacturing and trading of sweater knitwear
products. Further details of the Acquisition were disclosed in the
Company’s announcements dated 6 December 2018, 1 April 2019 and
6 September 2019 and the Company's circular dated 5 March 2019.
As Splendid Gains Holdings was at the date of the Acquisition owned
as to approximately 81.6% by the brother of Mr. Huang Chih Shen and
8.2% by Mr. Huang Chih Shen’s sister-in-law while Mr. Huang Chih
Shen is the ultimate controlling party and chief executive officer of
the Group, the Acquisition constituted a connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company renewed the tenancy agreements on 28 December
2020 for a term commencing from 1 January 2021 and ending on
31 December 2021 between: (i) Shing Fun and Pageant; (ii) Jinfeng
Huizhou and Koyip Huizhou; (iii) Yicheng Huizhou and Koyip Huizhou,
and (iv) Dongguan Hongyue and Speedy Dongguan. For details, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 28 December 2020.

Save as disclosed above, a summary of significant related party
transactions, which do not constitute connected transactions,
made during the year 2020 is disclosed in Note 32 to the Financial
Statements. The Company confirmed that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company's existing Share Option Scheme was approved for
adoption pursuant to a written resolution of all of our shareholders
passed on 24 December 2012 for the purpose to provide our Company
with a flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to eligible participants and for
such other purposes as the Board approve from time to time.

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Board may, at
their absolute discretion, grant or invite any person belonging to any
of the following classes to take up options to subscribe for shares:

(@ any employee, supplier/service provider, customer, partner
or joint venture partner of the Group (including any director,
whether executive and whether independent or not, of the
Group) who is in full time or part time employment with the
Company or any subsidiaries, or

(b) any person who have contributed or may contribute to the
Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company must not exceed
30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company must not exceed 10%
of the total number of shares in issue on the Listing Date unless the
Company seeks the approval of the shareholders in general meeting
for refreshing the 10% limit under the Share Option Scheme provided
that options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes of the Company will not
be counted for the purpose of calculating 10% limit.

Details of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are set
out in paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in section headed
“Statutory and General Information” in Appendix IV to the Prospectus.
The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised as
follows:
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The Share Option Scheme was adopted for a period of 10 years
commencing from 24 December 2012 and remains in force until
23 December 2022. The Company may, by resolution in general
meeting or, such date as the Board determined, terminate the Share
Option Scheme at any time without prejudice to the exercise of
options granted prior to such termination.

The exercise price per share of the Company for each option granted
shall be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion but in any
event shall be at least the higher of:

(1) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of offer for the
grant of option (“Date of Grant”) which must be a trading day;

(2) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
trading days immediately preceding the Date of Grant; and

(3)  the nominal value of the shares on the Date of Grant.

Upon acceptance of the options, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the
Company as consideration for the grant. The acceptance of an offer
of the grant of the option must be made within the date as specified
in the offer letter issued by the Company. The exercise period of any
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not be longer
than 10 years commencing on the date of grant and expiring on the
last day of such 10-year period subject to the provisions for early
termination as contained in the Share Option Scheme.

The total number of new shares of the Company that may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share options schemes of the Company shall
not exceed 60,000,000 shares, which represents 10% of the shares in
issue of the Company as at the date of this annual report.
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The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted to each grantee
under the Share Option Scheme (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the total number of shares in issue. Any further grant of options in
excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to issuance of a circular by the
Company and approved by its shareholders in accordance with the
Listing Rules.

During the year 2020, no options were granted under the Share Option
Scheme.

Apart from the aforesaid share option schemes, at no time during
the year ended 31 December 2020 was any of the Company and its
holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate, and none of the Directors, or their spouses or
children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the shares
in, or debentures of, the Company, or had exercise any such right.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s Directors and chief
executives had the following interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company;, its Group
members and/or associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ"), as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code:
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BEREE /NG
Mr. Huang Chih Shen Our Company
BBTELT PiN/N]

Ms. Huang Li Hun, Serlina our Company
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The Compan

REHERER
20 £:3:3:1 (BEzE1) BREHRAB S
Number and class Approximate
Capacity/nature of securities percentage of
of interest (Note 1) shareholding
ZriEER (ME2) 327,242,6880% 54.54%
Interest of a controlled =gald(h)
corporation (Note 2) 327,242,688
ordinary shares (L)
EnBEA 92,0008% 0.02%
Beneficial owner e=gld(h)
92,000
ordinary shares (L)
Notes:
1. The letter “L" denotes the Directors’ long position in the shares of our Company or
the relevant associated corporation.
2. The disclosed interest represented the interest in the Company held by Sky Halo

which was in turn wholly owned by Mr. Huang Chih Shen, an executive Director
as at 31 December 2020. Therefore, Mr. Huang Chih Shen was deemed to be
interested in the interest of Sky Halo in the Company by virtue of the SFO.

REHARER
g £33 (BaE1) REMAE DL
Number and class Approximate
Capacity/nature of securities percentage of
of interest (Note 1) shareholding
E=EA A 10,0000% & 3 A% 100.00%
Beneficial owner 10,000
ordinary shares
Note:
1. The disclosed interest represented the interest in Sky Halo which was wholly

owned by Mr. Huang Chih Shen as at 31 December 2020.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company had any other interests
or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company, any of its Group members or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code.
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WEEER KR SHORT POSITION IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
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R-TE-FFE+-F=+—H #HEBEMH-  As at 31 December 2020, so far as was known to the Directors, the
UWTAL BE(EFARFEETHAE  following persons/entities (other than the Directors or chief executive
AN AARAF - EEMEBEKE QAT K8 of the Company) had, or were deemed to have, interests or short
HRBEBBR S SER D AR A positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company, its Group
HABEZEF LS EMNEXVEBE2RE3D members and/or associated corporations which would fall to be
HigxARARRBRENERIOAR D2 disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
ANBRIEE S RS G0 E336KANAFTEEFE  Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to

MEZMAMERIAR be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:
AEERERT BHEHARER
BEER #E BB EEER 2% £:3:3-1 (K1) RESNE D
Name of Group Number and class Approximate
member/associated  Capacity/nature of securities percentage of
Name of Shareholder corporation of interest (Note 1) shareholding
s R (BEE2) RRA] EnBAA 327,242,688 54.54%
Sky Halo (Note 2) Our Company Beneficial owner LBEARL)
327,242,688

ordinary shares (L)

BEE 7+ (HF3) FiN/NE]! Ei3 327,242,6881% 54.54%
Ms. Cheuk Wai Ying (Note 3) Our Company Family Egili(N)
327,242,688

ordinary shares (L)

B AL ¢ St A NN EnBEAA 33,031,758% 5.51%
Mr. Chan Hung Kwong, Our Company Beneficial owner EEAR L)
Patrick 33,031,758

ordinary shares (L)

BEREKE ZiN/NT| BEREAA 30,204,0000% 5.03%
Mr. Cheuk Lim Fai Our Company Beneficial owner AR L)
30,204,000

ordinary shares (L)
B 5 Notes:

1. [LIEZA TR AR R IERE & B AL 8 SR s & 1. The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the shares of our Company or
[ty 2 4F B ° the relevant Group member or associated corporation.

2. BAREBREZHESHEMAX L MRZZ=_FF 2 Sky Halo was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and the entire issued share
+ZA=+—RA H2PEBRTRABEERREE capital of which was wholly owned by Mr. Huang Chih Shen as at 31 December
2EHEE- 2020.

3. BEFFLBEES EEFREENRBEEL L 3 Ms. Cheuk Wai Ying, spouse of Mr. Huang Chih Shen, was deemed to be interested
THEAERETRTCERAN AR AR - in Mr. Huang Chih Shen'’s interest in the Company by virtue of the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Directors were
not aware of any other persons/entities (other than the Directors and
chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company, its Group members
or associated corporations which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

During the year 2020, save as disclosed in the Prospectus, none of the
Directors or substantial shareholders of the Company or any of their
respective associates has engaged in any business that competes or
may compete with the business of the Group or has any other conflict
of interests with the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company did not redeem any of its listed securities, and neither
did the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any of the
Company's listed securities during the year 2020.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for the pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules during the year
2020.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Details of the Group’s corporate governance practices can be found in
the Corporate Governance Report contained on pages 24 to 38 in this
annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee was set up for reviewing the Company'’s
emolument policy and structure of all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management of the Company, having regard to the
Company'’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market practices. No long-term incentive schemes have been adopted
by the Company.

IMPORTANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, there is no
important event affecting the Group which has occurred after the
reporting period.

AUDITORS

A resolution to re-appoint the retiring auditors, Messrs.
PricewaterhouseCoopers, is to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM
of the Company.

By order of the Board

Speedy Global Holdings Limited
Huang Chih Shen

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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MR KB
To the Shareholders of Speedy Global Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Speedy Global Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 88 to 176, which comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2020;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

SRR AR SRR BT - B T A 1A
Hip : +852 2289 8888 fHH : +852 2810 9888 * www.pwchk.com

: PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

Net realisable value of slow-moving and obsolete inventories

° Expected credit losses of trade receivables

Goodwill impairment assessment
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Key Audit Matter

BN E TR EERENSEE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

FHERBREFENATEEFE
Net realisable value of slow-moving and
obsolete inventories

2R A SRR 540 X XM EE10 ©
Refer to note 4(b) and note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SEEEREE BTN RAKR  3EE
BEMRECHBR BUERNEBAERBR
E%ﬁ@ﬁﬁ@ﬁ%iﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁéTh 75 8
RREGFEM & ﬁﬁ)}ﬁ@ —E_TF
+=A=+—8" IEJ'EJNE%%T R
18 493,200,000 7T °
The Group manufactures and sells a wide
range of woven wear, cut-and-sewn knitwear
and sweater knitwear products. The value of
these products will drop significantly when
they become obsolete or there is a change
in customers’ demand. The slow-moving and
obsolete inventories may be impaired. As
at 31 December 2020, management made a
provision of approximately HK$3.2 million for
such inventories.

HZMTHREBEEUFEFELRREFTEANERFEMNNEIES K
@i WiEBEE Rt T HRTEHRE KA E S Ak l%ﬁ’w}vﬁ
MERE EFEME - FLURBRSXINEEEREIRFOTE T
HERBERAIATRR -

We obtained an understanding of the management’s internal control
and process of assessing the net realisable value of slow-moving
and obsolete inventories, and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and
the level of other inherent risk factors, such as complexity, subjectivity,
changes and susceptibility to management bias or fraud.

BMERITREFBE:
Specific procedures we have performed included:

e HME LEPEFERERGONGERETTHE AFTMHE
EREMTIEFNBRML

° We evaluated the outcome of prior period assessment of
the provision for impairment of inventories to assess the
effectiveness of management’s estimation process;

. BMTERAR T FERENEOEZZEHE R 25T
ERERFENERT-

° We evaluated and tested the key controls over the impairment
assessment of inventories, including the procedures on
estimating the net realisable value of the inventories;

o BMERTEMHEEEENRREDE WHRART BRI
MR R AR AR IE LA R

° We obtained the ageing profile of each inventory item and
tested the accuracy of the ageing profile, on a sample basis, by
checking to the inventory records;

e HMMETHREBHETELBRREPESHNEE LEHFEK
EITEEE

o We checked the selling prices obtained from subsequent sales
orders and invoices, on a sample basis, and compared to the
cost of inventories;
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Key Audit Matter

BN E TR EERENSEE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

MR AR FENEFFERANHTHEE L
BMEREZ T HEEKREFTENREREN
5 8 K PR B 17 RV E AT fil B9 N FE B B 1 3R R
BEX DAREMGFESEREEXNTT R
BERHAB WERFEREK VP EE KM
EFPHEMHEETE HEABRUMERER
HELCBRAREMATARE:

We focused on auditing the impairment
of slow-moving and obsolete inventories
because the estimation of net realisable
value is subject to high degree of estimation
uncertainty. The inherent risk in relation to the
impairment assessment of slow-moving and
obsolete inventories is considered significant
due to significant judgements involved in
estimating the selling prices less costs to
sell, taking into consideration of the ageing
of inventories, preliminary production and
sales plans agreed with customers, historical
experience of selling inventories of similar
nature and other available factors.

ERN LA AR
B & R A A E R SRE

BMEEEE e EREHEN TR ETEN T ER
FENE UEEHEETE BUERMNERMSERL BL
FHEEREEFENHEEN (RIERME)EITHA -

We discussed with management as to its assessment on the net
realisable value for slow moving and obsolete inventories with no
subsequent sales, collaborating explanations with sales orders,
current market prices of similar products, historical margins and
marketability of the relevant inventories, as appropriate;

ﬁf?ﬁ?ﬁé%ﬁéﬁ%&ﬁﬂii&%EEE%’*EE’J%#H%’ BB WiBAEE
HBEPHENTTEEREESS EREEEBHMITEEN
TEHY ;

We obtained evidence from events occurring up to the auditor’s
report date and challenged management’s expectation in
estimating the selling prices by considering the preliminary
production and sales plans agreed with customers;

BMEREREETELEAREREESTEENERE T8
R AR HENVLEERBETE HERUMERE
MBRTEABREREMSERRNHEBES SR JRELRER
REMEBZ UREERAELANERREREHHETD
e

We considered whether the management’s judgements in
making the significant assumptions and selecting the data of the
latest selling prices, ageing of inventories, preliminary production
and sales plans agreed with customers, historical experience of
selling inventories of similar nature and other available factors
would give rise to indicators of possible management bias
and the implications to the audit when indicators of possible
management bias are identified.

ARERERMEFE
IR R o

B (5L 78 5 5 P R A O

Based on the procedures above, we considered that management’s
judgements and assumptions applied in the assessment of provision
for impairment of inventories were supportable by the evidences
obtained.
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BB N AEEEEETSE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

EUERNEREESR
Expected credit losses of trade
receivables

BRERA Y REM E3.10) ) &
MIEE12 o

Refer to note 3.1(b), note 4(c) and note 12 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RZE-ZEF+-_A=+—H EBE£EHN
JE U BR FR 4B 58 5119,125,000/% JT K FE U BR 5%
BB 511,726,0007 7T

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had
gross trade receivables of HK$119,125,000
and provision for impairment of trade
receivables of HK$11,726,000.

BT REREN RIS R EEKERERN R EEBRENIES

WiEBZ B AT T AR R R EMERRRE R (EMENE - F8%-

ERERRIEGFOHEZS RN NEEFHERBRRAMN AL
[, Bgz -

We obtained an understanding of the management’s internal
control and process of assessing the expected credit losses of trade
receivables, and assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement
by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and the level of
other inherent risk factors, such as complexity, subjectivity, changes
and susceptibility to management bias or fraud.

BZMERTHREEFBE:
Specific procedures we have performed included:

e HMAMEUEREHREEERERENRITHBTMER U
B IR E SR T B

° We evaluated the outcome of prior period assessment of the
provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables to
assess the effectiveness of management’s estimation process;
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BMEIREZEBEFNEREEBE -
ERAWEeENEATFESETETEIE-
FHARUVRTORETHNEERRERAE
K RERHABHEEEREERIREXR
HE (FERRBERRES BN EERR
FE BEFENERREEFNER B
WORIEH AR kR E BT BB XN BB
R FERFEEEWGIELE IRATE 4
BRI REAMAIGEE) -

We focused on auditing the expected credit
losses of trade receivables because the
estimation of the recoverable amount is
subject to high degree of uncertainty. The
inherent risk in relation to the impairment
assessment of trade receivables is
considered significant due to significant
judgements involved in estimating the
expected credit loss (ECL) rates, taking into
consideration the grouping of receivables
based on their respective credit risk
characteristics, the background of and
relationship with the customers, the ageing
of receivables, the selection of provision
model to calculate the historical loss rates,
the forward looking information affecting
the ability of the customers to settle the
receivables and other available factors.

B KA S R UBR FORE TR = Z S e B
MR AR AT @ & REEAR T

We evaluated and tested the key controls over the impairment
assessment of trade receivables, including the procedures on
estimating the recoverable amount of the trade receivables,

BMMEEEENEHREEBBRHER FhELERRE
AREREEMNES M WEMTERE:

We obtained management’s ECL provision model, assessed the
appropriateness of the criteria management adopted in building
up the model, and reperformed the calculation of the provision;,

RMEBBREHENERE MR ERERETNERER DTN
AETRME

We tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of ageing profile of
trade receivables by checking to the underlying sales invoices;

BMHEEEREY B REEEEREELRKTIRANIEH
AIEMEE R EE M,

We assessed the appropriateness of the relevant forward looking
information adopted by management in building up the ECL
provision model;

BMBE ESBHERF CHEOBEBRBEN UHHEEEY
AT El & RE R HIET R 1A B 1

We obtained the relevant correspondences between the
Group and its customers and assessed the appropriateness of
management’s judgement made on the recoverable amount;

BMZEREEEEERERNRIOAE RE RSB ARZ AR
EEEERBEARET SR RERNEREBREZNEE
UREERAEFEEEERENERRESTOTE -

We considered whether the management’s judgements in
making the significant assumptions and selecting the data to
build up the ECL provision model would give rise to indicators
of possible management bias and the implications to the audit
when indicators of possible management bias are identified.

ER LRy BRMRAEEENTHEKEREREREERBEEE
REAMABRBRSHECESHEESS-

Based on the procedures above, we considered that management's
judgements and assumptions applied in the assessment of provision
for expected credit losses of trade receivables were supportable by
the evidences obtained.
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B R A R
Goodwill impairment assessment

LM A IS IRE M A R FE9 -
Refer to note 4(d) and note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RZZE_ZTF+_A=+—HB EBE&XEH
2 EREE A 411,400,000 7T  F A B FHR
R B 15122,600,000%8 7T ©

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's
carrying amount of goodwill amounted
to approximately HK$11.4 million. An
impairment provision of HK$122.6 million was
made during the year.

EEERRDREEBRESELE N Wit
EHFEREBME- ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ)ﬂﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ?fi%
FTEEH A AE(RERAEEEER BE
%flJi&BEIE@{’EWE““E’Jﬁﬁiﬁﬂixiﬁi
/llbij‘ﬁi\/,ﬁ\uu =

Management considered the Splendid
Gains Group as a cash generating unit and
calculated its value in use. The value in use
was based on the discounted future cash
flow forecasts where management made
assumptions on certain key inputs, including
forecast sales growth rate, budget gross
margin, and discount rate.

BAMTHRERENANZESRIAHERENEF LEBEREML
TR ERAMEARBREE (NEEE BT EEERR
SERGFE B B R R ) VAR R AT E RS R R B N AE LB o

We obtained an understanding of the management’s internal control
and process of assessing the goodwill impairment, and assessed the
inherent risk of material misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and the level of other inherent risk factors, such
as complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to management
bias or fraud.

BZMERTHEERFBE:
Specific procedures we have performed included:

e EMTEEERERENRATEEIGER UTHEREMR
T2 FF IR

° We evaluated the outcome of prior year assessment of the
provision for impairment of goodwill to assess the effectiveness
of management’s estimation process;

e HMAEERETHIBEBMARBMFNERTE),
e We understood from management the business plan of the
Splendid Gains Group for the coming years;

e HMBEAEEERERBEENE
Lh#;

° We compared the forecast sales growth rate and budget gross
margin with the historical performance in the recent five years;

MRAFRBEREBETT
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BB IR EZEERE BRUKESE
BT R e E AT T REEME AR EETTE
REHEERE - FHEEMNERARHRALN
RKR MBI A AR KT H kA E K H)
- SRR E LR E S R EE REK
We focused on auditing the impairment
of goodwill because the estimation of
recoverable amount is subject to high degree
of estimation uncertainty. The inherent risk
in relation to the impairment assessment
of goodwill considered significant due to
significant judgements involved in estimating
forecast sales growth rate, budget gross
margin, and discount rate used for preparing
the discounted future cash flow forecasts.

o BMBBEBRKR MR EESE SR ER AR E,
° We assessed the discount rate applied to the impairment review
by comparing to our internal benchmark data;

e HMEFERAHEEERE BEEMNERIRIETERE DN,
° We performed sensitivity analysis over the forecast sales growth
rate, budget gross margin and discount rate;

o BMEBHEZEMBEAREENSHESEE TEREE
BHEAEEERE BEEMNERRENMHT R

° We obtained evidence from events occurring up to the auditor’s
report date and challenged management’s estimation of the
forecast sales growth rate, budget gross margin and discount
rate; and

e EMERBEEL(FHUEBANEERER BEEMNERMR

EEHEAREFNHE R @8R FEEEEREN
R AREBRRAGEFEEREERENERREERZATE

° We considered whether the management’s judgement in
making the significant assumptions on the forecast sales growth
rate, budget gross margin and discount rate would give rise to
indicators of possible management bias and the implications
to the audit when indicators of possible management bias are
identified.

EREMEF BMRAEEBETEEERERERMERANH
B RBERHCESNERS -

Based on procedures above, we considered that management'’s
judgements and assumptions applied in the assessment of the
provision for impairment of goodwill were supportable by the
evidences obtained.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’” use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ho Chiu Yin, Ivan.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R+=—A=+—8
As at 31 December
—E_ZF —E-NF
2020 2019
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
ME - BB RFE Property, plant and equipment 6 53,963 63,575
FREEE Right-of-use assets 7 9,171 18,516
EWEE Intangible assets 8 5,330 9,350
EES Goodwill 9 11,387 134,035
EERIEEE Deferred tax assets 19 3,804 1,884
83,655 227,360
RBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 10 72,425 71,919
JE U BR TR R EL i i U FR TR Trade and other receivables 12 126,164 189,656
TR 3 E Prepayments 13 35,074 41,620
RekBFeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 14 179,835 169,775
413,498 472,970
EE#E Total assets 497,153 700,330
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

WR+=—BA=+-—8
As at 31 December
—E-EF —E-NF
2020 2019
B 5 THEx T T
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Ex EQUITY
AATESEBEAEMGER  Equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company
A& 7 Share capital 15 60,000 60,000
[ 10w B Share premium 15 53,441 53,441
HAab & Other reserves 16 23,075 18,523
REBEF Retained earnings 13,815 180,664
A Total equity 150,331 312,628
& LIABILITIES
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
HEARE Lease liabilities 7 5,515 9,315
EERIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 19 2,800 4,867
8,315 14,182
REAE Current liabilities
JE 1 AR SR % A B S BRIE Trade and other payables 17 201,737 246,292
EHEE Contract liabilities 5 2,504 2,926
BERFRIE B (& Current tax liabilities 3,876 23,405
&E Borrowings 18 126,590 91,545
HEaE Lease liabilities 7 3,800 9,352
338,507 373,520
BEAHE Total liabilities 346,822 387,702
EnRkBEREE Total equity and liabilities 497,153 700,330
LR A BB R RN — G RIE - The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read

on conjunction with the accompanying notes.

FEENBEZMBMEN T ——F = A The financial statements on pages 88 to 92 were approved by the
—t—RESEEeE WHATKREESZ - Board of Directors on 31 March 2021 and were signed on its behalf.

BEER HET
Huang Chih Shen Huang Li Hun, Serlina
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BE+-A=+—-HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-%F —T-hF

2020 2019

Bt 5 F#&xT FHET

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

& Revenue 5 685,688 1,117,035

$HE KA Cost of sales 22 (625,706) (972,177)

EF Gross profit 59,982 144,858

73 8N Distribution costs 22 (7,813) (10,100)

TERAX Administrative expenses 22 (191,845) (85,342)
TREEHNEERE Net impairment losses on financial and 3.1(b)

E 18 F 5 contract assets & 23 (11,726) (7,258)
E A Other income 20 3,718 1,004
HEMlham— 558 Other gains - net 21 940 176
Kge (FR), &R Operating (loss)/profit (146,744) 43,338
IR N Finance income 25 566 1,157
BLE KA Finance costs 25 (6,847) (10,685)
BE KA FEE Finance costs — net (6,281) (9,528)
BRETBHAT (BB) %R (Loss)/profit before income tax (153,025) 33,810
FiERiEeE, (Ax) Income tax credit/(expense) 26 4,176 (7,167)
EAREZIFEAEWS (Loss)/profit for the year

FR(EE)aR attributable to equity holders

of the Company (148,849) 26,649
FREMEEmK A (EE) - Other comprehensive income/(loss)

HKRBiE for the year, net of tax
HEAREEF S Items that may be reclassified

EaiyIE A subsequently to profit or 10ss
ME N ZRE Currency translation differences 4,552 (558)
KATERFEAEWS Total comprehensive (loss)/income

FRE2E(KB), for the year attributable to

WA #EE equity holders of the Company (144,297) 26,091
FRERATBDERBFFA Basic and diluted (losses)/earnings

PEAE (E18) %R per share for (loss)/profit

BEREAREE attributable to equity holders

(E518) &7 of the Company for the year
(AERBETIIR) (expressed in HK$ per share) 27 (0.2481) 0.0444

b e 2 EK e R E RN E—OFBE

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

ARREREEAEL
Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Ve Kt afE ikt REBA At
Share Share Other CEETE

capital premium reserves earnings Total

FTET THT THT THT AT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(PtzE15) ik (PirzE16)
(note 15) (note 15) (note 16)

R=Z-h&—-A—H Balance as at 1 January 2019

& -3 60,000 53,441 19,081 160,015 292,537
FREF Profit for the year = = = 26,649 26,649
Hitt2AEE Other comprehensive loss - = (558) = (558)

FRZHUZEE Total comprehensive income
for the year - = (558) 26,649 26,091

BEEA(UEFAZ  Transaction with owners in their

SR ETZRE capacity as owners
BERKEIMNKRE Dividend declared and paid - - = (6,000) (6,000)
R-E-h%§ Balance as at 31 December 2019

+tZRA=+-Rz&& 60,000 53,441 18,523 180,664 312,628

W=-Z-Z%-H—HA Balance as at 1 January 2020

A1 60,000 53,441 18,523 180,664 312,628
FNER Loss for the year - - - (148,849) (148,849)
HivzmEMA Other comprehensive income - - 4,552 - 4,552

FRE2EFBREE Total comprehensive loss
for the year - - 4,552 (148,849) (144,297)

BEBA(UEBAZ  Transaction with owners in

50 ETZRS their capacity as owners
BERKELMABRE Dividend declared and paid (note 28)
(HisE28) = - - (18,000) (18,000)
RZB-E% Balance as at 31 December 2020
+ZR=t+-Rz&8% 60,000 53,441 23,075 13,815 150,331
Lbatir e P e R EEM T —OfRE The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE+t-A=1+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December

—E-EF —E—NF
2020 2019
FET T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
RETEBNESRE Cash flows from operating activities
KETEBFERS Cash generated from operations 30(a) 27,146 88,223
BIEEH Income taxes paid (19,016) (756)
B E Interest paid (6,847) (10,685)
KETEBMIA SR AEE Net cash inflow from operating activities 1,283 76,782
RETEBNEESRE cash flows from investing activities
BEEWE MENEE 2T Payments for purchase of property,
plant and equipment (2,945) (6,706)
WE—WB AR 2R Payment for acquisition of a subsidiary,

R FTUEIR & net of cash acquired - (135,275)

BEEREE 2K Payments for purchase of intangible
assets (21) (236)
HEWE - BEEEH Proceeds from disposal of property,

Fr18 3k18 plant and equipment 30(b) 88 128
BUF B Interest received 566 1,157
WEEBMIA SR L FE Net cash outflow from investing activities (2,312) (140,932)
METENEERE Cash flows from financing activities
BEMSRIEA Proceeds from borrowings 55,364 340,391
BEEEBE Repayments of borrowings (20,319) (433,516)
BRRE Dividend paid (18,000) (6,000)
HERRZEEHS Principal elements of lease payments (9,327) (12,955)
BMEFHNESARAS Net cash inflow/(outflow) from

() FE financing activities 7,718 (112,080)
HEeERBESSEWE M Net increase/(decrease) in cash
(R2) B5E and cash equivalents 6,689 (176,230)
FMReRBEEEEY Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year 169,775 346,179
EXREEHHIRES R Effects of exchange rate changes

ReZEBYewE on cash and cash equivalents 3,371 (174)

FRESRBESZEY Cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year 179,835 169,775
LA B A B R ERN T —HRE- The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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A3k dm ) BRSSP E AR TS 275 (T AR (LB
EREEK]) AEBTRFEARHK
ME(THBE]EERETEEH (1R
RTEEXBRYERERBERER
(MERERERBERER]) -

ARBRZE——FNAZ+NBIRIE
FEeENERAA(ZE—TFEEIAN)
FHREHEAMKLAEREERAD
7)o 7 % =5 BR Hb uk A& Vistra (Cayman)
Limited, PO. Box 31119, Grand Pavilion,
Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman Islands °

ARFRB-_ZE—=F—A+tHHARER
BHARSMABRAR IR LT -

BRBREN ZEEA P BRERTIIA
BT ([BTT]) 251

GENERAL INFORMATION

Speedy Global Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the apparel supply chain servicing business which offers
a wide range of woven wear, cut-and-sewn knitwear and
sweater knitwear products to a number of owners or agents of
global reputable brands (the “Apparel Supply Chain Servicing
Business”), the Group had also been engaged in the apparel
retail business operating in the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC") (the “Apparel Retail Business”), and the property
investment and development business (the “Property Investment
and Development Business”).

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
28 September 2011 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law (2010 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands. The address of its registered office is at the office of
Vistra (Cayman) Limited, PO. Box 31119, Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus
Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand Cayman KY1-1205, Cayman
Islands.

The Company has been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 15 January 2013.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
(i) compliance with HKFRS and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Compliance Ordinance Cap. 622.

(ii)  Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis.

(iii) New standards, amendments to existing
standards and interpretations adopted by the
Group
The following new standards, amendments to existing
standards and interpretations have been issued and
effective for the annual accounting period beginning
on 1 January 2020.

Standards, Amendments  Subject
or Interpretations

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Conceptual Framework Revised Conceptual Framework for
for Financial Reporting Financial Reporting

Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9

The amendments listed above did not have any
impact on the amounts recognised in prior or current
periods and are not expected to significantly affect
the current or future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 FESHBERHSE@E 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
21 REEE(E) 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(iv) EZBITERENZFZTER - (iv) New standards, amendments to existing
HHEBEERWIEETR 2/ standards and interpretations that have been
issued but are not effective
RREHEEBRMGE T T8 Certain new accounting standards, amendments to
eI LR U2 existing standards and interpretations have been
REEAMEBIT RZE B published that are not mandatory for adoption during
AEERERRMN -ZEXE the current reporting period and have not been early
BIFEFH T & £ & Al S R R R adopted by the Group. None of these is expected to
EHEAEAEENARATER have a material impact on the Group in the current
MRRR GEEERTE - or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.

RT3 Bz &K

B - BT RE FE FESHHBEEN
Effective for annual

Standards, Amendments or accounting periods

Interpretations Subject beginning on or after

BAGFENE165 2 BRI A W B RRE: BERSER SRR T -%—H—H

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds 1 January 2022

before intended use

BB B MEEREIR ZIERTA HELSER Z R - -F—H—H

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022

BB EREITHR ZIEFTAR BEEHN-BITEHNZKAE - -F—H—H

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling 1 January 2022

a Contract

ZE - N\FETTFEPCFENE BAEUBREERZUE —E-—_#—HA—H

Annual Improvements to Improvements to HKFRS 1 January 2022
2018-2020 Cycle

BB BWEERIE175 RS L —E-=%—HF—H

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023

BB EREIR BTN PERRBIIERB 2 EE —ZET=-=%—H—H

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of liabilities as Current or 1 January 2023

Non-current

ERMBRELERNFEI0R REE ST LR REFERABENANESLELEZFEN FiEE
285K ZAERT AR BEHEIRA

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an To be determined
HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
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2.2 SOtRBIRER AR

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity

accounting
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ARSI IR AR AT o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of
the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group
(refer to note 2.3).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of financial position respectively.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with owners of the Group. A change in
ownership interest results in an adjustment between
the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests to reflect their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount
of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and
any consideration paid or received is recognised in a
separate reserve within equity attributable to owners
of the Company.
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2 FESTHHRBE#E) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 ¥KE6t 2.3 Business combinations
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The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether
equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary
comprises the:

° fair values of the assets transferred;

° liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business;

° equity interests issued by the Group;

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement; and

. fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the
o consideration transferred,

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity; and

° acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than
the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business
acquired, the difference is recognised directly in profit or
loss as gain from bargain purchase.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

24

Business combinations (Continuead)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date of exchange. The
discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified
as a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chairman of the board, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the chief operating decision-maker.

2.6

Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), which is the Company's
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions or valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year
end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit
or loss.

Foreign exchange gain and loss that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, within “finance
costs”. All other foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within “other gains/(losses) —
net”.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

o assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

o income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on the
dates of the transactions); and

o all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.
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2.7 NE-BERSZE(£) 2.7 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

FrETZA AR A A F M
EXBERATERFHANHEES
(REBIEERE)ETIE  BRIFZ
BRI R EENRERZEEE
AEEFTE WD BREKARE

FHESE (NBRERE)
. EF 204
. HERE 2F 105

. RMEETFEEE 5Z210F

. NS ] 3ZB5F
. Heas TZE10%F
C i AZ55F

BENBRERAIEAFHRE®RE
HIREH UIFEERE-

i & B BR (B = P A AT IR [ & 5
(K 7E2.9) - A% & B A B T {5 BT
RMREE AT MO SR

HE 2 W RERTE L BAAER
RERE(ERET - WAt ARz e

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost or revalued amounts, net of their
residual values, over their estimated useful lives or, the
leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter
of their useful life or the lease term, unless the entity
expects to use the assets beyond the lease term as
follows:

° Buildings 20 years
° Leasehold improvements 2-10 years
o Furniture and fixtures 5-10 years
° Office equipment 3-5 years
. Machinery 7-10 years
o Motor vehicles 4-5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing

proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in
profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Intangible assets

(i)

(i)

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in note 2.3.
Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal
of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill
relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwill
arose. The units or groups of units are identified at
the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes (note 9).

customer relationships

Customer relationships acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. They have a finite useful life and
are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. These costs are
amortised based on the timing of projected cash
flows of the contracts over their estimated useful
lives of 3 years.

(iiij) Acquired computer software licences

AR IRIEAX AR AT o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 3 t0 5
years.
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Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

2.10 Other financial assets

(i)  Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement category:

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

(ii) Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.
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2.10 Other financial assets (Continued)
(iii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit
or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. There is one measurement category into
which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses) together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables, see note
3.1 for further details.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the statement of financial position
where the Company currently has a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts, and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

2.12 Inventories

Raw materials, work in progress and finished goods
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead
expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of
normal operating capacity. Costs are assigned to individual
items of inventory on the basis of weighted average
costs. Costs of purchased inventory are determined after
deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

2.13 Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. They are generally due for settlement within 30
to 90 days and therefore are all classified as current.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless
they contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
and other receivables with the objective of collecting the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. See note 12 for further information about the
Group's accounting for trade and other receivables and
note 3.1 for a description of the Group’s impairment
policies.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial
institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown
within borrowings in current liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

2.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity (note 15).
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

2.16 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are
usually paid within 30 to 90 days of recognition. Trade
and other payables are presented as current liabilities
unless payment is not due within 12 months after the
reporting period. They are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.17 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees
paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down.
In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs.
To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.
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Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement
of financial position when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or
loss as finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liabilities for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

2.18 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

(i)

(i)

ARSI IR AR AT o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
(i) Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and where the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

2.20 Employee benefits
(i)  Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave that
are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect
of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amounts expected
to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The
liabilities are presented as current employee benefit
obligations in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

ARSI IR AR AT o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for long service leave and annual leave
that are not expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service. These
obligations are therefore measured as the present
value of expected future payments to be made in
respect of services provided by employees up to
the end of the reporting period using the projected
unit credit method. Consideration is given to
expected future wage and salary levels, experience
of employee departures and periods of service.
Expected future payments are discounted using
market yields at the end of the reporting period
of high-quality corporate bonds with terms and
currencies that match, as closely as possible, the
estimated future cash outflows. Remeasurements as
a result of experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or 10ss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position
if the Group does not have an unconditional right
to defer settlement for at least twelve months after
the reporting period, regardless of when the actual
settlement is expected to occur.

Post-employment obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “Pension Scheme”) set up pursuant to
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
for all of its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
Pension Scheme. The assets of the Pension Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administrated fund. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid.
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2.20 Employee benefits (Ccontinued)
(iii) Post-employment obligations (Continued)
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Pursuant to the government regulations in the PRC,
the Group is required to contribute an amount
to certain retirement benefit schemes based on
approximately 7% to 20% of the wages for the year
of those employees in the PRC. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefits obligations of those employees of the Group.
Contributions to these retirement benefits schemes
are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as incurred.

In addition, pursuant to the government regulations
in Cambodia, all enterprises or establishment must
register with the National Social Security Fund
("NSSF"). Employers are obliged to pay contributions
to the NSSF for occupational risk and heath care
schemes for all employees. In occupational risk
scheme, the contribution rate is 0.8% of employee's
monthly salary whereas in health care scheme the
contribution rate is 2.6% of employee’s monthly
salary. Contributions to these benefits schemes
are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as incurred.
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Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and make
good obligations are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount can be
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Revenue recognition

(i)

Sales of goods - Apparel Supply Chain
Servicing Business

The Group manufactures and sells a wide range of
woven wear, cut-and-sewn knitwear and sweater
knitwear products to a number of owners or agents
of global reputable brands. Sales are recognised
when control of the products has transferred,
being when the products are delivered to the
customers, the wholesaler has full discretion over
the channel and price to sell the products, and
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
wholesaler's acceptance of the products. Delivery
occurs when the products have been shipped to
the specified location, the risks of obsolescence and
loss have been transferred to the customers, and
either the wholesaler has accepted the products in
accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance
provisions have lapsed, or the Group has objective
evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been
satisfied.

The products are sometimes sold with volume
discounts and customers have a right to return faulty
products in the wholesale market. Revenue from
these sales is based on the price specified in the
sales order, net of the estimated volume discounts
and returns at the time of sale. Accumulated
experience is used to estimate and provide for the
discounts and returns, using the expected value
method, and revenue is only recognised to the extent
that it is highly probable that a significant reversal will
not occur. The volume discounts are assessed based
on anticipated annual purchases. A refund liability
(included in trade and other payables) is recognised
for expected volume discounts payable to customers
in relation to sales made until the end of the
reporting period. No significant element of financing
is deemed present as the sales are made with a
credit term of 30 to 90 days, which is consistent with
market practice.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Revenue recognition (Continued)
(i)  Sales of goods - Apparel Supply Chain

Servicing Business (Continued)
Receivable is recognised when the goods are
delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is
due.

2.23 Earnings per share
(i)  Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

o the profit attributable to owners of the
Company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

o by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares
issued during the year and excluding treasury
shares.

(i) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in
the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into account:

o the after income tax effect of interest and
other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential ordinary shares, and

o the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.24 Dividend income
Dividends are recognised as other income in profit or loss
when the right to receive payment is established.
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Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real
estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not
to separate lease and non-lease components and instead
accounts for these as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payment that are based on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group

is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability.
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2.25 Leases (Continued)
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The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received;

° uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by certain subsidiaries in Hong Kong, which does not
have recent third party financing; and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg term,
country, currency and security.

° If a readily observable amortising loan rate is
available to the individual lessee (through recent
financing or market data) which has a similar
payment profile to the lease, then the group entities
use that rate as a starting point to determine the
incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period.
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Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs; and

° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with all leases of low-value assets
are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in
profit or loss. Low-value assets comprise small offices and
apartments.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is
a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis
over the lease term (note 20). Initial direct costs incurred
in obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the underlying asset and recognised as
expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease
income. The respective leased assets are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position based on their
nature.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.26 Dividend distribution
Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer
at the discretion of the Group, on or before the end of
the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the
reporting period.

2.27 Interest income
Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost and
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in profit or loss as part of other income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where
it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes, see note 25 below. Any other
interest income is included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets
the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, cash flow
interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group'’s financial performance.

(@) Market risk

()

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations.

Foreign exchange risk arises when future
commercial transactions or recognised assets
or liabilities are denominated in a currency
that is not the entity’s functional currency. For
group companies with Renminbi ("RMB”) as
their functional currency, foreign exchange
risk arises primarily with respect of HK$. For
group companies with US dollars (“USD") as
their functional currency, foreign exchange
risk arises primarily with respect of HKS$. For
group companies with HK$ as their functional
currency, foreign exchange risk arises primarily
with respect to RMB. The Group manages its
foreign exchange risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rates.

The Group has investments in the PRC, whose
net assets are exposed to foreign currency
translation risk. Currency exposure arising from
the net assets of the Group's investments in
the PRC is managed primarily through dividends
paid outside the PRC.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)
() Foreign exchange risk (Continued)
Exposure
The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk
at the end of the reporting period, expressed in
HKS, is as follows:

R-Z-Z%+-F=1+-H
31 December 2020
AR EY Hith

R=ZZ-AF+=F=1+-H
31 December 2019
ARE e it

RMB usD Others RMB UsD Others
THn THx THx THET THT T
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BeRBELEEW  Cashandcashequivalents 46,177 14,514 530 60,655 39,862 549
YRR
Eth Y Trade and other receivables 101,439 22,546 562 116,266 66,071 1,334
R R R
EffEFUE  Tradeand other payables  (174,498) (5,230 - (184,309 733 (64)
REZBERNETE Amounts recognised in profit or loss
FA-UTELEES During the year, the following foreign-exchange
BN EENER: related amounts were recognised in profit or

loss:

BE+t-A=1t—-HILEE
Year ended 31 December
= —FNF
2019
FHT
HK$'000

2020
TR
HK$'000

FEAH fth i gk Y BE Net foreign exchange gains/(losses)
Wi,/ (B18)F8 included in other gains (note 21)
(FftE21) 378 (10)
SFARVER AR INEER  Exchange gains/(losses) on foreign
XU (E18) currency borrowings included
(PH7E25) in finance costs (note 25) 532 (264)
FARKRAERA Total net foreign exchange
(B18),/ B FERN gains/(losses) recognised in
HE N W (Bi8) (loss)/profit before income tax
“wE for the year 910 (274)
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3 BRRRERE#) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
31 MBERBREER (&) 3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a wmHEEE (&) (a) Market risk (Continuead)
) SrEREE (E) () Forejgn exchange risk (Continued)

BRRE Sensitivity

MmERMAR RNEBE As shown in the table above, the group is
EXARBHEBETRE primarily exposed to changes in RMB/HK$ and
JC H B T [ R & E) iy USD/HK$ exchange rates. The sensitivity of
TR -BRYIEXE profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates
MHREETEREBRE arises mainly as a result of foreign exchange

WIRAERODERSR
HENRE MRS EHE
W) FE SRR AR B E A
W TR IR A B R A BR R
Ho A A BRIR A [ 3 U
=R R K EX
HENEIH {0 A B A
VRETERBUINEG

gains/losses on translation of cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables
and trade and other payables that are not
denominated in the entity’s functional currency.
Similarly, the impact on equity of other reserves
to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly
as a result of foreign currency translation on
net assets in the PRC and Cambodia.

MEPERRIFREE
HE -
HE&RRNTE HEMRENESNY
Impact on equity of
other reserves
“EZZf TN CZBZEf —T-N%
2020 2019 2020 2019
TER THL TER AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Impact on post-tax profit

AEBEBETER- £764% RMB/HKS exchange rate

(ZE—NE-22%)* —increase 6.4% (2019-2.2%) * (579) 231 (1,038) (439)
ARBHBTER-TF64% RMB/HKS exchange rate

(ZE—NF-22%)* - decrease 6.4% (2019-2.2%) * 579 (231) 1,038 439
ETABITEE - FF051%  USD/HKS exchange rate

(ZE—NF-058%) * —increase 0.51% (2019-0.58%) * 141 487 (7) (13)
ELABTEE-TFH051%  USD/HKS exchange rate

(ZZF—NF-058%) * - decrease 0.51% (2019-0.58%) * (141) (487) 7 13
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continued)

(if)
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cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk
arises mainly from cash and cash equivalents
and borrowings. Cash and cash equivalents
and borrowings at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Cash and
cash equivalents and borrowings at fixed rates
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group's
cash and cash equivalents and borrowings
were held at variable rates.

The interest rates and maturities of the Group's
borrowings are disclosed in note 18.

Management monitors interest rate fluctuations
to ensure that exposure to interest rate risk is
within an acceptable level.

As at 31 December 2020, if interest rates
on HK$-denominated borrowings had been
261 basis points higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for
the year would have been approximately
HK$2,759,000 (2019:if interest rates on HK$-
denominated borrowings had been 124 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$948,000)
lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower
interest expense on floating rate borrowings.
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3 BHXERRERE &) 3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 BBEAREZE(£)
(b) FEm@EE
EERRREREERESE
BY REHEKNENARZE
%Iﬂﬂﬁé%@ﬁiméuﬁ
HEZPNEEMD (B2

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk
Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
contractual cash flows of debt instruments carried
at amortised cost, as well as credit exposures
to wholesale customers, including outstanding

REZEWKIE) - receivables.

() /Y/ﬂ’A Mff () Risk management
BRI ER A EE Credit risk is managed on a group basis.
o
RERBERR FRE To manage this risk, deposits are mainly placed
ZFEAEERIFNSR with reputable financial institutions or with
M BT ESIN S financial institutions which are controlled by
BhHRE o the government.

TREIN_F_FF
T-A=1t—HABH

The table below shows the bank deposit
balances of the major counterparties with

WEINREEFAHE or without external credit ratings as at
ERGHFZHRITIFER 31 December 2020 as follows:
KR

R+t=RA=+—~H
As at 31 December
—B_%F —E-NF

2020 2019
TERT T
HK$'000 HK$'000

BEENREEFHRHP  Counterparties with

RBEF* external credit rating*
Aal Aa1l 2 160
Aa2 Aa2 114,808 =
Aa3 Aa3 14,368 115,614
A1l A1 15,034 30,419
A2 A2 21,504 3,624
A3 A3 6,006 5,205

171,722 155,022

WEPREEFTRPN  Counterparties without

RBEA external credit rating
MR A ERTT  Commercial banks in rural areas 7,726 14,260
FHERS Cash on hand 387 493
RekBeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 179,835 169,775

e FEFROHERTRA e This is sourced from Moody’s

B

R o ANNUAL REPORT 2020 123



NE I bAE el N

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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H Y P A I MR 3R
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(@

()
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Risk management (Continued)

If wholesale customers are independently
rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if
there is no independent rating, the board
assesses the credit quality of the customer,
taking into account its financial position, past
experience and other factors. Individual risk
limits are set based on internal or external
ratings in accordance with limits set by the
board. The compliance with credit limits by
wholesale customers is regularly monitored by
line management.

Impairment of financial assets

Trade receivables are subject to the expected
credit loss model. While cash and cash
equivalents, deposits and other receivables are
also subject to the impairment requirements
of HKFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was
immaterial.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continuea)
Trade receivables (Continued)

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the past
repayment history and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within this
period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to
reflect current and forward-looking information
on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables.

On that basis, the loss allowance for trade
receivables as at 31 December 2020 and
31 December 2019 was determined as follows:

=t — B REERTE
BREEEWT

REAME BRREAMR RRAMR RRAMR  RRANR
308R 31290 91Z180R 181%365H  365AKE
31t0

Within 90days  91t0180  181to 365 Over 365
30 days past ~ dayspast  dayspast days past
invoice date invoice date invoice date invoice date invoice date

ZBRIEETAZT-H 31 December 2020
EHEEE Expected loss rate 0.0% 0.0% 0.1% 2.6% 83.7%
BEAE-ERET(TBL)*  Gross camying amount -

trade receivables (HK$'000) * 54,155 41,607 8,661 989 - 105,412
BiERE (TET) Loss allowance (HKS'000) 23 17 4 2 70
“E-hETZA=1-H 31 December 2019
EHEEE Expected loss rate 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 6.8% 83.7%
BEEE-ERET(TET)*  Gross camying amount -

trade receivables (HK$'000) * 79219 87,702 9822 192 - 176,935
EBERE (TETL) Loss allowance (HKS 000) - - - 13 - 13

* it BB IELER & The amounts above do not include the trade

BREEN S E’J/WE
B AEFBER
BE—TFHB

receivables which are assessed individually for
impairment allowance, which are further explained in
the below paragraph.
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3 B¥ERERG

3.1 BREBEER (£)
(b) EEE(Z)

(i) ZHEEFE (&)
FEUBR K (&)
RZEZEF+A
=t+—H BXEFE
FRPAEK AERE R
75 PR - B URCBR SR A
13,713,000 T (=&
—NF E)FETHE
BIEE A8 o FE Y2 BR 5K B2 —
HEBRBEFPEB M
BEFR-_ZE-_ZFYH
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B #11,656,0007 7T
ZE R GRIEM R B

381808 °
JRE UK BR FORUE B 2
EPUNE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, trade receivables of
approximately HK$13,713,000 (2019: nil) was
individually assessed where there is objective
evidence that the debtor faces significant
financial difficulties. The trade receivables
relate to a customer in the United States
which has come into financial crisis due to
the outbreak of coronavirus disease in early
2020. The Group made an impairment provision
of HK$11,656,000 with reference to its latest
communications with the customer and a debt
collecting agent appointed by the Group. The
ageing of these receivables was over 180 days.

Movements of the provision for impairment of
trade receivables are as follows:

BE+-A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-EF —ZT—hF

2020 2019

FTHExT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

F1) At beginning of year (13) (1,586)

RIREE Allowance for doubtful debts (11,726) (7,258)
F N EE S AT E 2 Receivables written-off during

FE YRR the year as uncollectible 13 8,831

Fx At end of year (11,726) (13)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) cCredit risk (Continued)

(1)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

Trade receivables are written off when there
iS no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery include, amongst
others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group, and a failure
to make contractual payments for a period of
greater than 180 days past due.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are
presented as net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.

The Group has concentration of credit risk.
Sales of goods to the top five customers
constituted approximately HK$533,667,000,
representing 77.8% of the Group's revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
HK$794,768,000, representing 71.1%). The top
five trade receivable balances accounted for
approximately HK$103,645,000, representing
87.0% of the gross trade receivable balances
as at 31 December 2020 (31 December
2019: HK$100,028,000, representing 56.5%).
Collections of outstanding receivable balances
are closely monitored on an ongoing basis to
minimise the credit risk.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
other receivables. The Group applies the
general approach in assessing the expected
credit loss on other receivables according to
the requirements of HKFRS 9 and the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.
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3 HERRERE#E) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
31 MBEERBRREE (&) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) EEE(Z) (b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) ZHEEFE (&) (i) Impairment of financial assets (Continuea)

REZANERNEHE Net impairment losses on financial assets
ERAEEIEFE recognised in profit or 10ss
FRN-UTHERER During the year, the following amounts were
MEEEBNSENE recognised in profit or loss in relation to
= AR impaired financial assets:

BE+-A=1t—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
—EEHF —E-hF

2020 2019
FExT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000

S REEREREFE Netimpairment losses on
financial assets

— YR SR B 18 — movement in loss allowance
BiEEE) for trade receivables 11,726 7,258
(c) HmEBELEE (c) Liquidity risk
FEMNRDECRRBREEREER Prudent liquidity risk management implies
KEZ#HBFRER RS maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents
ZEYVUREBEHNEE and the availability of funding through an adequate
BREFEESERESKRE amount of committed credit facilities to meet
THBHET AEBNLE obligations when due. The Group finances its working
E¥BEES RIETEER capital requirements through a combination of funds
HITFEEEES - generated from operations and bank borrowings.
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3 HERBREE#E) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 MBEKRREE (£) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continuea)
(c) mEBELEE (E) (c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

TRIBEAHINHAZ H K The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative
SECZETESRBENS financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
R HA4E B 5 AT based on their contractual maturities.
KPFERSEHAAOR The amounts disclosed in the table are the
BRI ERMEE-MN12E AR contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due
AR SR R within 12 months equal their carrying balances as
ERTETELTEK- the impact of discounting is not significant.

SHEENSNEEA
Contractual maturities of

financial liabilities

—£2 WMEE
PR-F MER IFR @t
Less than Between 1 Between 2
1year and2years and 5 years Total
THT THx T THT

R-ZB-FE+=-A=+—-H At 31 December 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Fi4 Non-derivatives

RITEE (M3180)) Bank borrowings (note 18(a)) 126,590 - - 126,590
EEFENR Interest payments on borrowings 607 224 49 880
MEAE (M7a) Lease liabilities (note 7(a) 3,800 3,875 1,640 9,315
MEEEFENR Interest payment on lease liahilities 355 176 19 550
JEAT BR R R ALt 1 08 Trade and other payables* 198,105 - - 198,105
@ Total 329,457 4,275 1,708 335,440
R=-Z-h%&+=B=+—-F At 31December 2019

FHT4E Non-derivatives

RITEE (HE18@) Bank borrowings (note 18(a)) 91,545 - - 91,545
EEMENT Interest payments on borrowings 646 - - 646
HERE (FE7@) Lease liabilities (note 7(a)) 9,352 3,803 5,512 18,667
HEABMEMNT Interest payment on lease liabilities 585 358 197 1,140
LT E T Trade and other payables* 242,281 - - 242,281
@t Total 344,409 4,161 5,709 354,279

* TEFEEMENIE e Excluding other taxes payable.

MisE: RITIERREEAENF LT Note: The interests on bank borrowings and lease liabilities are
B-_Z-_TFR-_ZT—NEF calculated by applying the respective applicable interest rates
+ZA=+—HAZEEANH as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 over the period up to their
RiE EEHEIHAAL- respective maturity dates.
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3 BHXERRER (&) 3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

32 EXERER 3.2 capital risk management
(a EHxXEE (a) Risk management

130

AEENERAERBERE &

s REEEBBELZEEE
HELENRES M

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to:

o safeguard their ability to continue as a going
concern, so that they can continue to provide

BE V-1 &P EE returns for shareholders and benefits for other
N B E 0 & BRA stakeholders, and
Wk

s HWRREMNEAEEBMNU
BARE S RAN

RTHRFIABRENER
AEEAREERBIN TR
ROBEESH RABRREE
ER - BIOTHBRIHEERE
PUBRAE TS

AEBREABLRERH
B BITREN — ettt
FIREL FRMR SRR
AE-EBEFEREANB

o maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated at net debt divided by total equity.
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings and lease

MARFTIHEERAES liabilities as shown in the consolidated statement of
BEBERRERIAEEEYD financial position, less cash and cash equivalents.
FTE -

BELRTDRTIAAE

The gearing ratio is calculated as follows:

Rt+t=-—B=+—H
As at 31 December

—E-EF
2020
TEx
HK$'000

—FT-NF
2019
FHETT
HK$'000

EERHEBEETE Total borrowings and lease

(MfEE18%7) liabilities (notes 18 and 7) 135,905 110,212
BBReMBEEEEY Less: cash and cash equivalents

(MI5E14) (note 14) (179,835) (169,775)
FEEARN Net cash position (43,930) (59,563)
EmRRE Total equity 150,331 312,628
BEL=E Gearing ratio FEAN/A 38 FAN/A
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

3.3 Fair value estimation
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets,
including trade and other receivables and cash and cash
equivalents, and short-term financial liabilities, including
trade and other payables, current borrowings and current
lease liabilities, approximate their fair values due to their
short-term maturities.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of
accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the
actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in
applying the Group's accounting policies.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated. They are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact
on the entity and that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

(@) Current and deferred income taxes
Significant judgment is required in determining the
provision for income tax. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such difference will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provision in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of
their actual utilisation may be different.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

(b)

(c)

(d)

JUDGMENTS (Continued)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
prices in the ordinary course of business less estimated
selling expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of selling
products of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of changes in economic conditions in places
where the Group operates and changes in customer taste
and competitor actions in response to changes in market
conditions. Management reassesses these estimates at
each reporting date.

Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions
and inputs used are disclosed in note 3.1(b).

Estimation of goodwill impairment

The Group tests whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment on an Semi-annual basis. For the current
reporting period, the recoverable amount of cash-
generating unit (“CGU") was determined based on value-in-
use calculations which require the use of assumptions. The
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a 5-year
period.

Details of impairment charge, key assumptions and impact
of possible changes in key assumptions are disclosed in
note 9.
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5 WHEEkoHER 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(a) W= (a) Revenue
HE-_Z-FTF+-_A=+—HIL Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December
FEBROWZENT 2020 is as follows:

BE+t-A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-%F —F-NF

2020 2019

FET FHBT

HK$'000 HK$'000

PR 5% {4 58 AR TS 2 75 Apparel Supply Chain Servicing Business 685,688 1,117,035

fREZE XS Apparel Retail Business - =
MERERERER Property Investment and

Development Business - -

685,688 1,117,035
R+t=BA=+—H
As at 31 December
—e-®F -—T-NF
2020 2019
FET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
£ A 5% 14 e 8 AR 7S 5 7K Contract liabilities related to Apparel
HBENENaE Supply Chain Servicing Business 2,504 2,926
RZEZZEF—F—RH AHEF The revenue recognised in the current financial year
EREEAaBERRANKEN A relating to carried-forward contract liabilities as at
2,926,000/ 7T 1 January 2020 was approximately HK$2,926,000.
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5 WaERkoEER (&) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
(b) EEEFER (b) Information about major customers

KEEAEERZEI0%HIA L E
EEPHKEETINT

Revenue from the major customers, which amounted to
10% or more of the Group’s revenue, is set out below:

BE+t-A=1t—-RLHEE
Year ended 31 December

—EEF —E-NF
2020 2019
FET FHT
HK$'000 HK$ 000
EPEA Customer A 266,285 443,837
=FB Customer B 98,831 &
®PC Customer C 68,801 G
EFED Customer D * 107,319
433,917 551,156
* L 10% ki Less than 10%
(c) ZEBEHR (c) Segment information
EIREENAEE AN IR E AT Management reviews the Group's internal reporting in
RBRUHEER-ERERERE order to assess performance and allocate resources.
EEXFEMAUELRRRERN Management has determined the operating segments
NEPRE METELZE Do based on the internal reports reviewed by the chairman of
the Board that are used to make strategic decisions.
HE_ZT-_TFR-_F-NF+= During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
A=+—BLFE KAEEXEHR Group was principally engaged in Apparel Supply Chain
EHEERGER- Servicing Business.
EREERBEHLCHBRCEBROE Management assesses the performance of the operating
B HEEsHBNRER - WA TE segments based on a measure of adjusted operating profit
S KRHABRKEERNTEAN or loss which in certain respects, as explained in the table
RETHEBRNNEGE M BRRL below, is measured differently from operating profit or
EEm o HMlE TR BEX loss in the consolidated financial statements. Other gains
REBERAEHER (X% - net, finance costs — net and income tax credit/(expense)
HER WARAEELEDE - are managed on a group basis and are not allocated to
operating segments.
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5 WERIER(E) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(c) oEER (&) (c) Segment information (Continued)
NHEEFEREDE -BEEHK Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and
H-PREEE BEREE BE. equipment, right-of-use assets, intangible assets, goodwill,
TE SRR H R skIE - inventories, trade and other receivables, prepayments
ERNFERRSEREEEY K and cash and cash equivalents. They exclude deferred tax
ENBEEREERIBEE - assets.

NEEERRLEABE-BRETE Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities. They
ERDPEBE MBMAEHEER exclude unallocated borrowings, current income tax
BERIBEE- liabilities and deferred tax liabilities
HE-T-_TF+=-A=+—HL The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2020:
FEMDIOHELE

PR it e 3 R  MERER
R 27 TEXK BREW
Property

Apparel Investment

Supply Chain Apparel and

Servicing Retail Development
Business Business Business Total
TER TER TER TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AHRERKGINGEFH  Segment revenue and revenue

W from external customers 685,688 - - 685,688
NPEE Segment results (147,684) - - (147,684)
Hiz— 558 Other gains - net 940
BEMTFE Finance costs - net (6,281)
BRETETRIEE Loss before income tax (153,025)
ETiES Income tax credit 4,176
FREE Loss for the year (148,849)
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5 WakoEER (&) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
(c) 2HTER (&) (c) Segment information (Continued)
FFAGEEEREROEM D EBIR Other segment items included in the consolidated
B: statement of comprehensive income:

PRt 5% {4t pE 38 fR%E  MERER
R 3% SEXEK BREK
Property

Apparel Investment

Supply Chain Apparel and

Servicing Retail Development
Business Business Business Total
TET TER TET TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Y BE R RAEITE  Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment 13,225 - - 13,225
FRAEEERE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 9,372 - - 9,372
mIEE#E Amortisation of intangible assets 4,063 - - 4,063
FERERE Allowance for inventory impairment 2,120 - - 2,120
RIREHE Allowance for doubtful debts 11,726 - - 11,726
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5 WakoEER (&) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
(c) oEESR (&) (c) Segment information (Continued)
R-ZE-_ZTF+_A=1+—HHH The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2020
HEERBBWNT: are as follows:

PR it P 8 IE$§-9
R¥EEH BRETEXH BRER
Property

Apparel Investment

Supply Chain Apparel and

Servicing Retail Development
Business Business Business  Unallocated Total
TER TER TER TER TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EEBE Total assets 493,349 = = 3,804 497,153
BEER Total liabilities 213,556 - - 133,266 346,822
HEZZ-NF+ZA=+—HL The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2019:

FENDERELE

P 5 454 e g MERER
RBEY BREZEXK BREW
Property

Apparel Investment

Supply Chain Apparel and

Servicing Retail Development
Business Business Business Total
TER TER TER TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AHRERKGINGFEFH  Segment revenue and revenue

W from external customers 1,117,035 = = 1,117,035
NPEE Segment results 43,162 - - 43,162
Hiha— 558 Other gains - net 176
BEMTFE Finance costs - net (9,528)
BRETS AT G Profit before income tax 33,810
FERHY Income tax expense (7,161
FRHEH Profit for the year 26,649
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5 WaERkoEER (&) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
(c) 2TER (&) (c) Segment information (Continued)
FFAGEEEREREM D IR Other segment items included in the consolidated
B: statement of comprehensive income:

PRt 5% {4t pE 3 fR%E  MERER
R 3% SEXEK BREK
Property

Apparel Investment

Supply Chain Apparel and

Servicing Retail Development
Business Business Business Total
TET TER TET TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

nE BEREENE Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment 11,466 - - 11,466
TREEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 13,333 = = 13,333
EFEEHE Amortisation of intangible assets 3,256 = = 3,256
BERERE Allowance for inventory impairment 1,447 = = 1,447
RIERE Allowance for doubtful debts 7,258 = = 7,258
R-ZE—hhF+-_A=1+—HHD The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2019
HEERABBWNT: are as follows:

g 5% {4t pE 4 IR MERER
R %3 ZEEK BREK
Property

Apparel Investment

Supply Chain Apparel and

Servicing Retail Development
Business Business Business Unallocated Total
TERT TERT THERT TERT TERT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EERE Total assets 698,446 - - 1,884 700,330

BEBE Total liabilities 267,885 = = 119,817 387,702
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6 WYX BMERRE 6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

HEEE HKARKE L INEE s RE @t

Leasehold Furniture office Motor
improvements  and fixtures  equipment Machinery vehicles Total
ST FEL

TET TET TAT TAL TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZB-AF-F—-H At1January 2019

AR Cost 1,294 14,561 1,414 7,404 35,165 7197 67,035
ZithE Accumulated depreciation (241) (13,165) (1410) (6512) (27,739) (5,081) (54,152)
REFE Net book amount 1,053 1,39 - 892 742 2,116 12,883
BE-E-AF Year ended 31 December 2019
+ZB=t-HLEE
FNRAFE Opening net book amount 1,053 1,39 - 892 7,426 2116 12,883
G BREBAERZ Adjustment for change in
accounting policy - - - - - (1,234) (1,234)
REFFNEAFE Restated opening net book amount 1,053 1,3% - 892 7426 882 11,649
ERES Exchange differences (22) (66) ®) (15) (153) 21) (285)
AE Additions - 3847 984 560 774 A 6,706
WEREAR Acquisition of subsidiaries - 2,600 1,393 196 53,290 255 57,734
ik Disposals = (115) (10) (157) (463) (18) (763)
HER (MFE30@)  Depreciation charge (note 30(a)) (54) (2,705) 917) (343) (6,965 (482) (11,466)
FREAFE Closing net book amount 971 4,957 1,442 1133 53,909 1,157 63,575
RZE-h% At 31 December 2019
+-A=+-8
AR Cost 1,266 16,428 3,083 6,248 83,967 5475 116,467
ZitHE Accumulated depreciation (289) (11471) (1,601) (5,115) (30,058) 4318) (52,892)
REFE Net book amount 977 4,957 1,442 1133 53,909 1,157 63,575
HE-Z-BF Year ended 31 December 2020
+ZR=t-HLEE
FNRAFE Opening net book amount 977 4,957 1,442 1,133 53,909 1,157 63,575
B EHE Exchange differences 59 167 26 56 432 46 786
AE Additions - 1,312 7 284 1,342 - 2,945
L& Disposals - (31 - (4) (83) - (118)
TERS (H530@)  Depreciation charge (note 30(a)) (58) (3,185) (462) (281) (8,784) (455) (13,225)
FREEFE Closing net book amount 978 3,220 1,013 1,188 46,816 748 53,963
R-B-ZF At 31 December 2020
+=A=+-H
AR Cost 1,347 16,944 3,170 6,763 86,624 5,595 120,443
ZithE Accumulated depreciation (369) (13,724) (2,157) (5,575) (39,808) (4,847) (66,430)
FHFE Net book amount 978 3220 1,013 1,188 46,816 748 53,963
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6 ME - BERRZEH) 6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
(@) REFEEEZAERERMBEOTERS (@) Depreciation expense has been charged to the
m consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
follows:

BE+t-A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-%F —F-NF
2020 2019
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
& A Cost of sales 2,712 6,883
TEAX Administrative expenses 10,513 4,583
13,225 11,466
7 HE 7 LEASES
AWERERAEEEAEBANHEESR This note provides information for leases where the Group is a
o lessee.
(@) REEHBEMRRREINRE (@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position
FEMBRARIRT AT &IER The consolidated statement of financial position shows the
HEBBEMIE . following amounts relating to leases:
BR+=B=+—H
As at 31 December
—ECEF —E-NF
2020 2019
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
EREEE Right-of-use assets
gF Buildings 8,501 17,563
RE Motor vehicles 670 953
9,171 18,516
HEAE Lease liabilities
e Current (3,800) (9,352)
FETRED Non-current (5,515) (9,315)
(9,315) (18,667)
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7 MHE#E) 7 LEASES (Continued)

(@) RGREMBRRREINKIE (@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
(#&) statement of financial position (Continued)
BHE_Z-_ZEF+_-_A=+—H Jt There were no additions to the right-of-use assets during
FE TEABEFRAEEE(ZZ the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019 — HK$21,595,000).
— L - 21,595,000 T ©

BE_Z_FTF+-_A=t—HLt
FE- I,ﬁﬂi’%ﬁ%*&éf‘(_?
— N5 - 12,636,000 7T ©

There were no disposals of the right-of-use assets during
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019 — HK$12,636,000).

(b) RFE2HEREREINRIE (b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income
RAEEERE i‘%ﬁlJ/T\TLATRIEEﬁ The consolidated statement of comprehensive income
HEBBHR shows the following amounts relating to leases:

BE+-A=1+—-HLHEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-%F

—E—NF
2019
FHET
HK$'000

2020
FHET
HK$'000

EREEERERX Depreciation charge of
right-of-use assets
B Buildings (9,089) (13,052)
E Motor vehicles (283) (281)
(9,372) (13,333)
FMEBRAZ (FFARE Interest expense (included
FRAS) in finance cost) 25 (677) (1,085)
HISHIE A RBMIBISL  Expense relating to short-term
(GFASEER AR leases (included in cost of sales
TERFAX) and administrative expenses) 22 (200) (903)
HEEEEEME Expense relating to leases of
(WER EXHAE low-value assets that are not
HHEEE)FEN shown above as short-term
BsZ (5t AfTEBSZ)  leases (included in administrative
expenses) 22 (313) (117)

HEz_Z2_ZTF+_A=+—
BIEFE- %ﬂ&aiﬁé}mﬁﬁ@%ﬁ%’]

The total cash outflow for leases during the year ended
31 December 2020 was approximately HK$9,840,000 (2019

79,840,000 L (ZE — L F— - HK$13,975,000).
13,975,000/ 7T ) °

(c) *EENHEETHRNMAHEAE (c) The Group's leasing activities and how these
ETETEE are accounted for
AEBHERAZEANBRERZE®WA The Group leases various offices and vehicles. Rental

BE-HEAHNEHBREES—
ERF-

contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 5
years.
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8 ®\IEE 8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
BB G EER#%Z st
Computer Customer

software relationships Total
FHL FHET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZZE—hF—H—H As at 1 January 2019
X 7R Cost 1,621 - 1,621
RETEE Accumulated amortisation (1,242) = (1,242)
FEFE Net book amount 379 - 379

HE-_Z—NF+-A=t+—H Yearended 31 December 2019

HFE
FYREFE Opening net book amount 379 - 379
NE Additions 236 - 236
U BRI B A 7 Acquisition of subsidiaries = 12,000 12,000
fE X E Exchange difference ©) - ©)
5 (FI3E30(@) ) Amortisation (note 30(a)) (256) (3,000) (3,256)
FIRETFE Closing net book amount 350 9,000 9,350

RZZE-AF+-A=+—H As at 31 December 2019

XA Cost 1,822 12,000 13,822
ERE Accumulated amortisation (1,472) (3,000) (4,472)
FEEFE Net book amount 350 9,000 9,350

BE-Z-TF+-A=+—H Yearended 31 December 2020

HEE
FHETFE Opening net book amount 350 9,000 9,350
NE Additions 21 - 21
fEHZER Exchange difference 22 - 22
#35 (FI7E30() ) Amortisation (note 30(a)) (63) (4,000) (4,063)
FRIEMFE Closing net book amount 330 5,000 5,330

R_ZE-_TF+-_A=+—H As at 31 December 2020

[N Cost 1,960 12,000 13,960
RETEE Accumulated amortisation (1,630) (7,000) (8,630)
REFE Net book amount 330 5,000 5,330
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8. BEEE#H) 8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(i) EFBE (i) Ccustomer relationships
BMREBEHBREESE,HE The customer relationships were acquired as part of a
FR-BERKBERZEAFETMNU business combination. They are recognised at their fair
BRREEBRES LG AR value at the date of acquisition and are subsequently
FHANEBNASRENKHEEE amortised on a straight-line based on the timing of
AREAERES o projected cash flows of the contracts over their estimated

useful lives.
9. BHE 9 GOODWILL

T
HK$'000

BE-ZE-hG+-A=+—HLEE Year ended 31 December 2019
FHEREFE Opening net book amount =
W B BT B8 2 A) Acquisition of subsidiaries 134,035
FRREFE Closing net book amount 134,035

RZE—-—NF+=ZA=+—H As at 31 December 2019

B AR Cost 134,035
ZERE Accumulated impairment =
IREFE Net book amount 134,035
FET
HK$'000

BE-_Z-_ZEF+-A=+—-HLEFE Year ended 31 December 2020
FYREFE Opening net book amount 134,035
AE Impairment (122,648)
FREmFE Closing net book amount 11,387

RZEZTF+=ZA=+—AH As at 31 December 2020

B 7R Cost 134,035
R2iPRE Accumulated impairment (122,648)
BREFE Net book amount 11,387
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9. BME#E) 9

(a) mERENR
EREEHASEERUBBELET

.
B

TRISIESEEARENRLE
B EBRR

GOODWILL (continued)

(@) Impairment test for goodwill
Goodwill is monitored by management at the level of
Splendid Gains Group.

The following table sets out the key assumptions for the
CGU that has significant goodwill allocated to them:

S5

it (4F R %% )
HEERE (f5135%)
BB BT (%)

ERERTIINABENEKE Lt
BETERZRWER:

Assumption

Yak (FIEEE%)

Revenue (% annual growth rate)

BEENE (M)

Budgeted gross margin (% of revenue)

BREIATRRIRZE (%)
Pre-tax discount rates

BEEH
Splendid
Gains Group

2020
Revenue (% annual growth rate) 3.0
Budgeted gross margin (% of revenue) 12.0
Pre-tax discount rate (%) 17.9

Management has determined the values assigned to each
of the above key assumptions as follows:

EEEEMALE
Approach used to determine the value

TEBAMATHFERE - ANRBRATRE EEEHT
BERNEHET - BE _ZT-NFEE_T_ZFENKR
W A38.6%  BEEZE2019EMESHEENIEE  BRBESHE
WIS RIE S BB E IS B E B - e g R R TR TER
MM RIEE-

Average annual growth rate over the five-year forecast period.
It is determined based on past performance, management’s
expectations of market development. Despite there was a
decrease in revenue by 38.6% for the year 2019 to 2020, with
the promote of COVID-19 vaccine, the coronavirus disease is
gradually under control and the consume market will gradually
recover, revenue growth rate is expected to be positive over the
forecast period.

REBABATEMNBERENBES L EDRBReEES
URBARBREREEHRROFBIET -

Average margin as a percentage of revenue over the five-year
forecast period. It is determined based on the CGU's past
performance and management’s expectations for the future.

RMEREEFEMIESEMEARBBNTERER -
Reflect specific risks relating to the CGU and the countries in
which it operates.
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9. BHEE) 9  GOODWILL (continued)

(b) TERRATEHNEE (b) Impact of possible changes in key

HEt EEAEEMRARENF
BEXBREEER_T_FTF
TZA=+—H&NEHHEI% (&
2%IM 3E3% ) - A& B AR IREL
129,148,000/ 7T ©

et EERAEEMRANEEE
MNEREBRER_-_FT_FTF+=
A=+ —H®@EEE1% (R11%
m3E12% ) - A & B A R R E L
134,035,000 7T RULER T - &
ZHE2ERME -

fis) 3R & 7 = T8 R BT FE AR A9 BR B4 A
B EREBEEMNGHT®1% (A
18.9%M IE17.9% ) * NEBEBHER
B £7127,748,0007%8 T °

assumptions

If the annual growth rate of revenue used in the
value-in-use calculation had been 1% lower than
management’s estimates as at 31 December 2020 (2%
instead of 3%), the Group would have had to recognise an
impairment of approximately HK$129,148,000.

If the budgeted gross margin used in the value-in-use
calculation had been 1% lower than management’s
estimates as at 31 December 2020 (11% instead of 12%),
the Group would have had to recognise an impairment of
approximately HK$134,035,000, in which case, the goodwill
will be fully impaired.

If the pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections had been 1% higher than management'’s
estimates (18.9% instead of 17.9%), the Group would
have had to recognise an impairment of approximately
HK$127,748,000.
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el

10 #FE 10 INVENTORIES
R+=—HA=+—8H
As at 31 December
—EBCEE —T—NF
2020 2019
TH T FHE T
HK$'000 HK$'000
Rt Raw materials 36,339 35,464
G Wwork in progress 14,886 10,997
BIRY ah Finished goods 24,357 28,399
75,582 74,860
B FERERE Less: provision for impairment of
inventories (3,157) (2,947)
72,425 71,919
(@) BREPEBERE (a) Assigning costs to inventories

146

(b)

TF R ERR B RAN R A A F 19K
REE °

REZDERNRIE
HE-_T-_ZTF+=-A=+—H
ITFERRAEAINTEARYD
557,885,000 T (ZF — N5 :
890,352,000/ 7T ) ° Z ZE R EF A
SHE P

7 &R B B & 49 52,120,000 7T
— T — AL 1 1,447,0007 70 ) N &L
E-E-TFE+-_A=+—RHIE
BHRERS Yt AGA2HEK
HROMEERA] -

FR AEHCDEHEBAETR S
#1,904,0008 L (=T — AL F:
3,098,000/ 7T ) I B R B X B
T LAY -

(b)

The costs of individual items of inventory are determined
using weighted average costs.

Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Inventories recognised as an expense during the year
ended 31 December 2020 amounted to approximately
HK$557,885,000 (2019: HK$890,352,000). These were
included in cost of sales.

Allowance for inventory impairment amounted to
approximately HK$2,120,000 (2019: HK$1,447,000)
was recognised as an expense during the year ended
31 December 2020 and included in “cost of sales” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

During the vyear, the Group disposed of obsolete goods
amounted to approximately HK$1,904,000 (2019:
HK$3,098,000) and wrote off against the impairment charge
provision.
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11 REJEIHNEMITE 11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

R+=-—HA=+—H
As at 31 December
—B-BF —ZT-NF

2020 2019
TH T FHE T
HK$'000 HK$'000

ERMEE Financial assets

IR ENSREZE  Financial assets at amortised cost

JiE LA AR TR % HL A B R IE Trade and other receivables 12 126,164 189,656
RekBFeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 14 179,835 169,775
305,999 359,431

R+=R=t+—8H
As at 31 December
—E-®F T NF

2020 2019
FE T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000

BRBERAFE2SBARE Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

REHEAATTENEE Liabilities at amortised cost

JEFTBR R EMbJEfZIE*  Trade and other payables* 17 198,105 242,281

BEE Borrowings 18 126,590 91,545

HEGE Lease liabilities 7 9,315 18,667

334,010 352,493

L TEEEMEMNHE *  Excluding other taxes payable.

AEBEESESRITANSERRR The Group’s exposure to various risks associated with the

Bt 523w il - ¥R 5 HA K5 B RS &) & K financial instruments is discussed in note 3. The maximum

FARLigEeREENKREE: exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the
carrying amount of each class of financial assets mentioned
above.
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12 FBEWERR R H M ERRE 12 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
R+t=BA=+—H
As at 31 December
—ECEF —E-NF
2020 2019
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
JE W5 BR TR Trade receivable 119,125 176,935
H fh fE YR IE Other receivables 18,765 12,734
137,890 189,669
BB E R Less: provision for impairment
— FEYBR 3K - Trade receivables (11,726) (13)
126,164 189,656
AEEERTEPONEERBATE ROAE Credit terms granted to customers by the Group are usually 30
WH BXrEXRAEEZHRIRER to 90 days and which are mainly due from customers with good
ERENEFP - RZTE_FTF+=A credit history and low default rate. As at 31 December 2020, the
—t+—H BEREFBEZZHHNE ageing analysis of the trade receivable based on invoice date is
oM : as follows:
R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—BC-BF —E-NEF
2020 2019
FTHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
30H A Within 30 days 54,155 79,219
31E90H 31 to 90 days 41,607 87,702
91£180H 91 to 180 days 8,661 9,822
HEE180H Over 180 days 14,702 192
119,125 176,935
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12 EUWERR KR H it B FIE (&) 12 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
() EWRAERHEMEKRREAF (a) Fair value of trade and other receivables
=]
AR ENRIEN SRS Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables,
RHEHRASEEQNFEMAR - their carrying amounts are considered to be the same as

their fair values.

(b) R{E KR b (b) Impairment and risk exposure
AR ERERFRENER RAEE Information about the impairment of trade receivables and
EZHNEERBRELHM S the Group's exposure to credit risk can be found in note
3.1.
13 FEfARIE 13 PREPAYMENTS
R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—ECEF —E-NEF
2020 2019
FET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
AR RMEHERE - INTE - Prepayments for purchases of raw
JEFEM R ARBE materials, processing fees, consumables
and insurance 35,074 41,620
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14 ReRBREEEY 14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
R+t=BA=+—H
As at 31 December
—EB-EF —E-NF
2020 2019
TER FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RITH S Cash at bank 179,448 169,282
FHERS Cash on hand 387 493
179,835 169,775
15 BRARBRGRE 15 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM
BOIRHEMNEBERAT Ordinary shares issued and fully paid are as follows:
ZERYA ZER R EE @t
Number of
ordinary Ordinary Share
shares Shares premium Total
TET TER TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-BE-BER-F-1%F As at 31 December 2020
+-B=+-H and 2019 600,000,000 60,000 53,441 113,441
RZZE-_ZTF+-_A=+—H %Y The total authorised number of ordinary shares as at
B % 48 #&1,200,000,0000% (=& — A1 31 December 2020 was 1,200,000,000(2019: 1,200,000,000) with
£ :1,200,000,0000% ) * & X B £0.17%8 a par value of HK$0.1 per share (2019: HK$0.1 per share).

T(ZE—NF:BROIET) -

150 ARIRBIEIRBR AT o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED



iR ORI i = b 5t
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16 HfthfEE 16 OTHER RESERVES
E 5 A EERE AOHRE BARE REAE
Exchange  Statutory Merger Capital Total
reserve reserve reserve reserve reserves
FHET THER FHET FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Hi&@) GEIDD
(note (a)) (note (b))
R-ZE-hE-A—-H As at 1 January 2019 655 11,597 2,957 3,872 19,081
BN =% Currency translation difference (558) - - - (558)
RZE-hE As at 31 December 2019
+=ZA=+—-H 97 11,597 2,957 3,872 18,523
EHESR Currency translation difference 4,552 - - - 4,552
R-B-EF As at 31 December 2020
+=-A=+-H 4,649 11,597 2,957 3,872 23,075
(a) EERE (a) Statutory reserve
IR A B R ) R A BB B A Ry 4R In accordance with the PRC regulations and the Articles of
BERMA AEBMNPBEAFA Association of the PRC companies, the PRC subsidiaries
RIREE TR RETEIBE RARE of the Group are required to make appropriations from
YE L & F 9 R AT - B4R A o BR = 0% net profits to the statutory reserve, after offsetting
TEREB - PEELAESHN RN T accumulated losses from prior years, and before profit
AHBHFRENBARNESSE distributions are made to shareholders. The percentages
TE of profits to be appropriated to the above funds are
determined by the board of directors of the PRC
subsidiaries.
AEEEEH R EBAR R HIREF The principal PRC subsidiaries of the Group appropriates
EAREFRAUGRIERE R4 10% of their net profit as shown in the accounts prepared
MORBEEZERFE EE%HEE under PRC generally accepted accounting principles to
3 B FE & AN50% o VA TE 7 1 1R statutory reserve, until the reserve reaches 50% of the
ARMEZEAR ADIKRKRERE registered capital. Appropriation of the statutory reserve
i o must be made before distribution of dividends to equity
holders.
(b) &EBtEE (b) Merger reserve

AEENEHEESRER-F
——EFERNBEMEEHE QT
PR B LR ER ER AR AN P BEAT AR
AR R ZHE -

Merger reserve of the Group represented the difference
between the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the reorganisation completed in 2012 over the
nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued
in exchange thereof.
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17 BENERIRAEMESRE 17 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—ECEF ZZT—hF
2020 2019
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERTBR AN — B 88 = T 5KIR Trade payables - due to third parties
(BzE®D)) (note (b)) 110,485 118,094
FERT 1T (FIFEQ)) Bills payable (note (c)) 68,059 98,384
JEETT & Accrued payroll 11,108 15,383
b FE A 5RIB Other payables 8,425 10,276
H M ERHIE Other taxes payable 3,632 4,011
FEAT B 5 A (FFEE32(a)) Due to related parties (note 32(a)) 28 144
201,737 246,292

(@) ENERFRHEMESARKEZA (@) Fair value of trade and other payables
T
B FE 1< BR K I L B 5 SR IE R 52 A The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are
ME WEEEERAEAEATE considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their
iEIEK short-term nature.

(b) ENERAEBER AEEEBH (b) Trade payables are unsecured. The credit period granted
ERE H B EEBRN FI0E0R ° by the Group's principal suppliers ranges from 30 to 90
RZEZZTF+_A=+—8 & days. As at 31 December 2020, the ageing analysis of trade
NEEFERBEZEDHNER TN payables based on invoice date is as follows:

T
BR+=B=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-EF —T-NF
2020 2019
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
308 2R Within 30 days 73,197 65,851
31290H 31 to 90 days 31,294 37,259
912180H 91 to 180 days 2,982 5,015
HBiB180H Over 180 days 3,012 9,969
110,485 118,094

(c) ENEZEBEHAEEARNZAAEE (c) Bills payable were guaranteed by companies within the
RERBETAHERH=EAR Group, which have to be settled within three months from
BE- the date of issue.
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18 fBE 18 BORROWINGS
R+=A=+-H
As at 31 December
—E-8& —T-NEF
2020 2019
ik FRB mE E i)
Current  Non-Current Current  Non-Current
FHT FHT FAEL FHL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RITEE (F@) Bank Borrowing (note (a)) 126,590 - 91,545 -
(@) WITEE (a) Bank borrowings
() AEBRITEERERIUTHE (i)  The Group’s bank borrowings are repayable as
BER (TRIEEMEEX follows (excluding any demand clauses):
BEIER) -

R+t=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-EF —E-NF
2020 2019
FET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
—F R Within one year 115,153 91,545
—EWE Between 1 and 2 years 7,165 -
ZERF Between 2 and 5 years 4,272 -
126,590 91,545
iy FERTEEDRZENE (i)  All the bank borrowings are at variable interest
R -RZEZETF+ A rates. The weighted average effective interest rate
—t+—HOMEFHERS per annum as at 31 December 2020 was 2.23%
F & /B2.23% (ZE—NF (31 December 2019: 4.84%).

+=—A=+—8:48%) °

(iiy ANEBRITEENFEREF (i) The exposure of the Group’s bank borrowings to
ERUAREGEHEFEER R interest rate changes and the contractual repricing
—E=ZFR- dates were within one to three year.
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19 EEFRESEERELEHRESRE 19 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED TAX
LIABILITIES

(@) EZEMREBEEE (a) Deferred tax assets

R+=A=+—§
As at 31 December
—g-®F —T-NF

2020 2019
THExT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000

EREREUTSEREGHN The balance comprises temporary

TR ERE: differences attributable to:
EREE Bad debt allowance 1,940 3
GERBERE Inventory impairment allowance 776 725
fteTs Social security 1,088 892
R IEYT & Decelerated tax depreciation - 241
Hfb Others - 23
3,804 1,884
EEHEEE: Deferred tax assets:
—121& A A Uk E & — Deferred tax assets to be
FIERTE & B recovered within 12 months 2,716 728
—12{E A & U 21 7Y - Deferred tax assets to be
REFHIBEE recovered after 12 months 1,088 1,156
3,804 1,884

BRAE RFEAERE H8R2 WEHERE Hit st
Inventory Decelerated
Bad debt  impairment Social tax
Movements allowance allowance security ~ depreciation Others Total
BT BT T T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-E-A%-F-H As at 1 January 2019 335 1,110 694 25 = 2,364
ERER Translation difference (1) 6 ) - ) %)
REE (1K) /A (Charged)/credited to
profit or loss (331) (391) 204 16 25 (477)
W=Z-AF+=A=+-H Asat31December 2019 3 725 892 241 3 1,884
R-E-2%-5-A As at 1 January 2020 3 725 892 241 23 1,884
ERES Translation difference - 14 21 - (1) 34
REB#EHA/ (1B) Credited/(charged) to
profit or 10ss 1,937 37 175 (241) (22) 1,886
WZZE-ZE+-A=1-H Asat 31 December 2020 1,940 776 1,088 - - 3,804

154 ARIRBIEIRBR AT o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED



iR ORI i = b 5t
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19 EERESEREEHRESRE 19 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED TAX
(%) LIABILITIES (continued)

(b) EEREBEERE (b) Deferred tax liabilities

R+=A=+—8
As at 31 December
—E-FF —TNF

2020 2019
THE T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000

EREREUTSEEGH The balance comprises temporary

TR EE differences attributable to:
R IEITE Decelerated tax depreciation (1,751) (3,084)
BENIHIEE Assets appraisal increment (1,049) (1,783)
(2,800) (4,867)
EERIEEE: Deferred tax liabilities:
- 128 A RN#EE A - Deferred tax liabilities to be
EERIEEE utilised within 12 months (2,486) (759)
- 1218 A& & A — Deferred tax liabilities to be
RERIEEE utilised after 12 months (314) (4,108)
(2,800) (4,867)

BERBERE BEFIMGEE st

Decelerated Assets

tax appraisal
Movements depreciation increment Total
FHET TR FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=ZE-N&%—-A—H As at 1 January 2019 = = -
WK B A A Acquisition of subsidiaries 3,084 2,353 5,437
FTABR Credited to profit or loss = (570) (570)
RZE—-AE+=ZHE=+—H As at 31 December 2019 3,084 1,783 4,867
R-ZE-ZE%—-A—H As at 1 January 2020 3,084 1,783 4,867
FTABR Credited to profit or loss (1,333) (734) (2,067)
R-ZZB-ZFE+=-H=+—H As at 31 December 2020 1,751 1,049 2,800
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20 Hflw A 20 OTHER INCOME

BE+t-A=1+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 December

—E-EF —E—AF
2020 2019
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
AR (B9 k@) Government subsidies (note (a)) 3,250 =
REFABHHHES KA Rental income from subcontractors 386 1,004
EAh Others 82 =
3,718 1,004
(@ MIZZEZZ=FEWIEBBMNER (@) Government subsidies during the year 2020 mainly relates
FETS ([REEFE]HEEN to Employment Support Scheme(ESS) received from the
BT #6 Bl o Hong Kong government.
21 Hittlzm— 35 21 OTHER GAINS - NET

BEt+t-A=1t—-RLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-FF —EF-NF
2020 2019
THER T
HK$'000 HK$'000

B BEUE M) RS Claims received from customers for
order cancellation 569 859

HEWE  WE KRBT Net losses on disposal of

518 property, plant and equipment (30) (635)
BE N W (518 ) $ 5 Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) 378 (10)
i) Others 23 (38)

940 176
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22 EMEESBEX 22 EXPENSES BY NATURE

BREHERAN D HKARITRAX
AEFSZ AT T

Expenses included in cost of sales, distribution costs and
administrative expenses are analysed as follows:

BE+t-A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

—g-%F

—

2020
FE T
HK$'000

—E-NF
2019
FHETT
HK$'000

BRmEERLEEZD Changes in inventories of finished
goods and work in progress 153 35,028
T B R M 8 K B FE G Raw materials and consumables
EINTE REREE @ used, processing fee paid and
merchandise purchased 557,732 855,324
AR A Impairment of goodwill 122,648 =
EERAIFZ (Mz24) Employee benefit expenses (note 24) 74,790 86,932
MM (W:E70)) Rental expenses (note 7(b)) 513 1,020
ERHAY Transportation expenses 10,711 16,313
FERERE (H10) Allowance for inventory impairment
(note 10) 2,120 1,447
T8 IR 8 Depreciation and amortisation 26,660 28,055
HEMAYT Travelling expenses 3,027 6,580
FE B 7 2 Entertainment expenses 3,478 5,898
ZERBE Professional service fees 3,297 6,877
KEE Utilities 4,896 4,101
% B RN BN & Auditors’ remuneration
EZR % Audit services 1,904 3,817
EEZ R Non-audit services 100 376
HeRX Commission expenses 1,200 2,359
HIERRERX Repairs and maintenance expenses 832 1,438
RITFX Bank charges 484 1,018
EHh Others 10,819 11,036
SHEMA - DR ARITHRF L% Total cost of sales, distribution costs
and administrative expenses 825,364 1,067,619
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23 TRREHNEEREFESE 23 NET IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON FINANCIAL AND
CONTRACT ASSETS

BEZ+-A=1t—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-FF —EF-NF
2020 2019
FE T THT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RIREAE (BI7E3.1(0)) Allowance for doubtful debts (note 3.1(b)) 11,726 7,258
24 EERAMAX 24 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

BE+t-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-%F —F-NF
2020 2019
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
TE FHe kit Wages, salaries and bonuses 59,494 68,358
BEERSREEEH M Directors” and senior
management’s emoluments 10,856 12,414
e REER A Social security costs 1,539 3,574
& % K 2 Bh Welfare and allowances 2,901 2,586
74,790 86,932
HE_T-ZTF+-A=+—HIFE" During the year ended 31 December 2020, the five individuals
AEBREGZRFATBERE (ZF whose emoluments were the highest in the Group included
—NE2R)EF-EENHESE2ER 2 (2019: 2) directors. The directors’ emoluments are reflected
M2 DT - REBE_T T F in the analysis show in note 34. The emoluments payable to
TZA=T—BLEFEXZMERIE (= the remaining 3 (2019: 3) individuals during the year ended
T—NF 3B)ATHBMEOT 31 December 2020 are as follows:

BEZt+t-A=1t—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—EF-FF —F-NF

2020 2019
FE T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000

EARFS HM2AIAREYWREM  Basic salaries, other allowances and

benefits in kind 3,393 3,648

4L Bonuses 140 900
B E R RET B 3K Employer’s contribution to pension

scheme 50 46

3,583 4,594
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24

25

BERAMBEX (4
RN B B IA T 4R R -

HENA R
1,000,0017% 7T % 1,500,000/ 7T
1,500,001 7T &2,000,000/% 7T

24 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continuead)

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

BE+T-A=1t—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-hF
2020 2019
AE
Number of individuals

—g-%%F

—_—

Emolument bands:
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 2 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1 1

/8 3 ON S PSS

25 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

BE+=-A=1t—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E_EF —E-hF

—_—

2020 2019

FE T
HK$'000

TR
HK$'000

BRI A Finance income
— R HERIT I KA A B A - Interest income on short-term bank
deposits 566 1,157
L= %N Finance costs
—RITEENF B — Interest expense on bank borrowings (6,702) (9,336)
—BEff /ENEREERNE R — Interest and finance charges
A paid/payable for lease liabilities (677) (1,085)
— SN 15 TR B ke - Net exchange gains/(losses) on
(B18)F8 foreign currency borrowings 532 (264)
(6,847) (10,685)
& AT R Net finance costs (6,281) (9,528)
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26 FriE# (E&%) BX 26 INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

(@) Fri8%t (E&L) BAX (@) Income tax (credit)/expense

BE+t-A=1+—HILEFE
Year ended 31 December

—E-EF —T—NF
2020 2019
FET T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BER P15 H4 Current income tax

—HEEMSH - PRC corporate income tax ("CIT")

([EFmBER]) - 530

—BAFEH — Hong Kong profits tax 130 6,609

130 7,139
EIEFTISHE (FHI5E19) Deferred income tax (note 19) (3,953) (93)
EREH Corporate income tax (3,823) 7,046
TEHAR withholding tax (353) 115
FiE# (Ee) FX Income tax (credit)/expense (4,176) 7,161

() BEHESFEH (i)  cayman Islands profits tax
KRR BB EMNEMFES B The Company has not been subject to any taxation in
ST the Cayman Islands.

(i) BEFEH (i) Hong Kong profits tax
HE_Z-ZFR=-Z—N Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime for the
F+ZA=1+—HILFE" year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the profits
BREFESH MRS tEE tax rate for the first HK$2,000,000 of assessable
2,000,000/ 7T Ji& &8 4 4 F &9 profits is lowered to 8.25% (half of the rate specified
FISRR E T H=8.25% (& in Schedule 8 to the Inland Revenue Ordinance).
7B T 755 6k D1 Bt R8P R E Bt 3R Assessable profits above HK$2,000,000 continue to
2 —3) 2,000,000 7T A £ be subject to the rate of 16.5%.

B FE R B ) A 4B 4B H B R
16.5%5 7t ©
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26 8

(E&) BxX(#)

(@ FmBH (ER) BX &)
(i) R EFEH

(iv)

v)

BRESBER L AE@2E
B8 A~ 7 2 —Agile Sweater
(Cambodia) Co. Ltd&EZ= ==
—EFE+-A=1+—HEK
RE20%BHFIBR -BEZ
E-AE+-A=+—81t
FE HEEEIHBER
HB THARERBEELE
FRig%L o

HE R FEEF ([ EHE
#/)

ANEEHE TR AP EREMAK
MERBCENMSHIHER
i % RIR B 5% (—F
—JLEF 1 25%) ©

& B 7R A1 Fr 15 %
REBCEMEHRZE HEE
AEBBIIEBERAB MR
BB BREMBHROZEE
AEBRAFERBESY (=
T — N F 5% H e H o B
B~ R B AR B R TR
Mo

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (Continued)

Income tax (credit)/expense (Continuea)
(iij) Cambodia profits tax

Pursuant to the Cambodia tax laws, Agile Sweater
(Cambodia) Co. Ltd, one of the wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group, is subject to 20% profits
tax rate for the year ended 31 December 2020. For
the year ended 31 December 2019, it is entitled to
preferential tax treatment with full exemption from
Cambodia corporate income tax.

(iv) PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”)

v)

CIT is provided at the rate of 25% (2019: 25%) on the
assessable profit of the entities within the Group
incorporated in the PRC.

PRC withholding income tax

According to the CIT Law, as there is a tax treaty
arrangement between the PRC and Hong Kong where
the Group’s foreign immediate holding companies
are located, a withholding tax on dividends from
subsidiaries in the PRC has been provided for at a
rate of 5% during the year (2019: 5%).
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26 FriE®H (E&%) BX (&) 26 INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (Continued)

(b) FIEHMXEFAD (b) Numerical reconciliation of income tax

expenses

AEBERBA (BR) s Feii
BERMNNIRAERN S AEERD
REBER (E1E) JsF emeg
FHABEFENERER S FEN
T

The tax on the Group’s (l0ss)/profit before tax differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted
average tax rate applicable to (losses)/profits of the
Group's entities in the respective jurisdictions as follows:

BE+t-A=1t—-RLHEE
Year ended 31 December

—B-BF —E-NEF
2020 2019
FHExT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRETISFLAT (BB), 5 (Loss)/profit before income tax (153,025) 33,810
HEAREREERER Tax calculated at rates applicable
NEBE TR A to profits of the Group’s entities
HETEMTIE in the respective jurisdictions (25,530) 5,923
WEEREEMEHEERN Tax losses for which no deferred
HIEEE income tax assets were recognised 2,820 1,067
HRBE Y EERELERIE Recognition of tax losses for which
BEMTIAEE no deferred tax assets were
recognised previously (883) -
BIERTLE A Income not subject to tax (1,074) (423)
R Expenses not deductible for
tax purposes 20,844 479
A Withholding tax (353) 115
Big (Ee) FX Tax (credit)/charge (4,176) 7,161
(c) HIEESE (c) Tax losses

162

RZEZFTF+=ZA=+—8"
7N 5 B 3 4 B 85 18 4916,943,00078
7T ( —Z— FL4 1 7,890,000/ 7T ) i
R BT 15 B & EE 494,751,00078
T(ZE—hEFE+ZA=+—H:
1,932,000 70) DA R A EE
KREEMEE G S B AR R IEFRH %7 A
EIR TR BB - RIETRRAR A
RIEEBRITRATHMANEE K
SEARRIERFLULA o

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not recognise
deferred income tax assets of approximately HK$4,751,000
(31 December 2019: HK$1,932,000) in respect of losses
amounting to approximately HK$16,943,000, (2019:
HK$7,890,000), as it is uncertain that future taxable profit
will be available against which the tax losses can be
utilised. In accordance with the PRC tax law, tax losses may
be carried forward to offset against future taxable income
for a period of five years.
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27 BR (F58) BF 27 (LOSSES)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
(@) BREX (FHE) BF (@) Basic (losses)/earnings per share
BREXR (BEB) /BFZRARQA Basic (losses)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing
EEEBAEBEFEAN(BR) the (loss)/profit for the year attributable to equity holders
FIBR LA A E 81T L @A pniE 19 of the Company by the weighted average number of
HErE - ordinary shares in issue during the year.

BE+t-A=1+—HILEFE
Year ended 31 December
—E-®BF —TAF

2020 2019
FEx T
HK$'000 HK$'000

KA EBARIEFEA (Loss)/profit for the year attributable

(B8, /%7 (F&T) to equity holders of the Company
(HK$'000) (148,849) 26,649
BT E @A N T Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue 600,000,000 600,000,000
FIREAN (EE) /&BF (3T) Basic (losses)/earnings per share (HK$) (0.2481) 0.0444
(b) BREE (FR) BF (b) Diluted (losses)/earnings per share
HRBZEZE_Z_TF+_A=+— As there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares during
AEFEATEAETESEYEN the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil), diluted
TR (ZE—NF 8) HEk (losses)/earnings per share was equal to basic (losses)/
wE (518 BNERERER earnings per share.
(E18) /&F-
28 BE 28 DIVIDEND
R -_ZF=ZA=+H AXQRAESE On 30 March 2020, the directors of the Company approved
eEMEREREE_ZT—NALF+=A and declared a final dividend for the year ended 31 December
=T+ —BHIEFESRE®ER0.03BTH 2019 of HK$0.03 per ordinary share. A total sum amounted to
REABRBE -ARARFANBRE BT HK$18,000,000 was paid out of the retained earnings of the
9 4258 318,000,000/ JC ° Company during the year.
EEgREITEEMEE 2 =2F The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of a
TZA=T—HBLEFERNKREARKRE - final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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29 MIBAF 29 SUBSIDIARIES
RZEZEFFT_HA=1T—HHHBEA The following is a list of subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020:
AT :

ERTR
AR B EEMAER TEEK BR/EMEE FiERaERE L
Issued and
paid up Effective percentage of

Name of company Type of legal status Principal activities capital equity holding
“B-%F  SB-hF
2020 2019

WEAR-REBEZHE ((REELHEERAY EEEEERERER
Subsidiaries - incorporated in the British Virgin Islands ("BVI"),
operated in Hong Kong and directly owned

Higrowth Ventures Limited BREF REZR 1,000% T 100% 100%
Higrowth Ventures Limited Limited liability Investment holding UsD1,000 100% 100%
BERARBRAR BRER BREZR 1,001 100% 100%
Rich Vast International Limited Limited liability Investment holding UsD1,001 100% 100%
ETREBRAR BREHR BEZR 1,001% 100% 100%
Mega Dollar Investment Limited Limited liability Investment holding UsD1,001 100% 100%
Hero Shine Global Limited BEREE REER E 100% 100%
Hero Shine Global Limited Limited liability Investment holding UsD1 100% 100%
HRERBRAR BREE REZR 1,25% 7T 100% 100%
Splendid Gains International Limited Limited liability Investment holding USD1,225 100% 100%
Hanson Global International Limited BREMR REZK 1007 100% 100%
Hanson Global International Limited Limited liability Investment holding Usb100 100% 100%
Porthase Holdings Limited BREF REZR (E 100% 100%
Portbase Holdings Limited Limited liability Investment holding UsD1 100% 100%

WEAR-RPEEMEIREEREERES
Subsidiaries - incorporated and operated in the PRC and indirectly owned

REARRRERERAA NEBELE PR f e S AR TS 3 75 40,000,0007% 7T 100% 100%

Dongguan Speedy Garment Manufacturing Wholly-foreign owned  Apparel Supply Chain HK$40,000,000 100% 100%
Company Limited enterprise Servicing Business

BEEK(EN)BERAR NEBERE FRE G ESRRR E5 10,000,000 7. 100% 100%

Koyip Garment (Huizhou) Manufactory Ltd. Wholly-foreign owned  Apparel Supply Chain HK$10,000,000 100% 100%
enterprise Servicing Business
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29 MIBAT (&) 29 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

ERTR
INCEL EEM AR FEEK BR/EMEA FERERERBIL
Issued and
paid up Effective percentage of

Name of company Type of legal status Principal activities capital equity holding
R ZE-E
2020 2019

WEAR-REBIMRIREERMERE
Subsidiaries - incorporated and operated in Hong Kong and indirectly owned

MERREK (FE)ERAR BRER PR (i e SR AR TS 2 75 10,0007 7T 100% 100%

Speedy Garment Manufacturing (Hong Kong) Limited liability Apparel Supply Chain HK$10,000 100% 100%
Limited Servicing Business

BERE (HR)BRAR BREME PR A FE SR AR TS 2 75 1,000,000/ 7 100% 100%

Jointex Garment Manufactory Limited Limited liability Apparel Supply Chain HK$1,000,000 100% 100%
Servicing Business

BEHKERAF BREE TR EEREER 10,000/ 7T 100% 100%

Goalwill Garment Manufactory Limited Limited liability Apparel Supply Chain HK$10,000 100% 100%
Servicing Business

REEX(FA)BRAR BREE FREG R RIS %75 10,000/ 7 100% 100%

Pageant Enterprise (Hong Kong) Limited Limited liability Apparel Supply Chain HK$10,000 100% 100%
Servicing Business

BELERERAR BREMR REMERREES 10,000/ 7T 100% 100%

Well Faith Enterprise Limited Limited liability Apparel Supply Chain HK$10,000 100% 100%
Servicing Business

Speedy Global Finance Limited BREM REHERRBEES BT 100% -

Speedy Global Finance Limited Limited liability Apparel Supply Chain HK$1 100% -
Servicing Business

WEAR-RREEMRL AEBEERBERE
Subsidiary - incorporated in the United Kingdom, operated in Hong Kong and directly owned

Topline Garment Limited BRAMF REHERRBERS 15 - 100%
Topline Garment Limited Limited liability Apparel Supply Chain GBP1 - 100%
Servicing Business

WEARA-RRBEIMAIREERMERS
Subsidiary - incorporated and operated in Cambodia and indirectly owned

Agile Sweater (Cambodia) Company Limited BREMR REMEREREES 5,000,000 7T 100% 100%
Agile Sweater (Cambodia) Company Limited Limited liability Apparel Supply Chain USD5,000,000 100% 100%
Servicing Business
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30 REREEH

(a) REMBHRE

30 CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(a) Cash generated from operations

BE+t-HA=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-EF —ZT—hF
2020 2019
FHET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
FR(E8R),/ H%F (Loss)/profit for the year (148,849) 26,649
BTISIEELFHE: Adjustments for:
—FTER (%) BX — Income tax (credit)/expense
(Hf5E26) (note 26) (4,176) 7,161
—E (M6 k7) - Depreciation (notes 6 and 7) 22,597 24,799
—#85 (KI3E8) - Amortisation (note 8)
4,063 3,256
—EERE (M) — Impairment of goodwill (note 9) 122,648 =
—BEWE - BEREEF — Net losses on disposal of property,
518 (FIEE21) plant and equipment (note 21) 30 635
— B ISR A - Finance income (566) (1,157)
— BB AR - Finance costs 6,847 10,685
—HNE (WaR) /B8 FEE — Net foreign exchange (gains)/losses
(B$zE21) (note 21) (378) 10
—FERERE (M22) - Allowance for inventory impairment
(note 22) 2,120 1,447
—RERE M (FT7E23) — Allowance for doubtful debts (note 23) 11,726 7,258
LEESEEATMLLEF . Operating profit before working
capital changes: 16,062 80,743
-7 - Inventories 737 53,706
— S BR 3R B EL A fE W SR IE —Trade and other receivables 57,991 (94,091)
—FE IR — Prepayments 7,889 (3,939)
— FE A BR 3R B EL M - 3RIE —Trade and other payables (54,960) 51,747
—EHEaE — Contract liabilities (573) 57
KEMBRE Cash generated from operations 27,146 88,223
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30 BEREER (&) 30 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)
(b) EGEReRERP HEWE. (b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds
B REEMERIARE: from disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise:

BE+t-A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-EF —T—NF
2020 2019
THEx T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
IREFE (BMf5E6) Net book amount (note 6) 118 763
LEME HERRESF Net losses on disposal of property,
518 (EE21) plant and equipment (note 21) (30) (635)
HEME - BEREHE Proceeds from disposal of property,
Fr {5 5K78 plant and equipment 88 128
(c) ReRBALEEYWFHEYER (c) Net cash and cash equivalents reconciliation
R+=—A=+—8H
As at 31 December
—E-EF —E-NEF
2020 2019
FERT T T
HK$'000 HK$ 000
RehBEEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 179,835 169,775
RITEE-ER—FANEE Bank borrowings — repayable
within one year (126,590) (91,545)
HEBBE-ER—FAEE Lease liabilities — repayable
within one year (3,800) (9,352)
HEBBE-ERN—FRBEE Lease liabilities — repayable
after one year (5,515) (9,315)
RekBReEBY TR Net cash and cash equivalents 43,930 59,563
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30 HEaREER (&) 30 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)
(c) RERBAEEYWFHEYER (c) Net cash and cash equivalents reconciliation
(%) (Continued)

KE
Assets
RER

RESEN

REEDAEAE

MERZBH
HEakE
Lease
liabilities

due within

1 year

Tax
HK$'000

MEREHH
HESE
Lease
liabilities

due after

1 year

TER
HK$'000

Cash

and cash
equivalents
TEx
HK$'000

Liabilities from financing activities
MERZIHN
RITEE

Bank

borrowings
due within

1 year
TER

HK$'000

Total
TR
HK$'000

R=Z-h%-F—Hz  Netcashand cash equivalents

BeRBLEENTE as at 1 January 2019 346,179 (296) (770) (87,253) 257,860
SHBREDAR Adjustment for change in

accounting policy - (10,572) (11,083) - (21,655)

W=Z-h%-F—-HzZ Restated net cash and

BeRBEZEY cash equivalents as at

ENFE 1 January 2019 346,179 (10,868) (11,853) (87,253) 236,205
Bene Cash flows (40,955) 12,955 S 93,125 65,125
WEHBAR Acquisition of subsidiaries (135,275) (5,849) (12,439) (97,430) (250,993)
RERLETH Additions and disposals - net - 789 8,347 - 9,136
RS Foreign exchange adjustments (174) 9 160 13 N0
B Transfer - (6470) 6,470 - -
RZB-NE Net cash and cash equivalents

TZR=t-H2 as at 31 December 2019

RERREEENTE 169,775 (9,352) (9315) (91,545) 59,563
RZZE-Z£-F—-Hz  Netcashand cash equivalents

ReRBLEENTE as at 1 January 2020 169,775 (9,352) (9,315) (91,545) 59,563
RenE Cash flows 6,689 9,327 - (35,045) (19,029)
EXRE Foreign exchange adjustments 3,371 25 - - 3,396
g2 Transfer - (3,800) 3,800 - -
RZB-FE+-F=1—H Net cash and cash equivalents

ZBeRBESENFE as at 31 December 2020 179,835 (3,800 (5,515) (126,590 43,930

31 REHERE 31 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
BETATHELCERE AEERRE The Group's future aggregate minimum lease payments under
REEFIEBBELOT non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Rt=RA=+—-H
As at 31 December
—E-EF —ENF
2019
FAET
HK$'000

2020
FEx
HK$'000

—FR Within 1 year 6,301 57
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32

EXBERIXRS

AEENEBERRRERQR/EXR
ERERAT (REERZH S EMAK
M) HFFH AR AI5A.54% M0 - A& E
MREIER T RITRAERBE L L

WEP—SBENERAMEEHEM
R RERAMET O E LR R &
REEHEEMEBRNZE S BIZITHE
BRAERE-

ARAEERE UTRARALAR
BE-R-TF+-A=t+—AILEE

32 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The immediate and ultimate holding company of the Group is
Sky Halo Holdings Limited (incorporated in the BVI), which owns
54.54% of the Company’s shares. The ultimate controlling party
and chief executive officer of the Group is Mr. Huang.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has, directly
or indirectly, the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other parties in making financial
and operating decisions.

The directors of the Company are of the view that the following
companies and individual were related parties that had
significant transactions or balances with the Group during the

HEASEETERRZABEHNEE

VK year ended 31 December 2020:

a8/ At

Company/Individual

BEBEEREXEBRAR ([BEEE])

(Shing Fun International Industrial Limited
(“Shing Fun International”))

SERX (EMERAR([£EFIM])

(Jinfeng Garment (Huizhou) Company Limited)
("Jinfeng Huizhou")

B A ERR (BN BRAE ([EHEM])

(Yicheng Weaving Garment (Huizhou) Company Limited)
("Yicheng Huizhou")

BeERREMNBRAR ([BEEM])

(Shingfeng Weaving Garment (Huizhou) Company Limited)
(“Shingfeng Huizhou")

REEAMERRER AR ([REHEL])

(Dongguan Zhirong Garment Company Limited)
("Dongguan zhirong")

REmBHEREARAR ([REmBHM])

(Dongguan Hongyue Garment Company Limited)
("Dongguan Hongyue")

BEEEHRBRAR ([BLME])

(Shing Fun Knitting& Garment Limited)(“Shing Fun Knitting"”)

B E KR
Relationship with the Group

RELAAERELRZES
Controlled by Mr. Huang and his brother

mEEERELRES
Controlled by Mr. Huang and his brother

mHEEERELRES
Controlled by Mr. Huang and his brother

mEEEREARES
Controlled by Mr. Huang and his brother

BRELEERELRES
Controlled by Mr. Huang and his brother

mEEEREARES
Controlled by Mr. Huang and his brother

BRELEERELRES
Controlled by Mr. Huang and his brother
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32 EXRAERRS (&) 32 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(a) BAEFRXEF (a) Related party transactions
MRAMBHRREMETREEIN Saved as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,
REBEEZZE_FTF+_A=+— during the year ended 31 December 2020, the following
HIEFE ANEBEGEMERET transactions were carried out between the Group and
UTRG - ARREETRE & related parties. In the opinion of the directors of the
FRGTIRABERBEPET Company, the related party transactions were carried out
BRGF TR R E R B E T in the normal course of business and at terms negotiated
7 e between the Group and the respective related parties.

BE+t-A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-FF —F-NF
2020 2019
FET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
() EVSHEFHEZHT () Rental expenses payable or paid to

fs & Shing Fun Knitting - 133

(i) B TEFITZHE (i) Finance costs incurred for lease with

Vo000 97 %

REM B Dongguan Hongyue 72 39
P 22 B PR Shing Fun International 52 137
& =M Jinfeng Huizhou 16 49
B BN Yicheng Huizhou 6 16
HEEANEE Dongguan zhirong - 331

146 572
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32 EXRAERRS (&) 32 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
(a) BAERFRF (£&) (a) Related party transactions (Continued)
R+=ZA=+—H
As at 31 December
2020 2019
FET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
(i)  E M fETHE (ii)) Other payables
B =N Shingfeng Huizhou 28 27
M Jinfeng Huizhou - 117
28 144
(v) HEEE (iv) Lease liabilities
HEET R Dongguan Hongyu - 2,768
s & B B Shing Fun International - 1,988
=M Jinfeng Huizhou - 672
BB M Yicheng Huizhou - 242
= 5,670
R REE T 4 ﬁ%z\%% S iy The above balances due to related parties are interest free,
HRARERER unsecured and repayable on demand.
(b) SREEEFHMH (b) Senior management’s compensations

BE+t-A=1+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 December
= e

2020 2019
FE& T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000

TERFSUAREMEYREF] Wages and salaries and

other benefits in kind 10,766 12,346
FEERE R A Social security costs 90 68
10,856 12,414
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33 RATFMBERRRRFHEEE 33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY

R+=—HA=+—8H
As at 31 December
—B-BF —E-NEF
2020 2019
B 5 FTHExT T T
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
RB AR ZRE Investments in subsidiaries 226,876 226,876
REEE Current assets
TR A Prepayments 285 145
JE WA B Dividend receivable = 40,000
H fh fE R IE Other receivables 67,391 27,379
RekBeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 12 5
67,688 67,529
BEMAT Total assets 294,564 294,405
R EQUITY
EATESZFEAELEEZRE Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company
f& 7 Share capital 60,000 60,000
B& 17 % 18 Share premium 53,441 53,441
E b Other reserve (o) 46,836 46,836
(REEBR) RERBF (Accumulated losses)/retained earnings () (984) 19,267
159,293 179,544
8E& LIABILITIES
nEEE Current liability
Hfh FE T 5RI8 Other payables 135,271 114,861
ERBERERE Total equity and liability 294,564 294,405
KRR BRRRER T -_—F=A The statement of financial position of the Company was
Zt+—BHREZESHETHUTRER approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2021 and was
Fo signed on its behalf.
BEER BEETR
Huang Chih Shen Huang Li Hun, Serlina
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33 RXATFMBERRRRFHEEE 33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

(#&) RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
(@ EAT(RFEHER) REER (@) Movement of (accumulated losses)/retained
I 4 B earnings of the Company
FET
HK$'000
R-ZE-NE—H—H As at 1 January 2019 10,251
F R Profit for the year 15,016
f% 8 Dividend (6,000)
R-ZE-AFE+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2019 19,267
R-ZE-_ZTF—H—H As at 1 January 2020 19,267
FNEE Loss for the year (2,251)
f% 2 Dividend (18,000)
R-B-_ZEF+=-HA=+—8H As at 31 December 2020 (984)
(b) Hitbf#EE (b) Other reserve
AArHtmFEEERE ST ——4 Other reserve of the Company represented the difference
FTRRE EAFTIIEN B A A RIRE between the investment cost in the subsidiaries acquired
ARELZAR QN RIE B R IRFT B TR AR pursuant to the reorganisation completed in 2012 over the
MEEZFEANESE- nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued

in exchange thereof.
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3 EERFETHAEMS 34 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS
BEEENK
MiETEAL  BAGEGR
Employer's
contribution
toa
retirement
Discretionary benefit
Salary bonus scheme Total
THT THT TER TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE-E-%% Year ended 31 December 2020
+-A=+-HLFE
HITEZE Executive directors
'BRE Mr. Huang 4,049 300 18 4,367
BEEELL Ms Huang Li Hun, Serlina 1,265 - 16 1,281
BRI A Mr. Chan Hung Kwong, Patrick 183 - 2 185
BUHBRTEE Indepenaent non-executive directors
AEBAE Mr. Wong Ting Kon 180 - - 180
yhmz L Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina 180 - - 180
ROFRE Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence 180 - - 180
BRI L Dr. Chan Chung Bun, Bunny 180 - - 180
6,217 300 36 6,553
BE-E-h% Year ended 31 December 2019
+-A=+-HLFE
HITEZE Executive directors
"HEAE Mr. Huang 4171 1,500 18 5,689
(P it Mr. Chan Hung Kwong, Patrick 1,586 1,500 18 3,104
BUHRTEE Independent non-executive directors
HEBRAE Mr. Wong Ting Kon 180 - - 180
yhmz L Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina 180 = = 180
RO LE Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence 180 - - 180
BRIEW L Dr. Chan Chung Bun, Bunny 180 = = 180
6,477 3,000 36 9513
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3 EERFETHAEME (&) 34 DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

BEERARAITRAR BBEER
BE_T_FTF+_A=1—BLEE

RELRERRZEMHE (ZFT—NF:
&) -

HEREXIN T -_TF_A+M@ EIZZtt
ZERPTEZTERARER T -F
F_ATHBEBRERTES-

BE-_T-_THF+-_A=1t—HILFE"
AEERERNEENERMME ER
UE] ?&iﬂﬂﬂ\ibu)\ﬁ’?ﬁlﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁbﬁi
TERBER A E —NEFE) o

(@) EFRHAFA=E
VEREFERARAHENBER
A H) S5 TR A B A AR S T E A
HEMN 2 RARFE (ZF—hEF:
&)

(b) EERILRBHMNRIFE
FRUEAE S EAREX
MaE (FRESRABHERER L
RGHHE(ZE—NF &) -

(c) MREHESEREMEAE=TX
FHRE
MERE - BALTRENDAES
R (R EEEESHMAEM
SO RE) M B NERS=
TOREB(ZE—NF &)

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Mr. Huang is the chief executive officer of the Company. No
director has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

Ms. Huang Li Hun, Serlina was appointed as executive director
on 14 February 2020 and Mr. Chan Hung Kwong, Patrick resigned
as executive director on 14 February 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no emoluments were
paid by the Group to any of the directors as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office (2019: Nil).

(a) Directors’ retirement benefits
No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any
directors in respect of their other services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company or its
subsidiary undertaking (2019: Nil).

(b) Directors’ termination payments or benefits
No payment was made or benefit provided to directors as
compensation for the early termination of the appointment
or in respect of termination of the services of directors
during the year (2019: Nil).

(c) Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services
No consideration was provided to or receivable by any
third party for making available the services of a person as
a director of a company, or in any other capacity while as a
director (2019: Nil).
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34 EERFETHRAENE (&)

176

(d)

(e)

EE XESEHNZEAERE
REEEAHENERZENK
BUERURERZEALH
HieXZHEHR

TR TEEF REFEHMNL
AEEREEEEHENERCE
FBUERARBERZEFEALH
HRXHERERN (ZFT—hEF:
®) -

EEZERZ RELSHHH
EXER

R mAEMEMPIREEIN
REXRK-ZT_TFEFRITME
B AEEBEBZT TSRS
BEBMALRZESTERAME
EETFHEBEARGCEER S
ZHREH(ZE—NF 8)-

34 DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such directors.

There were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in
favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors during the year
(2019: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,
no significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group's business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year 2020
(2019: Nil).

ARIRBIEIRBR AT o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED



-_— RIERKIZERERAE

HEE” SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED



	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	主席報告
	財務摘要
	財務概要
	管理層討論及分析
	董事及高級管理層簡歷
	企業管治報告
	環境、社會及管治報告
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合全面收益表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	封底



